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A MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

Fellow Stockholders:

Despite the softness in the second half of 2004, SST achieved substantial growth during 2004 and outperformed the
growth in our industry. SST's fiash revenue in 2004 grew by approximately 52 percent compared with 2003. By
comparison, the industry NOR flash revenue grew by approximately 28 percent, according to Web Feet Research. Our
flash unit shipments grew by 25 percent compared with the industry NOR flash unit shipment growth of 18 percent.
For 8Mbit and below densities, cur unit shipments increased by 26 percent versus a 6 percent industry growth.

Our embedded flash strategy took an exciting turn in 2004 as we began taking a mare active role in driving our

embedded flash business. Throughout the year, our China team worked closely with major design houses in China on
embedded flash IP block designs for smart card applications. As a result, we successfully brought up the 0.25 micron §
embedded flash technolaogy at Hua-Hong NEC.

In September, we announced the acquisition of a majority stake in Emosyn, a fabless semiconductor manufacturer
specializing in the design and marketing of smart card ICs for SIM card applications. Emosyn is a longtime SST
licensee and has successfully implemented cost-effective smart card IC designs with superior features based on our SuperFlash technology, and is
winning market share in the rapidly growing China market. We believe this acquisition will allow SST to establish Superfiash technclogy as the
technology-of-choice in the strategically important smart card IC market, estimated at approximately $1 billion a year and growing.

In October, we also announced the acquisition of G-Plus, a Santa Monica, California-based fabless semiconductor manufacturer. G-Plus designs
innovative radio frequency integrated circuits for a wide range of wireless and multimedia applications such as 802.11 a/b/g wireless LAN and 5.8
GHz wireless digital audic systems. This acquisition represents a significant step in our efforts to make SuperFlash the embedded memary of choice
for wireless applications. It also signifies the first step in our transition from a pure-play in flash to a muiti-product line company. In fact, sales of
our non-memory products represented 18 percent of our product revenues in the fourth quarter. These products include 8bit flash micro-controllers,
flash card controllers, smart card ICs and RF power amplifier ICs.

We believe that the market for embedded products holds great potential for SST and we will be exploring additional ways to extend the penetration of
SuperFlash technology in the marketplace.

On the product front, we continued our momentum of product proliferation and cost reduction with our maturing 0.25 and 0.18 micron SuperFlash
process technology. We have transitioned substantially all of our 0.33 micron products to these two technologies. We have released to production a
dual bank 16Mbit preduct and are ready to qualify a 16Mbit platform product with serial interface, a dual bank 32Mbit product and a 84Mbit MPF
product. We believe these high density NOR products will expand significantly the addressable market for our products.

I am also pleased to report that, during the fourth quarter, we made great progress in our development of a multi-level cell design on a 64Mbit product.
Although not ready for commercialization, we believe that this design technique holds very high promise in the cost reduction for some product families
in the future.

On the technology front, we began our near-term cost reduction path for current 0.18 micron designs ranging from 16Mbit to 64Mbit by starting 0.13
micron development activities during the third quarter and taping out a test vehicle during the fourth quarter. This development activity is in parallel with
a more aggressive technology development based on our third-generation Superflash cell.

Our third generation SuperFlash cell development is in full steam at PowerChip. We have demonstrated the viability of this technology on a 1Mbit
product-vehicle. We are focusing our resources on developing a 0.13 micron 128Mbit high density serial NOR product with substantially smaller die
size relative to our competition at this technology node. By doing so, we expect to extend the same cost advantage we have been enjoying with our
other low-density NOR products to 1Z8Mbit density level.

We are very encouraged by our eurrent progress in bringing our higher density products to market and believe that there is significant opportunity to
expand into areas in which we have very small market presence. We believe that our SuperFlash technology, our smaller die size and lower cost
structure that have led to our success in the low density flash market will also give us significant advantages as we expand to the higher density
area with smaller geometries.

In summary, as we look ahead to 2005, we recognize that our industry faces key challenges with product oversupply and a competitive pricing environment.
However, SST has made significant investments in our technology, product development, operations and customer support infrastructure which we believe
will allow us to successfully penetrate the medium to high density markets as wel! as strategically important embedded flash applications. We have
demonstrated our ability in growing our market share and we believe that the strategies that have made us successful in the low density market will give
us distinct advantages in these new areas. Furthermore, we continue to reduce our manufacturing costs and exercise tight expense contral. With our
comprehensive product offering, strong foundry and licensing relationships and a healthy balance shesat, we believe we can ride out the current environ-
ment and continue our advancement of SuperFlash technology into the strategic areas that will drive our growth in the years to come.

On behalf of all of us at SST, we thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,

Bing Yeh
President and CEQ




SILICON STORAGE TECHN OLOGY, INC.
1171 Sonora Court
Sunnyvale, California 94086

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHQLDE\
TO BE HELD ON JUNE 2, 2005

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC.:

Notice Is Hereby Given that the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Silicon Storag
Inc., a California corporation, will be held on Thursday, June 2, 2005 at 3:00 p.m., Pacific Time, at our offices
located at 1020 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California 94086 for the following purposes:

1. To elect six directors to serve for the ensuing year and until their successors are elected.

2. To ratify the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm
for our fiscal year ending December 31,2005. :

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this
Notice.

_ The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on April 19, 2005, as the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to notlce of and to vote at thxs Annual Meeting and at any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors
T«
JACK K. LAI

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of Finance and
Administration and Secretary

Sunnyvale, California
April 28, 2005

ALL SHAREHOLDERS ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON.
WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN
AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE IN ORDER TO ENSURE YOUR
REPRESENTATION AT THE MEETING. A RETURN ENVELOPE (WHICH IS POSTAGE PREPAID IF
MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES) IS ENCLOSED FOR THAT PURPOSE. SHARES MAY ALSO BE
VOTED ELECTRONICALLY VIA THE INTERNET. EVEN IF YOU HAVE GIVEN YOUR PROXY, YOU
MAY STILL VOTE IN PERSON IF YOU ATTEND THE MEETING. PLEASE NOTE, HOWEVER, THAT IF
YOUR SHARES ARE HELD OF RECORD BY A BROKER, BANK OR OTHER NOMINEE AND YOU WISH
TO VOTE AT THE MEETING, YOU MUST OBTAIN FROM THE RECORD HOLDER A PROXY ISSUED IN
YOUR NAME.




“ . SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
R 1171 Sonora Court
Sunnyvale, California 94086

ST . PROXY STATEMENT |
RS ~FOR 2005 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

KLt . June2,2005
INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

GENERAL

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., a
California corporation, for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Thursday, June 2, 2005 at 3: 00
p-m., Pacific Time, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, for the purposes set forth herein and in the
accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting will be held at our offices located at 1020 Kifer
Road, Sunnyvale, California 94086. We intend to mail this proxy statement, accompanying proxy card, and our
2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K on or about April 29, 2005, to all shareholders entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting. If your shares are held in a bank or brokerage account, you may be eligible to vote your proxy
electronically. Please refer to the enclosed voting form for instructions.

+ SOLICITATION

We will bear the entire cost of solicitation of proxies, including preparation, assembly, printing and mailing
of this proxy statement, the proxy and any additional information furnished to shareholders. Copies of solicitation
materials will be furnished to banks, brokerage houses, fiduciaries and custodians holding in their names shares of
common stock beneficially owned by others to forward to such beneficial owners. We may reimburse persons
representing beneficial owners of common stock for their costs of forwarding solicitation materials to such
beneficial owners. Original solicitation of prox1es by mail may be supplemented by telephone, telegram, or
personal solicitation by directors, officers, or other regular employees. No additional compensation will be paid to
our directors, officers, or other regular employees for such services.

VOTING RIGHTS AND OUTSTANDING SHARES

Only holders of record of our' common stock“at the close of business on April 19, 2005 will be entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. At the close of business on April 19, 2005 we had outstanding and
entitled to vote 101,311,149 shares of common stock.

Each holder of record of our common stock on such date will be entitled to one vote for each share held on
all matters to-be voted upon.. With respect to the,election of directors, shareholders may exercise cumulative voting
rights. Under cumulative voting, each-holder of common stock will be entitled to five votes for each share held.
Each shareholder may give one candidate, who has been nominated prior to voting, all the votes such shareholder is
entitled to cast or may-distribute such votes among as many such candidates as such shareholder chooses. However,
no shareholder will be entitled to cumulate votes unless the candidate’s name has been placed in nomination prior to
the voting and at least one shareholder has given notice at the meeting, prior to the voting, of his or her intention to
cumulate votes. Unless the proxyholders are otherwise instructed, shareholders, by means of the accompanying
proxy, will'grant the proxyholders discretionary authority to cumulate votes.

A quorum of shareholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be present if at least a
majority of the outstanding shares are represented by shareholders present at the meeting or by proxy. All votes
will be tabulated by the inspector of election appointed for the meeting, who will separately tabulate affirmative and
negative votes, abstentions, and broker non-votes. Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted towards a quorum
but are not counted for any purposes 1n determmmg whether a matter is approved.




VOTING V1A THE INTERNET OR BY TELEPHONE

Shareholders may grant a proxy to vote their shares by means of the telephone or on the Internet. The
telephone and Internet voting procedures below are designed to authenticate shareholders’ identities, to allow
shareholders to grant a proxy to vote their shares and to confirm that shareholders’ instructions have been recorded
properly. Shareholders granting a proxy to vote via the Internet should understand that there may be costs
associated with electronic access, such as usage charges from Internet access providers and telephone companies,
that must be borne by the shareholder.

For Shares Registered in Your Name

Shareholders of record may go to http://www.voteproxy.com to vote their shares by means of the Internet.
They will be required to provide the company number and control niumber contained on their proxy cards. The
shareholder will then be asked to complete an electronic proxy card. The votes represented by such proxy will be
generated on the computer screen, and the shareholder will be prompted to submit or revise them as desired.

For Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

If your shares are held by your broker as your nominee (that is, in “street name”), you will need to obtain a
proxy form from the institution that holds your shares and follow the instructions included on that form regarding
how to instruct your broker to vote your shares. If you do not give instructions to your broker, your broker can vote
your shares with respect to “discretionary” items, but not with respect to “non-discretionary” items. Discretionary
items are proposals considered routine under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, on which your broker may
vote shares held in street name in the absence of your voting instructions. On non-discretionary items for which you
do not give your broker instructions, the shares will be treated as broker non-votes.

A number of brokers and banks are participating in a program provided through ADP Investor
Communication Services that offers the means to grant proxies to vote shares by means of the telephone and
Internet. If your shares are held in an account with a broker or bank participating in the ADP Investor
Communications Services program, you may grant a proxy to vote those shares telephonically by calling the
telephone number shown on the instruction form received from your broker or bank, or via the Internet at ADP
Investor Communication Services’ web site at http://www.proxyvote.com.

General Information for All Shares Voted via the Internet or by Telephone

Votes submitted via the Internet or by telephone must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on June 1,
2005. Submitting your proxy via the Internet or by telephone will not affect your right to vote in person should you
decide to attend the Annual Meeting.

REVOCABILITY OF PROXIES

Any person giving a proxy pursuant to this solicitation has the power to revoke it at any time before it is
voted. It may be revoked by filing with our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices, 1171 Sonora
Court, Sunnyvale, California 94086, a written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date, or
it may be revoked by attending the meeting and votmg in person. Attendance at the meeting will not, by itself,
revoke a proxy. :

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, proposals of shareholders that
are intended to be presented at our 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must be received by us not later than
January 8, 2006 in order to be included in the Proxy Statement and proxy relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. Pursuant to our bylaws, shareholders who wish to bring matters or propose nominees for director at
our 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must provide specified information to us between January 4, 2006 and
February 3, 2006. Shareholders are also advised to review our bylaws, which contain additional requirements with
respect to advance notice shareholder proposals and director nominations.




ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS o o

. Registered and beneficial shareholders now have the option to receive shareholder material electronically.
By signing up for.electronic delivery of shareholder material such as the Annual Report and Proxy Statement;
shareholders will receive e-mail notification as soon as the shareholder material becomes available online without -
having to wait for the material:to arrive in the mail. . To sign up for electronic delivery of our future annual reports'
and proxy statements; please: visit our web site at http://www.sst.com/investors/edelivery.xhtml. Shareholder
enrollment will be effective until cancelled. Shareholders may call Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., or SST, "
Investor Relations at (408) 735-9110 for questions about electronic delivery.

HOUSEHOLDING OF IPROXY MATERIALS
o [ p
" The Securities and- Exchange Commlsswn has adopted rules that penmt companies and intermediaries
(e.g.; brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for proxy statements and annual reports with respect to two or
more shareholders sharing the same address by delivering a single proxy statement addressed to those shareholders.
This process, which is commonly referred to as householding, potentlally means extra convenience for shareholders
and cost savings for companies. : A :

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are our shareholders will be householding our
proxy materials. A sifigle proxy statement will.be delivered:to multiple shareholders sharing an address unless
contrary instructions have been received from the affected shareholders. Once you have received notice from your
broker that they will be householding communications to youraddress, householding will continue until you are
notified otherwise oruntil-you revoke your consent. If; at any time, you no longer wish to participate in -
householding and would prefer to receive a separate proxy statement and annual report, please notify your broker,
or direct your written request to Investor Relations, via facsimile at (408) 735-9036. Shareholders who currently
receive multiple copies of the proxy statement at their address and would hke to request householding of their
communications should contact their broker. . ‘

T

n




PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
There are six nominees for the six Board positions. Each director to be elected will hold office until the
next annual meeting of shareholders and until his successor is elected and has qualified, or until such director’s
earlier death, resignation or removal. Each nominee listed below is currently one of our directors, all having been
elected by the shareholders with the exception of Terry Nickerson, who was appointed to the Board of Directors in
April 2005. It is our policy to invite nominees for directors to attend the Annual Meeting. All of our directors
attended the 2004 Annual Meeting with the exception of Terry Nickerson.

Shares represented by the executed proxies will be voted, if authority to do so is not withheld, for the
election of the six nominees named below. In the event that any nominee should be unavailable for election as a
result of an unexpected occurrence, such shares will be voted for the election of such substitute nominee as
management may propose. Each person nominated for election has agreed to serve if elected and we have no reason
to believe that any nominee will be unable to serve.

The candidates receiving the highest number of affirmative votes of the shares entitled to be voted will be
elected to our Board of Directors. The names of the nominees and certain information about them are set forth
below:

Name ‘ ‘ Age Position

Bing Yeh .................. SOV 54 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Yaw WenHu.................. e .55 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Tsuyoshi Taira .............c......... 66  Director

Yasushi Chikagami.................. 66 Director

Ronald Chwang............co.ocoe. 56 Director

Terry Nickerson.............c......... ‘ 65 Director

Bing Yeh, one of our co-founders, has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and has been a
member of our Board 'of Directors since our inception in 1989. In April 2004, he was appointed Chairman of the
Board of Directors. Prior to that, Mr. Yeh served as a senior research and development manager of Xicor, Inc., a
nonvolatile memory semiconductor company. From 1981 to 1984, Mr. Yeh held program manager and other
positions at Honeywell Inc. From 1979 to 1981, Mr. Yeh was a senior development engineer of EEPROM
technology of Intel Corporation. He was a Ph.D. candidate in Applied Physics and earned an Engineer degree from
Stanford University. Mr. Yeh holds a M.S. and a B.S. in Physics from National Taiwan University.

Yaw Wen Hu, Ph.D., joined us in July 1993 as Vice President, Technology Development. In 1997, he was
given the additional responsibility of wafer manufacturing and, in August 1999, he became Vice President,
Operations and Process Development. In January 2000, he was promoted to Senior Vice President, Operations and
Process Development. In April 2004, he was promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer.
Dr. Hu has been a member of our Board of Directors since September 1995. From 1990 to 1993, Dr. Hu served as
deputy general manager of technology development of Vitelic Taiwan Corporation. From 1988 to 1990, he served
as FAB engineering manager of Integrated Device Technology, Inc. From 1985 to 1988, he was the director of
technology development at Vitelic Corporation. From 1978 to 1985, he worked as a senior development engineer in
Intel Corporation’s Technology Development Group. Dr. Hu holds a B.S. in Physics from National Taiwan
University and a M.S. in Computer Engineering and a Ph.D. in Applied Physics from Stanford University.

Tsuyoshi Taira has been a member of our Board of Directors since July 1993. Since 1996, Mr. Taira has
served as Chief Executive Officer of Tazan International Inc., a venture capital and management consultancy firm.
From 1986 to 1993, he was President of Sanyo Semiconductor Corporation. From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Taira served
as Chairman of Sanyo Semiconductor Corporation. He currently serves on the Board of Directors of several
private companies. Mr. Taira received an Honorary Doctor of Humanities from Newport Asia Pacific University
and holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Tokyo Metropolitan University.




Yasushi Chikagami has been 2 member of our Board of Directors since September 1995. In 1979, he co-
founded GVC Corporation in Taiwan, a modem and wireless mobile phone manufacturer, which was acquired by
Lite-On IT Corporation in 1991. Mr. Chikagami currently serves on the Board of Directors of several technology
companies. He has been Chairman of Arise Corporation, operating in Taiwan, since March 1992. Mr. Chikagami
founded and has served as Chairman of Arise, Inc., operating in Japan, since 1999. He also serves on the Board of
Directors of Everlight ChemicalIridustrial Corporation and Trident Microsystems, Inc as well as several private
companies. Mr, Chikagami holds a B.S. in Agricultural Engineering from National Taiwan University and a M.S. .
in Engmeermg from‘Umversny of’ Tokyo ‘

Ronald Chwang, Ph D, has been a member of our Board of Directors since June 1997 Dr. Chwang is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of iD Ventures America (formerly known as Acer Technology Ventures)
under the iD SofiCapital Group, a venture investment and management consulting service group formed in January
2005. Since 1997, Dr. Chwang has been managing high tech venture investment activities in North America for
Acer Group. - Dr. Chwang currently serves actively on the Board of Directors of several private companies. Since
February 2003, he has served on the Board of Directors of ATI Technologies, Inc. of Canada.  From 1986 to 1997,
Dr. Chwang was with various Acer entities, serving in executive positions leading business units engaged in ASIC
products, computer peripherals, and Acer-Altos server system, including from 1992 to 1997 as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Acer America Corporation. Before joining the Acer entities, Dr. Chwang worked for several
years in development and management positions at Intel in Oregon and Bell Northern Research in Ottawa, Canada.
Dr. Chwang holds a B.Eng. (with honors) in Electrical Engineering from McGill University and a Ph.D. in
Electrical Engineering from the University of Southern California.

Terry Nickerson was appointed to the Board of Directors in April 2005. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. -
Nickerson served as the Senior VicerPresidept of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of ATI Technologies, Inc., a
semiconductor manufacturer. From 1999 to 2000, he was Vice President and General Manager, Automotive Gear
Division, of Stackpole Ltd. From 1988 to 1990, he served as Chief Financial Officer of Northern Telecom Ltd. |
While with Northern Telecom, he was also President of Northiern Telecom Electronics, a subsidiary responsible for.
Northern Telecom’s ASIC and Printed Circuit Board manufacturing. Mr. Nickerson spent over 18 years at IBM
primarily in Finance and Planning roles. He was also General Manager of the IBM plant in Don Mills, Ontario,
which later became Celestica Inc. 'While with both IBM and Northern Telecom, he served on international
assignments covering Asia, Europe and Latin America. Mr. Nickerson has a BSc in Metallurgy Engineering from
Queen’s Un1vers1ty and a M B A from Harvard Umver51ty

: e THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS
YA VOTE‘ IN FAVOR OF EACH NAMED NOMINEE




INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As required under Nasdagq listing standards, a majority of the members of a listed company’s board of
directors must qualify as “independent,” as affirmatively determined by the board of directors. Our Board of
Directors consults with our counsel to ensure that its determinations are consistent with all relevant securities and
other laws and regulations regarding the definition of “independent,” including those set forth in pertinent Nasdaq
listing standards, as in effect time to time.

Consistent with these considerations, after review of all relevant transactions or relationships between each
director, or any of his or her family members, and SST, our senior management and our independent registered
public accounting firm, the Board has affirmatively determined that all of our directors are independent directors
within the meaning of the applicable Nasdaq listing standards, except for Mr. Yeh, our President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board, and Dr. Hu, our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer.

INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

In April 2004, our Board of Directors documented the governance practices followed by us by adopting
Corporate Governance Policies to assure that the Board will have the necessary authority and practices in place to
review and evaluate our business operations as needed and to make decisions that are independent of our
management. The policies are also intended to align the interests of directors and management with those of our
shareholders. The Corporate Governance Policies set forth the practices the Board will follow with respect to board
composition and selection, board meetings and involvement of senior management, Chief Executive Officer
performance evaluation and succession planning, and board committees and compensation. The Corporate
Governance Policies were adopted by the Board to, among other things, reflect changes to the Nasdagq listing
standards and Securities and Exchange Commission rules adopted to implement provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. The Corporate Governance Policies, as well as the charters for each committee of the Board, may be
viewed at www.sst.com.

As required under new Nasdaq liéting standards, in fiscal 2004, our independent directors met four times in
regularly scheduled executive sessions at which only independent directors were present. Dr. Chwang serves as
our Lead Independent Director and presides over such executive sessions.

The following table provides membership and meeting information for fiscal 2004 for each of these Board
committees:

Nominating and

) Corporate
Name ’ Audit Compensation Governance
Bing Yeh........ Hererererrre e et sd e neana e n e tenen — ~— —
Yaw Wen Hu..oocoveveneencneeneeccnecneneine, — — —
Tsuyoshi Taira.........c.ccevvernrnen. eerereerere s X X* X
Yasushi Chikagami' ......cc..ccoecvmruerernnirreriennienne. X X X
Ronald Chwang..........cccceoeveereeeneeenninnencnenne, X* X X*
Terry Nickerson®...........ccccvvvereeeeinnnn.n, — - —
Total meetings in 2004 ..........cocccevvieerierineennenn, 7 4. 1
* Committee Chalrperson
1 Resigned as a member of the Audit Committee in Apr11 2005.
2 Appointed to the Board of Directors in April 2005.




Below is a description of each committee of the Board of Directors. Each committee has the authority to
engage legal counsel or other experts or consultants, as it deems appropriate to carry out its responsibilities. The
Board'of Directors-hasidetérminedithat each member of each committee meets the applicable rules and regulations
regardmg mdependence .and that each member is’ free of any relatlonshlp that would lnterfere with his 1nd1v1dual ‘
exercise of mdependent Judgment with regard to SST : SRR

l -4 ‘u‘ 1

Audlt Commlttee

, The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees-our corporate accountmg and ﬁnancxal reportmg
process. For thls purpose the! Audlt Comnuttee performs several funcnons :

St ‘

e evaluates the performance and assesses the quahﬁcatlons of the 1ndependent reg1stered pubhc
- accounting firm;" - ' : : .
determines and approves the engagement of the mdependent reglstered public accounting firm;

. determines whether t6 retain or terminate the existing independent registered public accounting
firm or to appoint and engage new independent registered public accounting firm;
- & 7" reviews'and approves the retention of the independent registered pubhc accounting ﬁrm to
o perfyorm any proposed pemnssxble non-audit services;
" e " 'monitors'the rotatlon of partners of the mdependent reg1stered public accounting firm on our audrt
B engagement teath as requxred by law;
s confers ‘with management and the mdependent registered public accountmg firm re gardmg the
l_ ‘ eﬂ'ectlveness of’ mternal controls over financial reporting; -

o« estabhshes procedures as requtred under apphcable law, for the receipt, retent1on and treatment of

i complamts we recelve regardmg accountmg, mternal accounting controls ot aud1t1ng matters and "
the conﬁdentlal and anonymous submlssmn by employees of concerns regardmg questxonable
‘ accountmg of audmng matters;

e - reviews the financial statements to be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K; and
discusses with management and the independent registered public accountlng firm the results of
the annual audlt and the results of thelr rev1ew of our quarterly financial statements

Three directors currently compnse the Audit Comrmttee Messrs. Tarra Chwang and Nickerson. Mr. "~
Chikagami resigned from the Audit Committee in April 2005. Mr. Nickerson was appointed to the Audit .
Committee in April 2005. The Audit Committeé met seven timés durmg 2004,

The Board of Dlrectors annually reviews the Nasdaq ltstmg standards definition of independence for Audit
Committee members and has determined that all members of our Audit Committee are independent (as
independence is currently defined i m 'Rule 4350(d)(2)(A)(i)-and-(ii) of the Nasdaq listing standards) The Board of
Directors has determined that Mr. Nlckerson qualifies-as an “audit committee financial expert,” as-defined in
applicable SEC rules. The Board made a qualitative assessment of Mr. Nickerson’s level of knowledge and
experience based on a number of factors, including his formal education and expenence as Chief Financial Ofﬁcer
of both Northern Telecom Ltd. and ATI Technologies Inc. : A

Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors:..

o reviews and approves the overall compensation strategy and policies for SST;
reviews and approves corporate performance goals and objectives relevant to the compensatxon of our
executive officers and other senior management; -
determines the compensation and other terms of employment-of our Ch1ef Executive Officer;
reviews and approves the compensation and other terms of employment of the other executive officers
and senior management; and '

e administers our stock option and employee stock purchase plans, bonus plans, and similar programs.

Four directors comprise the Compensation Committee: Messrs. Taira, Chikagami, Chwang and Nickerson.




Mr. Nickerson was appointed to the Compensation Committee in. April 2005. All members are independent (as
independence is currently defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the Nasdaq hstmg standards) The Compensatxon
Commmee met four times during 2004. '

We also have a Non-Officer Stock Award Committee that grants stock awards pursuant to the 1995 Equity
Incentive Plan to employees who are not executive officers. The grants must be in accordance with guidelines
adopted by the Compensation Committee. Except as approved by the Compensation Committee, the grants must
not exceed 36,000 shares to any individual. This committee has one member Mr. Yeh, who is our President and
Chlef Executlve Ofﬁcer :

Nommatmg- and Corporate Governance Committee
. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors:

o identifies, reviews and evaluates candidates to serve as directors of the Company (consistent with
criteria approved by the Board);
reviews and evaluates incumbent directors;

~ recommends candidates to the Board for election to the Board,;
makes recommendations to the Board regarding membership on com:mttees of the Board;
assesses the performance of the Board; and ‘
reviews and assesses our corporate governance pririciples.

" Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter can be found on our corporate website at
http://www.sst.com. Four directors comprise the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: Messrs.
Taira, Chikagami, Chwang and Nickerson. Mr. Nickerson was appointed to the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee in April 2005. All members are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule
4200(a)(15) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee was formed
in April 2004 and met one time during 2004.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that candidates for director should have certain
minimum qualifications, including being able to read and understand basic financial statements, being over 21 years
of age and having the highest personal mtegnty and ethics., The Nommatmg and Corporate Governance Committee
also intends to consider suich factors as possessing relevant expertise upon which to be able to offer advice and
guidance to management, having sufficient time to devote to the affairs of SST, demonstrated excellence in his or
her field, having the ability to exercise sound business judgment and having the commitment to rigorously represent
the long-term interests of our shareholders. However, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee retains
the right to modify these qualifications from time to time. Candidates for director nominees are reviewed in the
context of the current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of SST and the long-term interests of
shareholders. In conductmg this assessment, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers
diversity, age, skills, and such other factors as’ it deems appropriate given the current needs of the Board and"SST, to
maintain a balance of knowledge, experience and capability. In the case of incumbent directors whose terms of
office are set to expire, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews such directors’ overall
service to SST during their term, including the number of meetings attended, level of participation, quality of
performance, and any other relationships and transactions that might impair such directors’ independence. In the
case of new director candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also determines whether the
nominee must be independent for Nasdaq purposes, which determination is based upon applicable Nasdaq listing
standards, applicable SEC rules and regulations and the advice of counsel, if necessary. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee conducts any appropriate and necessary inquiries into the backgrounds and
qualifications of possible candidates after considering the function and needs of the Board. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee meets to discuss and consider such candidates’ qualifications and then selects a
nominee for recommendation to the Board by majority vote. To date, the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee has not paid a fee to any third party to assist in the process of identifying or evaluating director
candidates. To date, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has not received a timely director
nominee from a shareholder or shareholders holding more than 5% of our voting stock.




The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will.consider director candidates recommended by
shareholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not intend to.alter the manner in which it
evaluates candidates, including the minimum criteria set forth above, based on whether the candidate was
recommended by a shareholder or not. Shareholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to become nominees for election to the Board of Directors may
do so by delivering a  written recommendation to th¢ Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee at the
following address: ;1171 :Sonora Court, Sunnyvale, California 94086, attention: Nominating and Corporate
Governance’ Commlttee at least.120 days prior to the anniversary date of the mailing of the our proxy statement for
the last annual meeting of shareholders. Submissions must include the full name of the proposed nominee, a
description of the proposed nominee’s business experience for at least the previous five years, complete
biographical information, a description of the proposed nominee’s qualifications as a director and a representation
that the nominating -shareholder is a beneficial or record owner of our stock. Any such submission must be
accompanied by the written consent of the proposed nominee to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director if
elected.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Du‘ectors met ﬁve tlmes during the. last ﬁscal year. All du‘ectors attended at least 75% of the
aggregate of the meetmgs of the Board of Directors, and all directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the
meetings of the committees on which they served, held during the period for which they were a director or
committee member, respectively, except as follows: (1) Mr. Taira attended four out of the seven meetings of the
Audit Committee held during the - period for which he was a committee member, and (2) Mr. Chikagami attended
four out of the seven meetmgs of the Aud1t Comnuttee held dunng the period for Wthh he was a comnuttee
member. L . o L

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has adopted a formal process by which shareholders may communicate with the
Board of Directors or any of its directors. Shareholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors may
do so by sendlng wntten commumcatlons addressed to our Corporate Secretary at 1171 Sonora Court, Sunnyvale
California 94086. All communications will be complled by our Corporate Secretary and submitted to the Board of
Directors or the md1v1dua1 directors on a- penod1c basis. If no partlcular director is named, letters will be forwarded,
depending on the subject matter to the Chalr of the Audlt Compensatlon or Nommatmg and Corporate
Governance- Commlttee o \

CoDE OF CONDUC’JF
: We have adopted the Slhcon Storage Technology, Inc. Code. of Conduct that apphes to all of our officers,
d1rectors ‘and employees The Code of Conduct is available on our website at http://www.sst.com. -If we make any
substantlve amendments to the QOde of Conduct or grant any waiver from a provision of the Code of Conduct to
any of our executxve ofﬁcers or, d1rectors we will promptly disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on our
website. :

e S
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PROPOSAL 2
RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has selected PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003, and the Board of Directors has directed that
management submit the selection of independent registered public accounting firm for ratification by the
shareholders at the Annual Meeting. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited our financial statements since 1991.
Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting and will have an
opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Shareholder ratification of the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm is not required by our bylaws or otherwise. However, the Board of Directors is submitting
the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the shareholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate
practice. If the shareholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain
that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee in their discretion may direct the appointment of
different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if they determine that such a
change would be in our best interests and that of our shareholders.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP fees for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 are as follows:

2003 2004
Auditfees. ..o, $623,000 $1,989,000
Audit-related fees.........cooovveiiviniiiinnnn. $ - $ -
TaX TS et $113,000 $ 59,000
Allotherfees. .....oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiin $ 1,000 $ --
Total. ..o $737,000 $2,048,000

Audit Fees: This category includes fees for the audit of our annual financial statements, review of the
financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, services provided in connection with the
annual audit of SST’s internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 and services that are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years. This category also includes
advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or the review of interim
financial statements and statutory audits required by non-U.S. jurisdictions.

Audit-Related Fees: This category consists of assurance and related services by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not
reported above under “Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees: This category consists of professional services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for
tax compliance and tax advice. The services for the fees disclosed under this category include tax return preparation
and technical tax advice.

All Other Fees: This category consists of fees for advice on compliance with certain foreign investment
rules.

All of the fees for 2004 described above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has determined the rendering of non-audit services by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is compatible with
maintaining their independence.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy
and voting, which shares voting affirmatively also constitute at least a majority of the required quorum, at the
Annual Meeting will be required to ratify the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. For purposes of this vote,
abstentions and broker non-votes will not be counted for any purpose in determining whether this matter has been
ratified.
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PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services and has delegated authority to pre-
approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to Mr. Nickerson,
effective upon our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  Dr.-Chwang has been delegated this authority until our
2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Dr. Chwang is, and Mt. Nickerson will be, required to inform the Audit
Committee of such pre-approved services at the next meeting of the Audit Committee following such pre-approval.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of the
services provided by PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fees for the
services performed to date. ' "

TH_E BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS
' A VOTE IN FAVOR OF PROPOSAL 2
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The followiné table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of our common stock as of April
1, 2005 by: ‘

each of the officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table;
each director;
all of our officers and directors as a group; and
* all those known by us to be beneficial owners of more than 5% of our common stock.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Beneficial ownership
also includes shares of common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
of April 1, 2005. These shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage
ownership of each other person. Percentage of ownership is based on 97,860,046 shares of common stock
outstanding on April 1, 2005. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each of the individuals named below is:
¢/o Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., 1171 Sonora Court, Sunnyvale, California 94086.

Beneficial Ownership

Shares Issuable Pursuant to Number of Shares
Options Exercisable Within (Including Number Shown Percentage
Name 60 Days of April 1, 2005 in First Column) of Total
Officers and Directors
Bing Yeh (1)e.cciviininineinn 99,166 10,807,166 11.0%
YawWen Hu ..oovvvniiiiiiiiinenns 376,391 1,228,448 1.3%
Michael Briner (2)..........c...coe.ee.. 232,124 864,196 *
IsaoNojima........cooooevviinnnienn, 77,510 440,902 *
Derek Best.....ooovvveinieiiiiininenenen. 127,708 131,267 *
Tsuyoshi Taira...........coocevinvinnnn. 110,570 110,570 *
Yasushi Chikagami...................... 72,000 72,000 *
Ronald Chwang..............cc.oovinis 54,000 215,613 *
All officers and directors
as a group (11 persons)................. 1,398,828 14,442,275 14.8%
5% Stockholders
Mac-Per-Wolf Company (3) - 4,752,850 4.9%

* Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1% of the outstanding shares of our common stock.

) Includes (1) 3,038,163 shares held by the Yeh Family Trust U/D/T dated August 14, 1995, of which Mr.
Yeh and his wife are trustees, (2) 7,579,837 shares held by Golden Eagle Capital L.P. of which Mr. Yeh
and his wife are general partners and (3) 90,000 shares held in an IRA account in the name of Bing Yeh.
Mr. Yeh disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held by Golden Eagle Capital L.P. except to the
extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

2 Includes 24,000 shares and 14,000 shares held by Tammy Briner, custodian of Jeffrey Daniel Briner and
Katherine M. Briner under the Uniform TRFS to Minors Act/CA, respectively.

3) Mac-Per-Wolf Company is located at 310 S. Michigan Ave. Suite 2600, Chicago, IL 60604. Based solely

on a Schedule 13G, as of December 31, 2004 as filed with the SEC on January 31, 2005 by Mac-Per-Wolf
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE REPORTING REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 16(A)

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors and officers, and
persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, to file with the SEC initial
reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our common stock and other equity securities. Officers,
directors and greater than ten percent shareholders are requlred by SEC regulation to fum1sh us with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of such reports furnished to us, during the year ended
December 31, 2004, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers and directors were complied
with except Derek Best, our Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing, filed a late report on Form 4 relating to a
pledge of shares of our common stock as collateral for a non-recourse loan at a 90% loan-to-value ratio. .
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (1)

The Audit Committee oversees SST’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors and is
responsible for providing independent, objective oversight of SST’s accounting functions and internal controls.
Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process including the
system of internal controls. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed
the audited financial statements contained in the 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K with SST’s management.

The Audit Committee met with the independent registered public accounting firm, who are responsible for
expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with generally accepted accounting
principles, and reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements and other issues deemed significant by the
independent registered public accounting firm, including those required by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61
(Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU Section 380), as amended. In addition, the Audit
Committee discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm their independence from management
and SST, including the matters in the written disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board Standard
and considered the compatibility of any non-audit services with the registered public accounting firm’
independence. The Audit Committee met with the independent registered public accounting firm, with and without
management present, to discuss the results of their examination, their evaluation of SST’s internal controls and the
overall quality of SST’s financial reporting.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors approved, that the audited financial statements be included in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, for filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Audit Committee has selected, subject to shareholder ratification, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as SST’s independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2005.

Audit Committee
Ronald Chwang (Chairman)

Tsuyoshi Taira
Yasushi Chikagami

(1) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of our previous filings under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might incorporate future
filings, including this Proxy Statement, in whole or in part, the following report shall not be incorporated
by reference into any such filings.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

.- In April 2005, our Board, upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee of the Board, approved .
the Non-Employee Director Cash Retainer Program, or the Director Retainer Program. Pursuant to the Director
Retainer Program,.oursnon-employee directors are entitled to receive between $20,000 and $30,000 annually and
$800 and $1,500 per'meeting; based on their position on the Board..in connection with their attendance of board and
committee meetings. In addition, they are reimbursed for certain travel-related expenses in connection with
attendance at-Board and committee meetings in accordance with our policy. Members of our board who are also
employees of SST do not receive any'cash-compensation for théir services as members of our Board..

Each of our non-employee directors receives stock option grants under our. 1995 Non-Employee Directors’
Stock Option Plan, or the Directors’ Plan. During 2004, we granted fully vested options under the Directors’ Plan
covering 18,000 shares to-each of Messrs. Taira, Chikagami and Chwang at an exercise price of $9.97 per share
based on theclosing sale price reported on the Nasdaq National:Market on the date of grant. The options are fully
vested on the grant date.” In April 2005} our Board amended the Directors' Plan. Pursuant to the Directors’ Plan,
upon each non-employee director's initial election or appointment to the Board, such new non-employee director
receives an initial stock option grant for 45,000 shares of common stock. Pursuant to the Directors’ Plan, as
amended, each such initial stock option grant will vest as to 25% of the shares subject to thé grant on the yeatly
anniversary of the grant date. Previously, each such initial stock option was fully vested and exercisable upon grant.
In addition, pursuant to the.Directors’Plan, as amended, each non-employee director. will receive a fully vested
annual stock option grant for-12,000 shares of common stock.. Previously, each non- employee director recexved a
fully vested annual stock optlon grant for 18 OOO shares of common stock ' o

In addition, in April 2005‘ the Compensatidn Cor'rlmiﬁee granted Mr. Nickerson an option under the
Director’s Plan covering 45,000 shares at an exercise.price of $3.07 per share based on the closing sale price
reported on the Nasdaq National Market on the date of grant,
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COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS .
Summary of Compensation
The folléWing table shows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, compensation
awarded or paid to, or earned by our Chief Executive Officer and our four other most highly compensated officers
at December 31, 2004. Amounts under the column “All Other Compensation™ include matching contributions to

401(k) plans, patent awards, and amounts paid by us on behalf of the officers for supplemental life insurance.

Summary Compensation-Table

Long Term
S Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards
Securities
o Underlying Stock All Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Options Compensation
BingYeh.....oooooooiiiiii 12004 $ 440,450 $ 56,852 45,000 $ 4,564
President and Chief Executive 2003 ' $ 392,700 § - 30,000 $ 19,566
" Officer ' : 2002 § 392,700 § - 30,000 $ 3,557
Yaw Wen Hu (1)............ e - L2004 $ 322,760 $ 36,579 83,512 $ 4,111
Executive Vice President 2003 $ 286,560 § - ' 11,485 $ 4,513
Chief Operating Officer 2002 $§ 286,560 § - 12,059 $ 2,864
Michael Briner.............. e ... 2004 S 267,733‘- $ 26,400 19,514 $ 4,567
Senior Vice President, Application 2003 $ 251,984 §$ - 10,196 $ 2,268
Specific Product Group 2002 § 246,330 § - 11,529 $ 2,185
Derek Best ...oooviviiiiiiiiiiiei e 2004 $ 263,925 $ 26,166 19,514 $ 3,102
Senior Vice President, Sales and 2003 § 248,400 $604,900(2) 10,079 $ 1,867
Marketing 2002 § 248,400 '$ - 10,999 $ 2,166
Isao Nojima (3)......cooooiviiiiiniiniiiien 2004 $§ 244,099 $ 27,629 60,465 $ 6,288
Senior Vice President, Standard 2003 $§ 214,593 § - 8,438 $ 2,180
$ - 8,905 $ 1,644

_Memory Product Group 2002 § 214,593

(1) Dr. Hu was promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer in April 2004,

(2) During 2002, Mr. Best earned a cash bonus of $604,9OO in recognition of his responsibilities and services during
~ the year. The bonus was paid in January 2003.

" (3) Mr. Nojima was promoted to Senior Vice President, Standard Memory Product Group, in April 2004. Mr.
Nojima resigned from SST in April 2005.

STOCK OPTION GRANTS AND EXERCISES

The following tables show for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, information regarding options
granted to, exercised by, and held at year end by the officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table above.

2004 Stock Option Grants

The exercise price of each option was equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of
grant. Mr. Yeh’s option was equal to 110% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The
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exercise price may be paid in cash, in shares of our common stock valued at fair value on the exercise date or
through a cashless exercise procedure involving a same-day sale of the purchased shares.

The potential realizable value is calculated based on the term of the option at the time of grant. Stock price
appreciation of 5% and 10% is assumed pursuant to rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
and does not represent our prediction of our stock price performance. The potential realizable values at 5% and 10%
apprematlon are calculated by :

¢ multiplying the number of shares of common stock subject to a given option by 100% of the fair
market value of our common stock on the date of grant;

. assumihg that the aggregate stock value 'derived from that calculation compounds at the annual 5% or
10% rate shown in the table until the expiration of the options; and

. »subtractmg from that result the aggregate optlon exercise price.

* The shares hsted in the followmg table under “Number of Securities Underlying Option Granted” are
subject to vesting. - Each of the stock options listed in the table, except for Mr. Yeh’s option, vests monthly over a
one-year period beginning approximately two to four years from the date of grant. Mr. Yeh’s option vests over a
four-year period, 25% after one year and 2.083% per month thereafter. Each of the options has a ten-year term,
except for Mr. Yeh’s option which has a five-year term, subject to earlier termination if the optionee’s service with
us ceases. Under certain circumstances following a change of control, the vesting of such option grants may
accelerate and become immediately exercisable.

Percentages shown under “Percent of Total Options Granted in 2004” are based on 2,395,678 options
granted to our employees and directors during 2004

" Individual Grants : :
Potential Realizable Value

' Number of e at Assumed Annual Rates
Securities =~ Percent of \ ' of Stock Price Appreciation
Underlying = Total Options - for Option Term
Name Options Granted Granted in 2004 Exercise Price Expiration Date 5% 10%
Bing Yeh........ * 45,000 (1) " 1.87% $ 13.33 1/19/2009 $ 96,144 $ 278432
Yaw Wen Hu... 12,000 (2) 3.49% - § 12.12 1/19/2014 - § 91,466 § 231,794
60,000 (1) ‘ $ 16.34 4/19/2014 $ 616,568 $ 1,562,505
11,512 (3) ‘ $ 6.66 10/18/2014 $ 48217 § 122,192
Michael Briner. 10,000 (2) . 0.81%. $ 12.12 1/19/2014 $ 76,222 $ 193,162
9,514 (4) - $ - "6.66  10/18/2014 $ 39,849 $ 100,985
Derek Best... 10,000 (2) .. 0.81% $ 1212 1/19/2014 $ 76,222 § 193,162
9,514 (5) o $ ©6.66 10/18/2014 § 39,849 $§ 100,985
Isao Nojima..... 10,000 (2) 2.52% $ 12.12 1/19/2014  $ 76,222 § 193,162
40,000 (1) $ 16.34 4/19/2014  $ 411,046 $ 1,041,670
10,465 (6) $ 6.66 10/18/2014 § 43,832 . §. 111,079

(1) Option vests as to 25% of the shares on January 19, 2005 and 2.083% per month thereafter for three years.
(2) Option vests as to 20% of the shares on January 19, 2005 and 1.67% per month thereafter for four years.
(3) Option vests monthly over a one-year penod begmmng on October 16, 2006.

(4) Option vests monthly over a one-year period beginning November 23, 2006.

(5) Option vests monthly over a one-year period beginning June 2, 2007.

(6) Option vests monthly over a one-year period beginning March 15, 2007.
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Aggregate Option Exercises in
2004 and December 31, 2004 Option Values

Amounts shown under the column *“Value Realized” are based on the closing sales price of our common
stock on the date of exercise as reported on the Nasdaq National Market less the exercise price. Amounts shown
under the column “Value of Unexercised In-the-Money Options at December 31, 2004” are based on the closing
price of our common stock on December 31, 2004, of $5.95, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market, without
taking into account any taxes that may be payable in connection with the transaction, multiplied by the number of
shares underlying the option, less the exercise price payable for these shares.

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised In-
Options at : The-Money Options at
Shares Acquired December 31, 2004 December 31, 2004
Name on Exercise = Value Realized Exercisable / Unexercisable Exercisable / Unexercisable
Bing Yeh......... - $ - 380,312/ 69,688 $27,341/ 829,719
Yaw Wen Hu.... - s . - 356,440/ 96,503 $793,914 /82,312
Michael Briner.. - ‘ $ . -, 228,728/31,400 $635,926/%2,210
Derek Best....... - $ - 122,302 / 43,879 $20,225/$30,195
Isao Nojima...... 193,236 $ 1,750,345 59,259 / 80,455 $13,274/$24,426

Equity Compensation Plan Information

SST has three stockholder approved equity compensation plans: the 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, 1995
Non-Employee Directors’ Plan and 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The following table provides certain
information with respect to all of our equity compensation plans in effect as of December 31, 2004:

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to Weighted-average issuance under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights (a) warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders
(1) e e 11,031,460 $8.23 (2) 6,051,541
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security
holders.........oooccvveiiniinnn. - - -
Total.......... e 11,031,460 $8.23 6,051,541

(1) The plans included in this row include our 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, 1995 Non-Employee Directors’ Plan
and 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(2) Represents the weighted average exercise price of outstanding stock options only.

19




REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON COMPENSATION (1)

. Qur officer compensatlon program is administered by:the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Dlrectors which is'composed of Messrs Talra Chxkagarm and Chwang
: FIEERTT . . :
_ Our officer.compensation program is des1gned to retain and reward officers who are responsible for
leading us in achieving our business objectives. The compensation of our chief executive officer and other

executive officers is established by the Compensation Committee.".

COMPENSATION PH]LOSOPHY "’:'V". R
h Al

The Ob_]eCtIVCS of our compensatlon program are to:

..align' compensatlon w1th our busmess objectlves and individual performance;
' motivate and reward high levels of performance;
recognize and reward the 4chievement of team and individual goals; and
- énable us to attract, retain-and reward officers who contribute to our long-term success.

~

Our officer compensation philosophy-is to tie a significant portion of our compensation to our performance

and attainment of team and individual goals and objectives by our officers and is based on the following:

e The Compensation Committee regularly compares our officer compensation practices with those of
other companies inthé'semiconductor industry and other technology-related industries and sets our
compensation guidelines based on this review. . Our base annual salaries for our officers are generally
in the low to mid:-range of those paid to officers of companies with comparable revenue targets in high
technology industries. The Compensation Committee seeks, however, to provide our officers with
opportunities for higher compensation through profit sharing and stock options which, when we are
proﬁtal?lé; places total compensation in the mid to upper-range of comparable companies.

e The Compeﬁsation Committee believes that an officer compensation program that ties profit sharing
" awardsito performance and achievement of our stated goals serves both as an influential motivator to
its officers and as an effective instrument for aligning their interests with those of our shareholders.

e  The Compensation Committee also believes that a substantial portion of the compensation of our
officers should be linked to the success of our stock in the marketplace. The linkage is achieved
through our stock option program, which also serves to more fully align the interests of management
with those of our shareholders.

(1) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of our previous filings under the Securities Act of
1933, as aménded, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might incorporate future filings,

including this Proxy Statement, in whole or in part the followmg report shall not be incorporated by reference into
any such filings.- . . . . . . oL - , o

A
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IMPLEMENTATION OF COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Annual compensation for our officers consists of four principal elements: salary, cash bonus, profit
sharing and stock options.

The Compensation Committee sets the base annual salary and levels of compensation for officers by
reviewing compensation for comparable positions in the market and the historical compensation levels of our
officers. Currently, the base annual salaries of our officers are at levels which the Compensation Committee
believes are generally in the low to mid-range of those of officers of companies with which we compare ourselves.
The Compensation Committee members participate in the deliberations of the annual salaries for all officers.
Increases in annual salaries are based on a review and evaluation of officer salary levels and the demonstrated
capabilities of the officers in managing the key aspects of a fabless semiconductor company, including:

corporate partnering, patent strategy and technology collaborations;
research and development;

market development and market penetration;

financial matters, including attracting capltal and financial planning; and
human resources.

COMPENSATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As discussed below, Mr. Yeh is eligible to participate in the same officer compensation plans available to
our other officers. The non-employee members of the Compensation Committee set Mr. Yeh’s total annual
compensation, including compensation derived from our profit sharing program, at a level it believes is appropriate
in comparison with other chief executive officers at mid-sized companies in technology-related industries with
comparable revenue targets.

Mr. Yeh earned $440,450 in 2004 as base salary. Despite Mr. Yeh's contributions with respect to our
profitability for 2004, the increase in product shipments, the introduction of new products, the advancement of market
development and diversification of market penetration, the continued development of corporate partnership strategy, and
the refinement of overall strategic direction, we decided not to increase Mr. Yeh’s base salary in 2005. In addition, due to
economic conditions in late 2004, none of our employees received annual salary increases from 2004 to 2005, and
therefore we and Mr. Yeh did not believe that it would be appropriate to increase Mr. Yeh’s base salary. During 2004
Mr. Yeh was also paid profit sharing of $56,852. Profit sharing is calculated and based on a pre-determined formula that
is applied to our employees as described below. During 2004, Mr. Yeh was also granted an option to purchase 45,000
shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $13.33, based on 110% of the closing price of our common
stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on the date of grant. The option was granted in recognition of Mr.
Yeh’s performance and was intended to provide him with a continuing incentive to remain with SST and contribute
to our success.

PROFIT SHARING AND CASH BONUS

During 2004, profit sharing was calculated for all employees, including officers but excluding employees
in the sales department, twice using two pre-determined profit sharing-based formulas. The first formula allocates
10% of our operating profit to a profit sharing pool provided that we have met our twin profitability goals of both
pre-tax profits and operating profits in excess of 10% of revenues. If pre-tax profits or operating profits are less
than 10% of revenues, no allocation is made to profit sharing. The first formula is also reduced by a quality
adjustment, which is calculated based on the percentage difference between gross product revenues and net product
revenues, and then multiplied by five. The profit sharing pool to be distributed is reduced by this percentage. The
second formula apportions some of the profit sharing pool, if any, to each employee based on the employee’s length
of employment, level of performance and base salary and the individual employee’s compliance with our
Management by Objective, or MBO, method to help employees with planning their work. An individual’s profit
sharing is subject to a 20% reduction if such employee fails to post his or her MBOs on our intranet by a specified
time. Level of performance is a numerical value assigned in performance reviews independently of the profit
sharing program. We currently calculate bonuses based on our financial performance in the periods January 1
through June 30 and July 1 through December 31. During 2004, a separate bonus plan was used for employees in
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_the sales department, which is based on the achievement of pre-determined sales quotas and product design wins
which generate minimum revenue thresholds. The sales bonus portion that relates to sales quotas is also subject to
quality adjustment in the manner described above. The Senior Vice President of Sales & Marketing partunpates in
our overall profit sharing plan but not in the sales bonus plan.

_ As we achieved the profitability requirements of the profit sharing plan in the first half of 2004, all employees
eligible for profit sharing received awards-under this plan. Amounts related to profits earned during the period January. 1,
2004 through June 30, 2004 were paid out on September 20,2004, Aswe did not-achieve our profitability -
requirements of the profit sharing plan for the period July 1, 2004 through December 31, 2004, none of our officers,
or any other employee, were eligible for profit sharing in second half of 2004. :

STOCK AWARDS

Total compensation at the officer level also includes long-term incentives offered by stock awards under

the 1995 Equity Incentive Plan. Stock awards are designed to align the long-term interests of our employees with

- those of our shareholders and to assist in the retention of employees; The size of an individual stock award is
generally intended to reflect the employee’s position with, and his or her importance to us, and past and future
anticipated contributions to our business, and how many years of future service for which the employee has non-
vested options. It has been our practice to fix the exercise price of stock option grants at 100% of the fair market
value per share on the date of grant. Options are generally subject to vesting over a four or five year period in order
to encourage key employees to continue in our employ. As required under our 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, the
exercise price of stock option grants for officers who own more than 10% of the shares of our outstanding stock is
set at 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant

The Compensation Comm1ttee admlmsters the 1995 Equity Incentive Plan for our officers. The Board of
D1rectors has delegated to the Non-Officers Stock Option Committee the administration of the 1995 Equity
Incentive Plan for all of our other employees for option grants of not more than 36,000 shares per option grant. In
January 1997, a stock replenishment program was approved by the Board of Directors whereby options may be
granted on a smaller and more frequent basis to both our officers and employees in order to ensure that each eligible
employee possesses non-vested options for four years of future service. We have granted, and intend to continue to
grant, options to our ofﬁcers on a routine ba51s as part of this stock replenishment program.

FEDERAL TAX CONSIDERATIONS ‘

Section 162(rn) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the Code, limits us to a deduction for federal income tax
purposes of no more than $1 million.of compensauon paid to certain officers in a taxable year. Compensation
above $1 million may be deducted if it is “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section
162(m).

The Compensation Committee believes that, at the present time, it is quite unlikely that the compensation
paid that may be subject to the deduction limit will exceed $1 million in a taxable year for any such executive
whether or not the compensation qualifies as performance-based compensation. Therefore, the Compensation
Committee has not established as a priority designing executive compensation packages specifically intended to
avoid the Section 162(m) hmltatlons The Compensation Committee intends to continue to evaluate the effects of
the statute and any apphcable Treasury regulations and to grant, compensatton awards in the future in a manner
consistent with SST’s best. 1nterests .

Compensation Committee
Tsuyoshi Taira
Yasushi Chikagami
Ronald Chwang
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION IN COMPENSATION DECISIONS

During 2004, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors was composed of Messrs. Taira,
Chikagami and Chwang. Terry Nickerson was appointed to the Compensation Committee in April, 2005.

No current member of the Compensation Committee and none of our officers serve as a member of a

compensation committee of any entity that has one or more officers serving as a member of our Compensation
Committee.
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¢ PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT COMPARISON AT

The followmg chart: shows the total shareholder return of an mvestment of $100 in cash on December 31

1999 for: = b e R
e “* » our common stock; . & o
o - the Nasdag Stock Market (U S.) Index; T
. the RDG Semiconductor Composite.

All values assume reinvestment of the full amount of all dividends and are calculated as of December 31,
1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004. We have never paid a cash dividend.
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S
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0,08
12099 12000 ‘ 12401 12402 1203 12/04
— 8 SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. —a— NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.5))
---#-- RDG SEMICONDUCTOR COMPOSITE
Cumulative Total Return
12/99 12/00 12/01 12/02 12/03 12/04
SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC 100.00 86.36 70.11 29.38 80.00 43.27
NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.), 100.00 72.62 50.23 29.12 44.24 47.16
RDG SEMICONDUCTOR COL{POSIT'E 100,00 7497 65.57 33.13 6241 50.72

This section is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, and is not to be incorporated by
reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation of
language in any such filings.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS -

Mr. Yeh is a member of the board of directors of Apacer Technology, Inc. or Apacer, one of our customers
and vendors. As of December 31, 2004, we owned a 10% interest in Apacer. In 2004, Apacer accounted for $2.4
million, or 0.6%, of our net product revenues, and-we purchased $707 thousand in products and services from
Apacer,

Mr. Yehisa mémber of the board of directors of Silicon Technology Co., Ltd, or Silicon Technology, one
of our customers. As of December 31, 2004, we owned a 9% interest in Silicon Technology. In 2004, Silicon
Technology accounted for $7.9 million, or 2.0%, of our net product revenues.

Mr. Yeh is a member of the board of directors of Professional Computer Technology Limited, or PCT, a
Taiwanese public company. PCT and its wholly-owned subsidiary Silicon Professional Alliance Corporation, or
SPAC, are two of our manufacturers’ representatives. As of December 31, 2004, we owned a 13% interest in PCT.
PCT has a separate company and wholly-owned subsidiary, Silicon Professional Technology Ltd., or SPT, which
provides planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic functions for us in Taiwan, China
and other Southeast Asia-countries. In 2004, PCT and its subsidiaries SPT and SPAC together accounted for $214.2
million, or 52.9%, of our net product revenues. At December 31, 2003, we had net accounts receivable from SPT of
$32.0 million.

Mr. Yeh is a member of the board of directors of Powertech Technology, Inc., or PTI, a Taiwanese public
company. PTI is one of our vendors. As of December 31, 2004, we owned a 2% interest in PTI. Our purchases
from PTI are made pursuant to purchase orders at prevailing market prices. At December 31, 2004, we had net
accounts payable to PTI of $3.9 million.

Mr. Yeh is a member of the board of directors of Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or
GSMC. Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or Grace, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GSMC. Grace is one of our vendors. As of December 31, 2004, we owned a 10% interest in GSMC. Our
purchases from Grace are made pursuant to purchase orders at prevailing market prices. At December 31, 2004, we
had net accounts payable to Grace of $17.2 million.

Mr. Yeh'’s brother is the General Manager of SST International Macao Commercial Offshore Co. Ltd, our
processing center. In 2004, he was paid $55,519 in compensation and profit sharing and was granted an option to
purchase 3,140 shares of commeon stock at an exercise price of $6.48 per share.

INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

We have entered into indemnity agreements with each of our executive officers and directors which
provide, among other things, that we will indemnify these persons, under the circumstances and to the extent
provided for therein, for expenses, damages, judgments, fines and settlements he or she may be required to pay in
actions or proceedings which he or she is or may be made a party by reason of his or her position as our director,
officer or agent, and otherwise to the full extent permitted under California law and our bylaws.

As a matter of policy, all transactions between us and any of our officers, directors or principal
shareholders will be approved by a majority of the independent and disinterested members of the Board of
Directors, and will be on terms no less favorable to us than could be obtained from unaffiliated third parties and will
be in connection with our bona fide business purposes.
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At s T T OTHER MATTERS.

The Board 6f Directors knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual
Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in
‘the accompanying proxy to: vote on: such matters in accordance w1th their best judgment.

s . -

e i By Order of the Board of Dlrectors ~
@\. « —%\\,
“osw o o JACKK LAL :

i Chief Financial Oﬁ’ icer, Vice President of Finance and
Administration and Secretary

April 28,2005 1 o

.Our Annual Report to the‘Securmes and Exchange Commlssron on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004 is available without charge upon written request to: Corporate Secretary, Silicon Storage
Technology, Inc., 1171 Senora Court, Sunnyvale, California 94086.

ot
. .
.
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PARTI

Item 1. Business
Overview

Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., or SST or us or we, is a leading supplier of flash memory semiconductor devices
for the digital consumer, networking, wireless communications and Internet computing markets.

We offer over 90 products based on our SuperFlash design and manufacturing process technology. Our customers
include: 3Com, Apple, Asustek, BenQ, Cisco, Dell, First International Computer, or FIC, Gigabyte, Huawei,
Hyundai, Infineon, Intel, IBM, Inventec, Legend, LG Electronics, or LG, Motorola, National Semiconductor, NEC,
Nintendo, Nortel, Panasonic, Philips, Quanta Samsung, Sanyo, Seagate Slemens Sony, Sony Ericsson, Texas
Instruments and VTech.

We also license our SuperFlash technology to leading semiconductor companies including 1% Silicon (Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd., Analog Devices, IBM, Motorola Inc., National Semiconductor Corporation, NEC Corporation, Oki Electric
Industry Co., Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd., SANYO Electric Co., Ltd., Seiko Epson Corporation, Shanghai
Huahong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd., Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMC, Toshiba
Corporation and Winbond Electromcs Corporation for appllcatlons in semlconductor devices that integrate flash
memory with other functions on a single chip. A

Our products are manufactured at leading wafer foundries and semiconductor manufacturers including Global
Communication Semiconductor, Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or Grace, Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd., SANYO Electric Co., Ltd., Seiko Epson Corporation, Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics
Co. Ltd., TSMC and Yasu Semiconductor Corporation, or Yasu. We also work with Grace, Powerchip
Semiconductor Corporation, and TSMC to develop new technology for'manufacturing our preducts.

The semiconductor industry has historically been cyclical, characterized by periodic changes in business conditions
caused by product supply and demand imbalance. When the industry experiences downturns, they often occur in
connection with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles and declines in general economic conditions. These
downturns are characterized by weak product demand, excessive inventory and accelerated declines of selling prices.
In some cases, downturns, such as the one we have experienced from late 2000 through 2002, have lasted for more
than a year. We began to experience a slow recovery during 2002 through the first half of 2003. During the second
half of 2003 and the first half of 2004, demand for our products increased sharply and we began to see improvements
in the average selling prices of our products. However, we experienced a decrease in the average selling prices of our
products as a result of the industry-wide oversupply and excessive inventory in the market in the second half of 2004.
Our business could be further harmed by industry-wide prolonged downturns in the future.

Wé derived 88.5%, 90.0% and 86.0% of our net product revenues during 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, from
product shipments to Asia. Additionally, substantially all of our wafer suppliers-and packaging and testing
subcontractors are located in Asia.

Industry Background

Semiconductor integrated circuits are critical components used in an increasingly wide variety of applications, such
as computers and computer systems, communications equipment, consumer products and industrial automation and
control systems. As integrated circuit performance has increased and size and cost have decreased, the use of
semiconductors in these applications has grown significantly.

Historically, the demand for semiconductors has been driven by the PC market. In recent years, growth in demand
for semiconductors relating to PCs has been outpaced by growth in demand for semiconductors that are used in
digital electronic devices for communication and consumer applications. Communications applications include
digital subscriber line modems, cable modems, networking equipment, wireless local area network, or WLAN,
devices, cellular phones and Global Positioning Systems, or GPS. Consumer-oriented digital electronic devices
include digital cameras, DVD players, MP3 players, personal data assistants, or PDAs, set-top boxes, Digital TVs and
video games.



In order to function correctly, PCs and other digital electronic devices require program code. The program code
defines how devices functron and affects how they are configured. In PCs, this program code, called BIOS, initiates
the loading of the PC's operating system, which is then read from the disk drive. In the case of other digital electronic
devices, the program code is stored in its entirety in nonvolatile memory, mostly in flash memory. As a result,
virtually all digital electronic systems that use a processor or controller for computing, consumer, communications,
and industrial applications require nonvolatile memory.

System manufacturers generally prefer nonvolatile memory devices that can be reprogrammed efficiently in the
system in order to achieve-several important advantages. With re-programmable memory, manufacturers can cost
effectively change program codes in response to faster product cycles and changing market specifications. This in
turn greatly simplifies inventory management and manufacturing processes. Re-programmable memory also allows
the manufacturer-to reconfigure or update a system either locally or through a network connection. In addition, in-
system re-programmable devices ¢an be used for data storage functions, such as storage of phone numbers for speed
dialing in a cellular phone or captured 1mages ina dlgrtal camera.

Flash memory is the predommant re-programmable nonvolatlle memory device used to store program code and data.
Flash memory can electrically erase select blocks of data on the device much faster and more simply than with
alternative solutions, such as Erasable Programmable Read-Only Memory, or EPROM. Moreover, flash memory is
significantly less expensive than other re-programmable solutions, such as Electrically Erasable Programmable Read-
Only Memory, or EEPROMS. As a result, the demand for flash memory has grown dramatically. This growth has
been fueled by the need for code sharing and other storage functions in a wide array of digital devices. According to
a March 2005 Webfeet Research report, worldwide flash memory revenue was$17.3 billion in 2004 and is expected
to grow to $19.8 billion in 2005 and $32.3 billion in 2009,

OurSolutzon PR T

We are a leadmg supplrer of ﬂash memory semrconductor dev1ces addressing the needs of high volume applrcatlons
We believe our proprietary flash' memory technology, SuperFlash, offers superior performance to other flash memory
solutions. In addition, we believe SuperFlash has benefits that include high reliability, fast, fixed erase time, the - .
ability to be scaled to a smaller size and a low-cost manufacturing process. We offer over 90 products based on our
proprietary SuperFlash design and manufacturing process technology. These products are produced to meet the
needs of a wide rangé of digital corisumer, networking, wireless comrunications and Internet computing markets.
Our product offerings include standard flash products, application specific memory products, embedded controllers
and mass data storage products. Our memory devices have densities ranging from 256 Kbit to 32" Mbit and are
generally used for the storage of program code. Our flash embedded microcontrollers support concurrent flash read-
while-write operat1ons using In-Application Programming; or IAP. Our mass data storage products are used for
‘storing 1mages musrc and other data it devrces such as d1g1ta1 cameras and MP3 players. '

1 » L4

Our Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading vyorldwrde supplier of ﬂash memory devices and the leading licensor of embedded
flash technology for program code storage applications. In addition, we intend to leverage our SuperFlash
technology to penetrate the high-density mass data storage markets We intend to ach1eve our objectwes by:

Maintaining a leading position in the program code storage market We beheve that program code storage is an
attractive segment of the flash memory market for a number of reasons. While experiencing continued growth in all
densities, solutions for program code storage applications benefit from the increasing number and variety of digital
electronic applications, longer product lives and lower density réquirements relative to mass data storage -
applications. We believe that our propriétary SuperFlash technology is a superior product for program code storage
applications because we believe it ‘offers superior rehab111ty and performance at a lower cost of manufacture than-
competing solutions. :

Continuing to enhance our leading ﬂasjh.'m’er‘nory technology. We believe that our proprietary SuperFlash technology
is less complicated, more¢ reliable, more scalable and more cost-effective than competing flash memory. technologies.
‘Our ongoing research and developmenit efforts are focused on enhancing our leading flash memory technology by

working closely with technology partners who own wafer fabncatron facilities with advanced lrthographlc and other
manufacturmg equlpment ' -

1

Introducing new products based on SuperF. lash. We intend to introduce new standard memory and various
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application specific products. We continue to develop and expand our ComboMemory family. ComboMemory is a
new class of devices for wireless and portable applications that combine volatile and nonvolatile memory on a single
monolithic device or multiple die in a common package with optimized performance. We also continue to expand
our flash microcontroller family and Advanced Technology Architecture, or ATA, controller products. In 2004, we
continued to expand our family of serial flash products which now includes densities of 512kbit, 1 Mbit, 2Mbit 4Mbit
and 8Mbit. For PC BIOS applications, we are expanding our LPC Firmware Flash product offering to match all the
densities offered in our Firmware Hub, or FWH, products.

Maintaining a leading position in licensing embedded flash technology. We believe that SuperFlash technology is
well-suited for embedded memory applications, which integrate fiash memory and other functions onto a monolithic
chip. We intend to continue to license SuperFlash technology to semiconductor manufacturers for embedded flash
applications, to enhance our technology and to facilitate integration at higher densities and higher levels of
complexity.

Penetrating the high-density mass data storage market. Many digital electronic devices currently being introduced,
such as MP3 players, digital cameras and PDAs, require high-density flash memory for storing music, pictures and
other data that require mass data storage capacities. We believe that the market for high-density flash memory is
attractive based on its potential size and growth. We further believe that SuperFlash technology can readily scale to
address this market's needs as they change. We intend to leverage our leading technology and strong manufacturing
partnerships to introduce high-density mass data storage flash products and to compete effectively in this market.

Leveraging our leading SuperFlash technology to become a premier provider of wireless memory solutions. We
intend to leverage our leading SuperFlash technology to provide products for wireless applications such as cellular
phones, GPS, WLAN, Bluetooth, data pagers and cordless telephones. We have designed low-density flash products
for wireless modems, WLANS, data pagers, Bluetooth modules and cordless telephones, and we are currently
designing higher density products for the cellular phone market. We intend to continue to develop our products to
take advantage of the significant growth opportunities in the wireless applications market with specific focus on
cellular phone, GPS, WLAN and Bluetooth applications.

Our Flash Products

Currently, we offer low and medium density devices (256 Kbit to 32 Mbit) that target a broad range of existing and
emerging applications in the digital consumer, networking, wireless communications and Internet computing markets.
Our products are segmented largely based upon attributes such as density, voltage, access speed, package and target
application. We divide our flash products into three distinct reportable segments: the Standard Memory Product
Group, or SMPG, the Application Specific Product Group, or ASPG, and the Special Product Group, or SPG.

SMPG. SMPG includes the Multi-Purpose Flash, or MPF, family, the Multi-Purpose Flash Plus, or MPF+, family and
the Many-Time Programmable, or MTP, family. These product families allow us to produce products optimized for
cost and functionality to support a broad range of mainstream applications that use nonvolatile memory products.
Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred certain MTP products from SMPG to SPG. Effective July 1, 2003, we
transferred the Small Sector Flash, or SSF, family from SMPG to SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred the
last MTP series of products from SMPG to SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenues and gross profit information
have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if transfers occurred as of January 1, 2002.

ASPG. ASPG includes Concurrent SuperFlash, Serial Flash, Firmware Hub, or FWH and Low Pin Count, or LPC,
flash products. These products are designed to address specific applications such as cellular phones, hard disk drives,
optical drives and PCs. ASPG also includes flash embedded controllers such as the ATA flash disk controller.
Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred FlashFlexS1 microcontroller products from ASPG to SPG. Accordingly,
our segment revenues and gross profit information have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer
occurred as of January 1, 2002.

SPG. SPG includes ComboMemory, ROM/RAM Combos, SSF, MTP, FlashFlex51 microcontroller and other special
flash products. These products are used in applications requiring low power and a small form factor such as cellular
phones, wireless modems, MP3 systems, pagers and digital organizers. Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred
certain MTP products from SMPG to SPG and certain flash microcontroller products from ASPG to SPG. Effective
July 1, 2003, we transferred the SSF family from SMPG to SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred the last
MTP series of products from SMPG to SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenues and gross profit information have
been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer occurred as of January 1, 2002.




Our Newly Acqmred Busmesses QBRI

Durmg the second half of 2004 .we acqulred a majonty ownershlp of Emosyn LLC and substantrally all the assets of
G-Plus, Inc., to help w1th our- strategrc growth o ' I e
i

Emosyn Emosyn products mclude ﬂash memory based smart card. IC. chlps The Theseus Platmum product farmly
specifically targets the smart card market through the sales of products with optimized embedded flash memory .
densities and cost structure for various applications. These products are used primarily in cell phone subscriber
identification module, or;SIM, applications, and include such benefits of use as user.configurable, lower power .
consumption, longterm data retention and high endurance.of data access. We acquired a majority ownership of -
Emosyn on September 10, 2004. :The. segment data is reﬂected from this date through the end of the year.

R ¢
SST Commumcatzons Corporatzon or SCC SCC products mclude RF transceiver, synthesizer, power amphﬁer and
switch products. These products provide end-to-end RF solutions to enable wireless multimedia and broadband
networking applications. We formed SST Communications Corporation and acquired substantially all of the assets of
G-Plus, Inc. on November 5, 2004 The segment data is reﬂected from this date through the end of the year
F mancral mformatlon by reportable segment is contamed in Note 15 of the Notes to Consohdated Financial
Statements and is mcorporated herein by reference. -

Technology Ltcensmg o

We 11cense our SuperF lash technology,to semlconductor manufacturers for use in embedded flash applications. We
intend to increase our market share by entermg into additional license agreements for our SuperFlash process and
memory cell technology with leadmg wafer foundries and semiconductor manufacturers. We expect to continue to
receive. hcensmg fees and royaltres from these agreements. We design our products using our patented memory cell

: technology and fabrrcate them using our patented process technology. As of December 31, 2004, we held 116 patents
in the United States relating to certain aspects of our products and processes, with expiration dates ranging from 2010
to 2023, and have filed for several more. In addition, we hold several patents in Europe, Japan, Korea, Taiwan and
Canada and have filed several foreign patent applications in Europe, Japan, Korea, Taiwan and Canada.

Customers .

We prov1de hrgh-performance ﬂash memory solutrons and’ other products to customers in four major markets: digital
consumer networklng, w1reless communications and Internet computing. Our customers benefit by obtaining
products that we believe. are h1ghly reliable, technologically advanced and have attractive cost structures. As a result
of these highly desirable benefifs, we have developed relatlonshlps ‘with many of the industry's leading companies. In
-digital consumer products, we provide products for consumer companies including Funai, Orion, Apple, Inventec, .
Remgncom Telechlps Orient Power, Sagem, Bang & Olufsen, BenQ, Creative Technologies, Hitachi, JVC,.LG,
Lite-On, Teac, Premier, Teraoptlx ALCQ, BBK, Innowave, Coship, Kaon Media, Sandmartin, Nintendo, Panasomc
Philips, Samsung, Sanyo -Sharp, Sony, Toshlba Thomson Multimedia, TiVo, and Micronas. In networking, we
_provide products for.Broadcom, Atheros Conexant, Askey, Gemtech, Cisco, Sagem, Samsung, Tecom, Huawei,
ZTE, Alpha Networks Cybertan,, Global Sun, Adtran, Dare, Free Box, Avocent and Linksys. In wireless
communications, we prov1de products for companies 1nc1ud1ng Cambridge Silicon Radio, Sagem, Mitsumi, Alps,
Bang & Olufsen, LG, Maxon, RTX, Vtech and Wistron. In Internet computing, we provide a wide array of products
for companies including Asustek; Compal, Dell, FIC, Gigabyte, HP, IBM, Inventec, LG, Mitac, Quanta, Samsung, .
HonHai' (Foxconn), Fujrtsu Siemans, Seagate “Western Dlgltal Maxtor, Matrox and Wlstron .




The following tables illustrate the geographic regions in which our customers or licensees operate based on the
country to which the product is shipped by us or the logistics center or license revenue is generated.

Year ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
$ 21,871 § 19,600 $ 32,833
10,599 9,957 28,863
28,465 27,575 35,233
_ 30,321 25,214 36,715
TAIWAIL c...oveercrereceraeseecvesec s i s e rersssssbessnss st esbesessensans 91,219 109,254 125,491
China (including Hong Kong)..........cccccoseerereen. N 70,609 76,107 148,100
Other Asian countries........ ettt ety et st en e 21,574 27,334 41,963
$ 274,658 $ 295041 $ 449,198

Sales and Distribution

We sell a majority of our products to customers in Asia through our representatives. We distribute a majority of our
products through our logistics center. We also sell and distribute our products in North America and Europe through
manufacturers' representatives and distributors. Our manufacturer representative and distributor relationships are
generally cancelable, with reasonable notice, by either party.

Applications
As the Digital Consumer, Networking, Wireless Communications and Internet Computing industries continue to

expand and diversify, new applications are likely to be developed. We believe our products are designed to address
this expanding set of applications:

Wireless Intemet

Digital Consumer Networking Conmmunications Computing
TV Replayer Set-top Box VoIP Cellular Phone Information Appliance
Digital TV CD-ROM Dirive DSL Modem Data Pager Notebook PC
Digital Camera CD-RW Drive Cable Modem Cordless Desktop PC
Digital Camcorder =~ DVD-ROM Drive V.90/56K Modem Telephone Hard Disk Drive
DVD Player DVD-RAM Drive Wireless LAN GPS on Cellular LCD Mounitor
DVD Recorder DVD-RW Drive Network Phone Palm PC
VCD Player Web Browser Interface Card Bluetooth X-PC
MP3 Player Hand-held GPS Router/Switch Applications Server
Video Game Electronic Toys Wireless Modems ~ Graphics Card
PDA Smart Cards Printer
Electronic Book Memory Cards Copier/Scanner
Remote Controller  Electronic Bar Code Scanner

Organizer Thin Client System

Manufacturing

We purchase wafers and sorted die from semiconductor manufacturing foundries, have this product shipped directly
to subcontractors for packaging, testing, and finishing, and then ship the final product to our customers. Virtually all
of our subcontractors are located in Asia.

Wafer and Sorted Die. During 2004, our major wafer fabrication foundries were TSMC, Grace, Sanyo, Samsung and
. Seiko-Epson. In 2004, wafer sort, which is the process of testing individual die on silicon wafer, was performed at
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited, or KYE, Lingsen, Samsung, Sanyo, Seiko-Epson and TSMC. Although
capacity is not guaranteed, under these arrangements, we generally receive preferential treatment regarding wafer
pricing and capacity. In order to obtain, on an ongoing basis, an adequate supply of wafers, we have considered and
will continue to consider various possible options, including equity investments in foundries in exchange for
guaranteed production volumes, the formation of joint ventures to own and operate foundries and the licensing of our
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propnetary technology.  In 2001, we invested $50.0 million in Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or
GSMC, a Cayman Islands company, which has been funded mostly by investors who reside outside of China. In
March 2004 we invested an additional $33.2 million in GSMC. Grace is 2 subsidiary of GSMC and is located in
Shanghai, Peop]le s Republic of Chma Grace has been manufacturing our products since late 2003.

Packaging, Testing and Fi zmshmg In the assembly process, the individual die are separated and assembled into
packages. Following assembly, the packaged devices require testing and finishing to segregate confonnmg from
nonconforming devices and to identify devices by performance levels. Currently, all devices are tested and inspected
pursuant to our quality assurance program at our domestic or international subcontracted test facilities or at our test
facilities in Sunnyvale, Cahfomla before shipment to customers. Certain facilities currently perform consolidated
assembly, packaging, test and ﬁmshmg operations all at the same location. During 2004, most subcontracted
facilities performing the substantial majority of our operations were in Taiwan. The subcontractors with the largest
amount of our activity are KYE, Lingsen, and Powertech Technology, Incorporated, or PTI. We hold equity
investments in three subcontractors: Apacer Technology, Inc., or Apacer, KYE and PTI. For newly released
products, the initial test and finishing activities are performed at our Sunnyvale facility.

Research and Development

We believe that our future success will' depend in part on the development of next generation technologies with-
reduced feature size.' During 2002, 2003 and 2004, we spent $47.1 million, $43.1 million and $46.9 million,
respectively, on research and development. Our research efforts are focused on process development and product
development. Our research strategy is to collaborate with our partners to advance our technologies. We work
simultaneously with several partners on the development of multiple generations of technologies. In addition, we
allocate our resources and personnel into category-spemﬁc teams to focus on new product development From time
to time we invest in, Jomtly develop with, license or acquxre technology from other companies in the course of
developing products.

Competition . . Lo

The semiconductor industry is intensely competitive and has been characterized by price erosion, rapid technological
change and product obsolescence.. We compete with major domestic and international semiconductor companies,
many of whom have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing, distribution, manufacturing and other -
resources than us. Our low density memory products, sales of which presently account for substantially all of our
revenues, compete against products offered by Spansion (AMD/Fujitsu), Atmel, Intel, Macronix, STMicroelectronics,
PMC and Winbond. Our medium-density memory products compete with products offered by Spansion, Intel, ST .
Microelectronics, Mitsubishi, Samsung, Sharp Electronics and Toshiba. If we are successful in developing our high-
density products, these products will compete principally with products offered by Spansion (AMD/Fujitsu), Atmel,
Fujitsu, Hitachi, Intel, Mitsubishi, Samsung, SanDisk, Sharp Electronics, STMicroelectronics and Toshiba, as well as
any new entrants to the market In addition, competition may come from alternative technologies such as
ferroelectric random access memory device, or FRAM, technology.

The competition in the existing markets for some of our product families, such as the FlashFlex51 microcontroller
product family, is extremely intense. We compete principally with major companies such as Atmel, Microchip
Technology, Motorola Philips and Winbond in the microcontroller market. We may, in the future, also experience
direct competition from our foundry partners. We have licensed to our foundry partners the right to fabricate certain
products based on our proprietary technology and circuit design, and to sell such products worldwide, subject to
royalty payments back to us. The Emosyn products compete with Masked ROM and flash or EEPROM offerings
primarily from Infineon, Renesas, Samsung and STMicroelectronics. For the SCC products, the competition in the
existing markets is also extremely.intense. SCC competes' primarily with Microsemi, SiGe, Micromobio, Anadigic
and-Maxim especially in the WLAN (WiFi 802) markets.

We compete principally on price, reliability, functionality and the ability to offer timely delivery to customers. While
we believe that our low density products currently compete favorably on the basis of cost, reliability and
functionality, it is important to note that some of our principal competitors have a significant advantage overusin
terms of greater financial, technical and marketing resources.- Our long-term ability to compete successfully in the
evolving flash memoty market will depend on factors both within and beyond our control, including access to
advanced process technologies at competitive prices, successful and timely product development, wafer supply,
product pricing, ac'uons of our competltors and general economic condmons
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Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we employed 600 individuals on a full-time basis, all but 206 of whom reside in the
United States. Of these 600 employees, 90 were employed in manufacturing support, 254 in engineering, 125 in sales
and marketing and 131 in administration, finance and information technology. Our employees are not represented by
a collective bargaining agreement, nor have we ever experienced any work stoppage related to strike activity. We
believe that our relationship with our employees is good.

Executive Officers

The folldWing table lists the names, ages and positions of our executive officers as of December 31, 2004. There are

no family relationships between any executive officer of SST. Executive officers serve at the discretion of our board
of directors.

Name Age Position

Bing Yeh : 54 President and Chief Executive Officer

Yaw Wen Hu 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Derek Best 54 Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing

Michael Briner 57 Senior Vice President, Application Specific Product Group
Chen Tsai 53 Senior Vice President, Worldwide Backend Operations
Isao Nojima 60 Senior Vice President, Standard Memory Product Group
Paul Lui 54 Vice President, Special Product Group

Jack K. Lai 50 Vice Prestdent, Finance and Administration and

Chief Financial Officer

Bing Yeh, one of our co-founders, has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and has been a member of
our board of directors since our inception in 1989. Prior to that, Mr. Yeh served as a senior research and development
manager of Xicor, Inc., a nonvolatile memory semiconductor company. From 1981 to 1984, Mr. Yeh held program
manager and other positions at Honeywell Inc. From 1979 to 1981, Mr. Yeh was a senior development engineer of
EEPROM technology of Intel Corporation. He was a Ph.D. candidate in Applied Physics and earned an Engineer
degree at Stanford University. Mr. Yeh holds a M.S. and a B.S. in Physics from National Taiwan University.

Yaw Wen Hu, Ph.D., joined us in July 1993 as Vice President, Technology Development. In 1997, he was given the
additional responsibility of wafer manufacturing and, in August 1999, he became Vice President, Operations and
Process Development. In January 2000, he was promoted to Senior Vice President, Operations and Process
Development. In April 2004, he was promoted to Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Dr. Hu has
been a member of our board of directors since September 1995. From 1990 to 1993, Dr. Hu served as deputy general
manager of technology development of Vitelic Taiwan Corporation. From 1988 to 1990, he served as FAB
engineering manager of Integrated Device Technology, Inc. From 1985 to 1988, he was the director of technology
development at Vitelic Corporation. From 1978 to 1985, he worked as a senior development engineer in Intel
Corporation's Technology Development Group. Dr. Hu holds a B.S. in Physics from National Taiwan University and
a M.S. in Computer Engineering and a Ph.D. in Applied Physics from Stanford University.

Derek Best joined us in June 1997 as Vice President of Sales and Marketing. In June 2000 he was promoted to
Senior Vice President, Sales & Marketing. Prior to joining SST he worked for Micromodule Systems, a
manufacturer of high-density interconnect technology, as vice president marketing and sales world wide from 1992 to
1996. From 1987 to 1992 he was a co-founder and owner of Mosaic Semiconductor, a SRAM and module
semiconductor company. Mr. Best holds an Electrical Engineering degree from Portsmouth University in England.

Michael Briner joined us as Vice President, Design Engineering in November 1997, and became Vice President,
Products during 1999. He was promoted to Senior Vice President of Application Specific Product Group in February
2001. From 1993 to 1997, he served as vice president of design engineering for Micron Quantum Devices, Inc., a
subsidiary of Micron Technology, Inc., chartered to develop and manufacture flash memory products. From 1986
through 1992, he served as director of design engineering for the Nonvolatile Division of Advanced Micro Devices,
Inc. In this position, he was instrumental in helping AMD become a major nonvolatile memory manufacturer. Mr.
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Briner holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the University of Cincinnati.

Chen Tsai joined us in August'1996 as Senior Manager, Yield Enhancement and became Director, Product and Test
' Engineéring the same year.  In 1999, he became Director of Worldwide Backend Operations and in 2000 he was
promoted to Vice Président of Worldwide Backend Operations. In October 2004, Mr. Tsai was appointed Senior
Vice President of Worldwide Backend Operations. From 1992 to 1996, Mr. Tsai was Manager of Process
Development at Atmel Corporation, a manufacturer of semiconductors, where he was also-a Staff Engineer of
E2PROM from 1989 to 1992. From 1988 to 1989, he was Vice President of Technology at Tristar Technology, Inc
a wireless systems company. From 1980 to 1988 he held various positions at Xicor, Inc. and Teledyne ‘
Semiconductor. Mr. Tsai holds a B.S. in Physics from Show Chu Umvers1ty and a M.S. in both Physics and
Electncal Engmeermg from Florida Inst1tute of Technology ‘

Isao Nojima joined us as Vice President, Memory Design and Product Engineering in March 1993 and became Vice
President, Advanced Development in July 1997. He became Vice President of Standard Memory Product Group in
July 2000. In April 2004, he was promoted to Senior Vice President of Standard Memory Product Group. From
1990 to 1993, Mr. Nojima served as director of design engineering of Pioneer Semiconductor Corporation, now
called Pericom, a manufacturer of semiconductors. From 1980 to 1990, he served as design manager of Xicor Inc., a
nonvolatile semiconductor. company. From 1977 to 1980, he served as a senior design engineer for Intel Corporation.
From 1969 to 1976, he was a senior researcher at Toshiba's R&D Center in Japan. Mr. Nojima holds a B.S. and a
M.S. in Electrical Engmeenng from Osaka Umver31ty In Japan

Paul Luz Jomed us as V1ce President and General Manager of the Lmvex Product Line in June 1999 and became Vice
President, Special Product Group in June 2001. From 1994 to 1999, he was the president and founder of Linvex
Technology Corporation. From 1987 to 1994, he was the president and chief executive officer of Macronix, Inc.
From 1981 to 1985, he served as group general manager at VLSI Technology, Inc. where he was responsible for
transferring that company's technology to Korea. In addition, Mr. Lui has held senior engineering positions at the
Synertek Division of Honeywell and McDonnell Douglas. Mr, Lui holds a M.S.E.E. degree from University of
California, Berkeley and a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering and Mathematics from California Polytechnic State
Umver51ty, San Luis OblSpO ’

Jack Lai joined us as Chief Fmanc1al Ofﬁcer and Vice Pre51dent Finance and Administration and Secretary in
November 2003. Before joining SST he was Vice president and chief financial officer of Aplus Flash Technology,
memory design and manufacturmg company, from 2001 to 2003. Prior to this, Mr. Lai had served as vice pres1dent
of operations and finance and chief financial officer at WireX Communications, Inc., a software system developer,
from 2000 to 2001 4nd Vice president and chief financial officer at Genoa Electromcs Corp., a manufacturer of
computer and related systems, from 1998 to 1999. Mr. Lai holds M.B.A.’s from San Jose State University in San
Jose, CA and Culture Un1vers1ty in Ta1pe1 ‘Taiwan. He also holds aB.A.in Busmess Administration from Tamkang
Umversny in Taipei, Talwan ,

Available Information

We were incorporated in California in'1989. 'We make available free of charge on or through our Internet website,
http://www.sst.com; our annual'report on Form 10-K, quarterly repotts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K
and, if applicable, amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act as
'soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

Item 2. Properties .
As of December 31, 2004, we occupied three major facilities totaling 131 thousand square feet in Sunnyvale,
-California which our executive offices, research and development, principal manufacturing engineering and testing
facilities are located. Of the three major facilities occupied, we own one facility totaling 20 thousand square feet and
we lease 2 facilities totaling 111 thousand square feet. The leases on the two facilities expire in'2010. In addition,
we leased 4 facilities totaling 77 thousand square feet in Sunnyvale, California that were all unoccupied by the end of
2004. The leases on all four of these facilities expire in 2005.  We.also have 54 thousand square feet of office space
in'various domestic and international sites with expiration’ranging from 2005 to 2012. We believe'these facﬂltles are
adequate to meet our needs for at least the next 12 months

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In January 1996, Atmel Corporanon ﬁled suit against SST alleging that we mfrmged six U.S. patents. We
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successfully moved for summary judgment on two of the six asserted patents in September 1997. In January 2001,
Atmel withdrew its allegation that we infringed another patent. On May 7, 2002, a judgment was entered against us
in the amount of $36.5 million based on a jury’s finding that we infringed two of the three remaining patents. We
appealed the judgment on July 16, 2002. On September 12, 2003 the Court of Appeals upheld the jury’s verdict. On
November 18, 2003 the Court of Appeals denied our request for a rehearing, and in December 2003 we paid Atmel
$37.8 million to satisfy the judgment plus statutory interest accrued during the appeals. The payment was recorded as
other operating expense in the year ending December 31, 2003. In addition, on June 28, 2004 we paid $247 thousand
of legal related expenses incurred by Atmel pursuant to the court order.

The third patent remaining in the case, the ‘903 patent, expired in September 2001. The trial court has held that, if it
is found to be valid, certain of our products infringed that patent. A trial to determine whether the ‘903 patent is
invalid began on July 29, 2002. On August 5, 2002 the jury announced that it was unable to reach a verdict on our
invalidity defense, and a mistrial was declared. Atmel requested a new trial, but the Court stayed the matter until
after our appeal of the earlier judgment is resolved. At Atmel’s request, the Court directed the parties to conduct a
settlement conference before a Magistrate Judge. That settlement conference was scheduled for April 14, 2004 and
was subsequently rescheduled for September 7, 2004. No conclusion was reached during the settlement conference
on September 7, 2004. A new trial date on the invalidity of the ‘903 patent has been scheduled for June 27, 2005.
The impact related to the outcome of the remaining patent is undeterminable at this time.

In January and February 2005, multiple punative shareholder class action complaints were filed against SST and
certain directors and officers, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, following our
announcement of anticipated financial results for the fourth quarter of 2004. The complaints are captioned: Hunt v.
Sificon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00408 WHA (N.D. Cal.); Baker v. Silicon Storage
Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00295 PJH (N.D. Cal.); Grobler v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al.,
Case No. C 05 00376 MHP (N.D. Cal.); Talmo v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00390
MMC (N.D. Cal.); and DiCintio v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 0708 MMC (N.D. Cal.).
The complaints seek unspecified damages on alleged violations of federal securities laws during the period from
March 22, 2004 to December 20, 2004. Consolidation and the appointment of lead plaintiff are currently pending in
these purported class actions. We intend to take all appropriate action in response to these lawsuits. The impact
related to the outcome of these matters is undeterminable at this time.

In January and February 2003, following the filing of the putative class actions, multiple shareholder derivative
complaints were filed in California Superior Court for the County of Santa Clara, purportedly on behalf of SST
against certain directors and officers. The factual allegations of these complaints are substantially identical to those
contained in the putative shareholder class actions filed in federal court. The derivative complaints assert claims for,
among other things, breach of fiduciary duty and violations of the California Corporations Code. These derivative
actions have been consolidated under the caption In Re Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. Derivative Litigation, Lead
Case No. 1:05CV034387 (Cal. Super. Ct., Santa Clara Co.). We intend to take all appropriate action in response to
these lawsuits. The impact related to the outcome of these matters is undeterminable at this time.

From time to time, we are also involved in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. We have
incurred certain costs while defending these matters. There can be no assurance the remaining Atme! complaint, the
shareholder class action complaints, the shareholder derivative complaints or other third party assertions will be
resolved without costly litigation, in a manner that is not adverse to our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows or without requiring royalty payments in the future which may adversely impact gross margins. No
estimate can be made of the possible loss or possible range of loss associated with the resolution of these
contingencies. As a result, no losses have been accrued in our financial statements as of December 31, 2004.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarter to a vote of security holders.
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PART II

Item 5 Market for Regastrant's Common Stock Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eqmty
Securities .

Price Range of Common Stock

The principal U.S. market for.our Common Stock is the Nasdaq National Market. The only class of our securities
that is traded is our Common Stock. Our Common Stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market since November
21, 1995, under the symbol SSTI. The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low closing sales prices of the
Common Stock for the period indicated as reported by the Nasdaq National Market. These prices do not include
retail ' mark-ups, markdowns, or commissions. The closmg sales price of our Common Stock on December 31, 2004,
the last trading day in 2004 was $5. 95 : :

o

2003 | | High Close Low Close
First Quarter: January 1 - March 31, 2003 | $ 478 $ 225
Second Quarter: . -, .April 1 - June 30, 2003 4.80 : 231
Third Quarter: July 1 - September 30, 2003 10.00 4,19
Fourth Quarter: October 1:- December 31, 2003 14.11 9.32
2004 . o High Close . Low Close
First Quarter: ° , January 1- March 31, 2004 $13.46 $10.64
Second Quarter: . Aprll 1 - June 30, 2004 16.77 9.55
" Third Quarter: July 1 - September 30, 2004 9.52 5.42
Fourth Quarter: October 1 - December 31, 2004 7.77 '5.72
2005 : ) . ‘ ' ‘ High Close Low Close
First Quarter: ~ January 1- February 28, 2005 $5.72 $4.30

Appr‘oxiinate ‘Number of Equity Security Holders

As of December 31,2004, there were approximately 301 record holders of our Common Stock.

Dividends

We have never paid a cash dividend on our Common Stock and we intend to continue to retain earnings, if any, to
finance future growth. Accordmgly, we do not anticipate the payment of cash dividends to holders of Common Stock
in the foreseeable future. . .

Equity Compensatton Plan Informatmn

Information regardmg our equity compensatlon plans will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement w1th respect
to our Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the caption "Compensation - Equity Compensation Plan Information,"
and is incorporated by reference into thlS report. All of our equity compensation plans have been approved by our
shareholders. : : ‘
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Stock Purchase Program

(c) Total Numberof | (d) Maximum Number (or
Shares Purchased as | Approximate Dollar Value)
Part of Publicly of Shares that May Yet Be
(a) Total Number of | (b) Average Price Announced Plans or | Purchased Under the Plans

Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share Programs or Programs (1)

July 1 through - -- - $15,000,000

July 31, 2004

August 1 2,229,773 $5.77 2,229,773 $2,134,210

through

August 31,

2004

September 1 344,700 $5.79 344,700 $138,397

through

September 30,

2004

Total 2,574,473 $5.77(2) 2,574,473

(1) On July 29, 2004, we announced the approval by our board of directors of the purchase of an aggregate of up to $15
million of our common stock. The stock purchase program ended on December 31, 2004. Approximately
2,574,000 shares were repurchased under this program all during August and September 2004 for an aggregate
purchase price of $14.9 million. The purchase prices ranged from $5.48 to $6.12 per share. We did not
repurchase any shares during the fourth quarter of 2004.

(2) Represents weighted average purchase price during the repurchase period.
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Item 6. Selected Consohdated Fmancnal Data

The followmg selected consohdated ﬁnanc1al data should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. Certain amounts in our prior years’ consolidated financial statements have

been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclass1ﬁcat10ns have no impact on our

_ prev1ous1y reported net income (loss)

Year ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 .
‘ (in thousands, except per share data)
. Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Net revenues: .

Product revenues - unrelated parties. $ 408,708 $ 168,593 § 100,620 $ 86,549 § 180,234

Product revenues - related parties............ccocovrenn 66,608 90,025 143,401 169,980 224,497

License revenues - unrelated parties........ s 14,945 35,412 30,637 38,512 44,311

'License revenues - related Parties.......oocvernenienne - -- -- -- 156

Total net [eVenues............or....... R 490,261 294,030 274,658 295,041 449,198

Cost of revenues 264,139 248,161 206,246 218,775 322,093
Gross profit.......c..ccoceeeennne v v 226,122 45,869 68,412 76,266 127,105
Operating expenses:

Research and development.......... P PO 41,535 50,380 47,069 43,144 46,904

Sales and marketing.........coccceveeenninienncorenennene 27,968 26,794 25,498 22,272 28,295

General and administrative..........c..cccoeneeee. oo 14,966 17,855 17,097 14,398 18,292

Other.....ccoconee e e 3911 1,346 - 37,849 7,375

Total operating expenses....... ' 88,380 96375 89,664 ~ 117,663 100,866

Income (loss) from opevrations‘ : 137,742 (50,506) (21,252) (41,397) 26,239
Interest and other inCome........cooveeveievviiecieeiniien, 10;510 7,449 3,225 2,996 2,295
Interest and other €XPense......c..oovwvrmnercnrmecriiinnen. (691) 437 (242) (350) (281)
Impairment of equity investments..........oo.cccccincrne - T (3,274) (7,757) - (509)
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit from) )

income taxes and minority interest......... RV 147,561 (46,768) (26,026) (38,751) 27,744
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes.... 41,813 (17,772) (10,931) 26,416 3,906
Minority interest........c.oovveiverieiriinnenrrerceensresenenaee -- -~ -- -- 91)
Net income (1088).....oveciiivenrerniireeneeereeee e, § 105,748 $ (28,996) $ (15,095) $ (65,167) $ 23,929
Net income (loss) per share - basiC......c.ooceevrrrvrrennn. $ 123 §$ (032) § (0.16) § (0.69) $ 0.25
Net income (loss) per share - diluted........................ $ 1.13 8§ (0.32) § 0.16) $ (0.69) § 0.24
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets.....cc..ooveennnns e $ 512,590 § 446,760 $ 440,606 $ 396,361 § 502,331
Long-term obligations $ 279 $ 1,793 § 1,873 § 1,423 § 1,307
Shareholders' €qUILY.........cocveverrenveireiieciie e ereaneeen, $ 416,635 § 391,411 $ 381,851 §$ 331,497 $ 375,984
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties. All forward-looking statements included in this document are based on
information available to us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking
statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed. Factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below under the heading "Business Risks", as well as
those discussed elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a leading supplier of flash memory semiconductor devices for the digital consumer, networking, wireless
communication and Internet computing markets.

The semiconductor industry has historically been cyclical, characterized by periodic changes in business conditions
caused by product supply and demand imbalance. When the industry experiences downturns, they often occur in
connection with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles and declines in general economic conditions. These
downturns are characterized by weak product demand, excessive inventory and accelerated declines of selling prices.
In some cases, downturns, such as the one we experienced from late 2000 through 2002, have lasted for more than a
year. We began to experience a slow recovery during 2002 through the first half of 2003. During the second half of
2003 and the first half of 2004, demand for our products increased sharply and we began to see improvements in the
average selling prices of our products. However, we experienced a decrease in the average selling prices of our
products as a result of the slow-down in the demand for some of our products in the second half of 2004 and our
business could be further harmed again by prolonged industry-wide downturns in the future.

Our product sales are made primarily using short-term cancelable purchase orders. The quantities actually purchased
by the customer, as well as shipment schedules are frequently revised to reflect changes in the customer's needs and
in our supply of products. Accordingly, our backlog of open purchase orders at any given time is not a meaningful
indicator of future sales. Changes in the amount of our backlog do not necessarily reflect a corresponding change in
the level of actual or potential sales.

We derived 88.5%, 90.0% and 86.0% of our net product revenues during 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, from
product shipments to Asia. Additionally, substantially all of our wafer suppliers and packaging and testing
subcontractors are located in Asia.

Shipments to our top ten end customers, which excludes transactions through stocking representatives and
distributors, accounted for 31.5%, 37.7% and 29.1% of our net product revenues in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively.

No single end customer, which we define as original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, original design
manufacturers, or ODMs, contract electronic manufacturers, or CEMs, or end users, represented 10.0% or more of
our net product revenues during 2002, 2003 and 2004.

Since 2001, we have been increasing our out-sourcing activities for our customer service logistics to support our
customers. Silicon Professional Technology Ltd., or SPT, supports our customers in Taiwan, China and other
Southeast Asia countries. SPT provides planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic
functions for us in these regions. SPT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of one of our stocking representatives in Taiwan,
Professional Computer Technology Limited, or PCT. Please see a description of our relationship with PCT under
"Related Party Transactions." Products shipped to SPT are accounted for as our inventory held at our logistics center,
and revenue is recognized when the products have been delivered and are considered as a sale to our end customers
by SPT. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, SPT serviced end customer sales accounting for
57.4%, 64.2% and 52.9% of our net product revenues recognized. As of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, SPT
represented 68.5%, 73.4% and 55.1% of our net accounts receivable, respectively.

We ship products to, and have accounts receivable from, OEMs, ODMs, CEMs, stocking representatives, distributors,
and our logistics center. Our stocking representatives, distributors and logistics center reship our products to our end
customers, including OEMs, ODMs, CEMs and end users. Shipments, by us or our logistic center, to our top three
stocking representatives for reshipment accounted for 16.9%, 29.9% and 34.0% of our product shipments in 2002,
2003 and 2004, respectively. In addition, the same three stocking representatives solicited sales, for which they
received a commission, for 41.3%, 32.8% and 25.1% of our product shipments to end users in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
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Results of Operations: Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004
Net Revenues

Net revenues were $449.2 million in 2004, $295.0 million in 2003 and $274.7 million in 2002. Net revenues for
2004 increased compared to 2003 due to increased unit shipments and average selling prices, increased license and
royalty revenues and sales from companies acquired during 2004. Net revenues for 2003 increased compared to 2002
due to increased unit shipments and increased license and royalty revenues, offset by decreased average selling
prices. Average selling prices fluctuate due to a number of factors including the overall supply and demand for our
products in the marketplace, maturing product cycles and changes in general economic conditions.

Product Revenues. Product revenues were $404.7 million in 2004, $256.5 million in 2003 and $244.0 million in
2002. Product revenues for 2004 increased compared to 2003 primarily due to increased unit shipments by 35.32%,
and increased average selling prices by 16.2%. Product revenues for 2003 increased compared to 2002 primarily due
to increased unit shipments by 23.5%, partially offset by decreased average selling prices by 15.7%. The decrease
from 2001 to 2002 was primarily due to decreased average selling prices by 36.5%, partially offset by increased unit
shipments of our products by 31.6%. Shipping volumes fluctuate due to overall industry supply and demand.

License Revenues. Revenues from license fees and royalties were $44.5 million in 2004, $38.5 million in 2003 and
$30.6 million in 2002. The increase from 2003 to 2004 is due to increased license fees of $6.0 million from our new
licensees. The increase from 2002 to 2003 related primarily to increased royalty payments from our existing
licensees and up-front license fees from our new licensees. We anticipate that license revenues may fluctuate
significantly in the future.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $127.1 million, or 28.3% of net revenues, in 2004, $76.3 million, or 25.8% of net revenues, in 2003,
and $68.4 million, or 24.9% of net revenues, in 2002. The increase in gross profit in 2004 when compared to 2003 is
primarily due to improved manufacturing costs achieved by transitioning manufacturing technology to smaller
geometries, the sale of previously reserved inventory, increases in average selling prices and unit shipments by 16.2%
and 35.3%, respectively, as well as increased revenues from technology licensing by $6.0 million, offset by a net
increase of $28.5 million in our provision for inventory and adverse purchase commitments over the 2003 provision.
The increase in gross profit in 2003 when compared to 2002 is primarily due to increased unit shipments of 23.5%,
increased technology licensing revenues of $7.9 million and improved manufacturing costs as a result of transitions
to more advanced process technologies, offset by decreased average selling prices by 15.7%. Product gross margin
was 20.4% in 2004, compared to 14.7% in 2003 and 15.5% in 2002. The increase in product gross margin in 2004
when compared to 2003 is primarily due to improved manufacturing costs, increases in average seiling prices and
unit shipments by 16.2% and 35.3%, respectively, offset by an increase in our provision for inventory and adverse
purchase commitments of $28.5 million over the 2003 provision. The decrease in product gross margin in 2003 when
compared to 2002 was primarily due to decreased average selling prices of 15.7%, offset by improved manufacturing
costs as a result of transitions to more advanced process technologies. For other factors affecting our gross profit,
please also see "Business Risks - We incurred significant inventory valuation adjustments in 2002, 2003 and 2004
and we may incur additional significant inventory valuation adjustments in the future."

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of research and devélopment, sales and marketing, general and administrative and other
expenses. Operating expenses were $100.9 million, or 22.5% of net revenues, in 2004, $117.7 million or 39.9% of
net revenues, in 2003, and $89.7 million, or 32.6% of net revenues, in 2002. The decrease in 2004 from 2003 was
primarily due to the Atmel judgement of $37.8 million in 2003 and $1.0 million decrease in depreciation expense,
offset by the $5.9 million write off of in process research and development related to our newly acquired businesses,
increases of $5.9 million in headcount related expenses, $2.0 million in mask, wafer and evaluation parts, $2.0
million in general and administrative related to outside services and $1.6 million in commission expense and $1.5
million in operating lease impairment. The increase in 2003 from 2002 was primarily due to the Atmel judgement of
$37.8 million, offset by decreases of $2.8 million in bad debt expense, $1.7 million in mask, wafer and evaluation
part expenses, $1.5 million in legal fees, $1.1 million in commission expense and $1.1 million in depreciation
expense. We anticipate that we will continue to devote substantial resources to research and development, sales and
marketing and to general and administrative activities, and that these expenses will increase in absolute dollars.
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Research and development. Research and development expenses include costs associated with the development of
new products, enhancements to existing products, quality assurance activities and occupancy costs. These costs
consist primarily of employee salaries and benefits and the cost of materials such as wafers and masks. Research and
development expenses were $46.9 million, or 10.4% of net revenues, in 2004, $43.1 million, or 14.6% of net
revenues, in 2003, and $47.1 million, or 17.1% of net revenues, in 2002. Research and development expenses
increased by 8.7% from 2003 primarily due to increases in wafer, mask and evaluation part expenses of $2.0 million
due to the completion of certain technology projects during 2004, headcount related expenses of $2.2 million due to
profit sharing payments and increased headcount, offset by reduced depteciation expense of $797 thousand.
Research and development expenses decreased by 8.3% from 2002 primarily due to decreases in wafer, mask and
evaluation part expenses-of $1.7 million due to'cost reduction measures and the completion of certain technology
projects during 2003, headcount related expenses of $1.4 million due to a reduction in headcount and depreciation
expense of $761 thousand We expect research and development expenses will increase in absolute dollars.

Sales and marketing. Sales and marketmg expenses consist of commissions, headcount and related costs, as well as
travel, entertainment and promotional expenses ‘Sales and marketing expenses were $28.3 million, or 6.3% of net
revenues, in 2004, $22.3 million, or 7.5% of net revérues, in 2003, and $25.5 miltion, or 9.3% of net revenues, in
2002. The increase in sales and'marketing expenses from 2003 to 2004 by 27.1% was primarily due to increases in
headcount related costs of $2.4 million due to bonus and profit sharing payments and increased headcount, an
incréase in commission expense of $1.6 million due to increased sales, an increase in logistic center fees of $742
thousand due to 1ncreased act1V1ty through the logistic center, and increased marketing expenses of $395 thousand.
The decrease in sales and marketmg expenses from 2002 to 2003 by 12.7% was primarily due to decreases in
headcount related costs of $1.7 million due to the transfer of somé sales personnel to Asia and decreased facility and
information technology related expenses, a decrease in commission expense of $1.1 million due to reduced
commission rates and decreased marketing expenses of $849 thousand, offset by increased logistic center fees of
$652 thousand due to increased activity through the logistic center. We expect sales and marketing expenses will
increase in absolute dollars as we continue to-expand our sales.and marketing efforts. In addition, fluctuations in .
revenues will cause ﬂuctuanons in sales and marketlng expenses as it impacts our commission expense.

General and admzmstratzve Gerreral and admlnlstratlve expenses consrst of salaries and related costs for
adrmmstratrve executive and finance personnel recrultmg costs, professional services and legal fees and allowances
for doubtful accounts. General and admm1strat1ve expenses were $18.3 million, or 4.1% of net revenues, in 2004,
$14.4 million, or 4. 9% of net revenues in 2003, and $17.1.million, or 6.2% of net revenues, in 2002. The increase in
general and. admmlstratlve expenses from 2003 to 2004 by 27.0% was primarily due to increases in accounting and
outside consulting fees of $2.0 mllhon due to the increase costs of complymg with Sarbanes-Oxley reporting,
headcount related expenses of $1. 3 rmlhon due to profit sharing payments and increased headcount, and bad debt
expenses of $597 thousand due to a charge taken in 2004. The decrease in general and administrative expenses from
2002 to 2003 by 15. 8% was pnmanly due to decreases in bad debt expenses of $2.8 million due to a charge taken in
2003 related to one spec1ﬁc customer, a decrease in legal fees of $1.5 million due to decreased Atmel defense
'actrvrty, and lower depre01at10n and’ amortlzatlon expense ‘of $876 thousand, offset by increases in headcount related
costs of $2.4 million’ due to changes in allocatlons for facility, IT and insurance expenses. We anticipate that general
and administrative expenses will increase in dbsolute dollars as we scale our facilities, infrastructure, and headcount
to support our overall expected growth ‘We' may also incur additional expenses in connection with the Atmel,
shareholder class action and shareholdet derivativé 11t1gat10n For further information on this litigation see "Legal
Proceedings."

Other operating expenses. In 2004, other operating expenses of $7.4 million, or 1.6% of net revenues, were
comprised of $5.9 million related to the’ wnte off of i in-process research and development relating to the acquisition of
Emosyn and G- Plus. and a $1.5 million perrod charge related to an operating lease for an abandoned building. At the’
time of the Emosyn. acqursmon we estimated that the acquired IP R&D was approximately 30% complete and would be
completed over the next nine months atan estlmated cost of approximately $484 thousand, and at the time of the G-Plus
acquisition, we estimated. that the acqurred [P R&D prOJects were between 20% to 80% complete and would be
completed over the next fourteen months at an estimated cost of approxnnately $1. 2 million. The charge related to an
operating lease results from our purchase of a new bulldmg with the intent to vacate the leased property and
represents the estimated difference between the total d1sc0unted future sublease income and our discounted lease
commmnents relating to this. bulldmg In 2003 other operating expenses were $37.8 million, or 12.8% of net
revenues, which related entirely to the Atmel lltlgatlon settlement. The $37.8 million of settlement fees and interest
was pard in December 2003 There were no other operatlng expenses recorded in 2002.

Interest and other income. Interest and other income was $2.3 million, or 0.5% of net revenues, during 2004, $3.0
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million, or 1.0% of net revenues, during 2003, and $3.2 million, or 1.2% of net revenues, during 2002. Interest and
other income decreased from 2003 to 2004 primarily due to decreased realized gains from the sale of some of our
investments by $649 thousand. Interest income decreased from 2002 to 2003 primarily due to decreased interest rates
on invested cash, offset by realized gains of $649 thousand on the sale of some of our investments.

Interest and other expense. Interest and other expense was $281 thousand during 2004 as compared to $350 thousand
during 2003 and $242 thousand during 2002. Interest and other expenses in 2003 included a loss on sale of assets of
$118 thousand. Interest expense relates to interest on our notes payable and interest and fees under a line of credit
that we terminated in July 2002. .

Impairment of equity investments. During 2003, Insyde, a company in which we have an investment, completed an
initial public offering on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Since the initial public offering there had been a significant
decline in the market value of the investment. During 2004, we recognized a $509 thousand loss from the
impairment of our equity investment because Insyde’s stock price had declined below the acquisition cost for more
than six months. The impairment was considered to be "other-than-temporary" in nature, thus the investment value
was permanently written down to reflect the fair value. As of December 31, 2004 the recorded value of our
investment in Insyde was $456 thousand.

In 2000, we acquired a 10.0% interest in Apacer, a privately held company located in Taiwan that designs, manufactures
and markets memory modules, for $9.9 million in cash. Our investment in Apacer was valued at cost. Bing Yeh, our
President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is a member of Apacer's Board of Directors. In 2001, we
invested an additional $2.1 million in Apacer. In August 2002, we made an additional investment of $181 thousand At
the end of the third quarter of 2002, we determined that a continued and significant decline in Apacer's price per share
was other than temporary, and accordingly, in the third quarter of 2002, we recorded a period charge to impairment of
equity investments of $7.8 million to write down our investment in Apacer to $4.4 million which was determined using
the price per share paid for the additional investment in August 2002. As of December 31, 2004 the recorded value of
our investment in Apacer was $4.4 million.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes

In 2004, our income tax expense was $3.9 million on a net income before tax of $27.8 million. During the year of
2004, we maintained a full valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance was
determined in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, or SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires an assessment of both positive and negative evidence when
determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets are recoverable; such assessment is required on
a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S. in recent years represented sufficient
negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 and accordingly, a full valuation allowance was recorded against U.S.
deferred tax assets. We intend to maintain a full valuation allowance on the U.S. deferred tax assets until sufficient
positive evidence exists to support reversal of the valuation allowance. Our income tax benefit of $10.9 million in
2002 consisted of a 42.0% tax rate on our loss before income taxes. In 2003, we implemented an international tax
structure, which in conjunction with the full valuation allowance, will mean that going forward we will record a tax
expense as a result of foreign tax withholding and alternative minimum tax until such time that the valuation
allowance against the deferred tax asset is no longer required.

Segment Reporting

Our operations involve the design, development, manufacturing, marketing and technical support of our nonvolatile
memory technology and products. We offer low to medium density devices that target a broad range of existing and
emerging applications in the digital consumer, networking, wireless communications and Internet computing markets.
Our products are differentiated based upon attributes such as density, voltage, access speed, package and predicted
endurance. We also license our technology for use in non-competing applications. Our reportable segments are: the
Standard Memory Product Group, or SMPG, the Application Specific Product Group, or ASPG, the Special Product
Group, or SPG, the Emosyn Products, the SST Communications Corporation Products, or SCC, and Technology
Licensing. Refer to Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for revenue and gross profit information by
reportable segment. Our analysis of the changes for each segment is discussed below.

SMPG includes our three standard flash memory product families: the MPF family, the MPF+ family and the MTP
family. Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred certain MTP products from SMPG to SPG. Effective July 1, 2003,
we transferred the Small Sector Flash, or SSF, family from SMPG to SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred
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the last MTP series of products from SMPG to SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenues and gross profit information
have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer occurred as of January 1, 2002. SMPG revenues
were $269.4 million in 2004, $166.8 million in 2003 and $143.2 million in 2002. The increase in revenue in 2004
compared to 2003 was the result of both an increase in unit shipments of 26.9% and an increase in average selling
prices of 28.7%. The increase in revenues in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to increases in unit
shipments of our products by 23:4%, offset by decreases in average selling prices of 7.6%. Gross margin was 18.0%
in 2004, 12.8% in 2003 and 3.8% in 2002. The increase in gross margin in 2004 from 2003 was due to improvements
in the market price during the first three quarters as well as lower manufacturing costs achieved by transitioning
manufacturing technology to lower geometries. ‘The increase in gross margin in 2003 from 2002 was primarily due to
higher inventory valuation adjustments in 2002, the sale of previously reserved inventory in 2003 and product mix.

ASPG includes Concurrent ‘SuperFlash; Serial Flash, Firmware Hub, or FWH, and Low Pin Count, or LPC flash
products. ASPG also includes flash embedded controllérs such as the ATA controller. Effective January 1, 2003, we
transferred FlashFlex51 microcontroller products from ASPG to SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenues and gross
profit information have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer occurred as of January 1, 2002.
ASPG revenues were $73.2 million in 2004, $60.5 million in 2003 and $67.8 million in 2002, The increase in
revenues in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily due to an increase in unit shipments of 29.4%, offset by decreases
in average selling prices of 7.7%. The decrease in revenues in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to
decreases in average selling prices of 31.8%, offset by increases in unit shipments of our products of 32.9%. Gross
margin was 26.5% in 2004, 19.1% in 2003 and 36.2% in 2002. The increase in gross margin in 2004 from 2003 was
due to lower manufacturing costs achieved by transitioning manufacturing technology to lower geometries and
product mix. The decrease in gross margm in 2003 from 2002 was primarily due to decreases in average selling
pnces and product mix. :

SPG includes- ComboMemory, ROM/RAM Combos, SSF, MTP, FlashFlex51 microcontrollers and other special flash
products. Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred certain MTP products from SMPG to SPG and FlashFlex51
microcontroller products from ASPG to SPG. Effective July 1, 2003, we transferred the SSF family from SMPG to
SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred the last MTP series of products from SMPG to SPG. Accordingly,
our segment revenue and gross margin information have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer
occurred as of January 1, 2002. SPG revenues were $44.6 million in 2004, $29.3 million in 2003 and $33.0 million
in 2002. The increase in revenues in 2004 compared to 2003 was the result of both an increase in unit shipments of
5.8% and an increase in average selling prices of 34.3%. The decrease in revenues in 2003 compared to 2002 was
primarily due to decreases in average selling prices 0f 19.5% offset by an increase in unit shlpments of our products
by 12.3%. Gross margin wds 28.5% in 2004, 16.3% in 2003 and 23.6% in 2002. The increase in gross margin in 2004
from 2003 was due to lower manufacturmg costs achieved by transitioning manufacturing technology to lower

- geometries. The increase in gross margin in 2004 from 2003 was due to improvements in the market price during the
first three quarters as well as lower manufactunng costs achieved by transitioning manufacturing technology to lower
geometries. The decrease i in gross margm in 2003 from 2002 was prlmarxly due to decreases in average selling prices
and product mix.

Emosyn Products include the Theseus Platinum product family and- other flash memory based microprocessor chips.
We acquired a majority ownership'of Emosyn on September 10, 2004. The segment revenue of $16.9 million for
2004 is from the date of acquisition through the end of the year. Gross margin for 2004 was 14.0%.

SCC includes RF transceiver, synthesizer, power amplifier and switch products. We formed SST Communications
Corporation and acquired substantially all of the assets of G-Plus, Inc. on November 5, 2004, The segment revenue
of $593 thousand for 2004 is from the date of acqulsltlon through the end of the year. Gross margin for 2004 was
negative 35.8%.

Revenue and gross profit related to Technology Licensing was $44.5 million for 2004, $38.5 million for 2003 and
$30.6 million for 2002. The increase from 2003 to 2004 is due to increased up-front license fees from our new
licensees. The increase from 2002 to 2003 related prlmarlly to increase royalty payments from our existing licensees
and up -front license fees from our new llcensees
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Related Party Transactions

The following table is a summary of our related party revenues and purchases (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,2004
Revenues Purchases
Silicon Technology Co., Ltd.....ccoucvuierereererenrrnrenirecin, $ 7943 $ -
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities............... 2,359 707
Silicon Professional Technology Ltd......c.ccoevevvriccenenns 214,195 -
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation..... 156 59,278
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited........c.ccc.c..... -- 38,248
Powertech Technology, Incorporated........cooovevvvinnes -- 14,718
$ 224653 % 112,951
Year Ended
December 31,2003
Revenues Purchases
Silicon Technology Co., Lid....ccomenvnrencrcmncererennenene $ 3615 $ -
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities.............. 1,555 2,361
Silicon Professional Technology Ltd.......ccovcuviunnnaee 164,810 --
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation..... b 12
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited..........coee...... - 19,659
Powertech Technology, Incorporated.......ccccoovceiins - 9,280
$ 169980 $ 31,312
Year Ended
December 31,2002
Rewenues Purchases
Silicon Technology Co., Ltd......ccoocvvrormrirerveriinrrnsineeenn 3 2,089 $ -
Acer and related entities (1).....orooovveeoveeeeeressereerreeenennes 269 -
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities.............. 899 588
Professional Computer Technology Limited................ 141 -
Silicon Professional Technology Ltd.......ccoooverecvenrennee. 140,003 -
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited.............c....... - 18,163
Powertech Technology, Incorporated.........ccooovverennnee -- 8,378
$ ~ 143401 $ 27,129

(1) Excludes Apacer Technology, Inc. balances.
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The following table is a summary of our related party accounts receivable and accounts payable and accruals (in
thousands): .

Decmber 31,2003 Decmber 31, 2004

v Accounts Accounts
R _ Accounts Payable and Accounts Payable and
v ‘Receivable Accruals Receivable Accruals
Silicon Technology Co., Lid.......cc.ceeereerenmreencrmrreasrnnns $ 232 3 ‘ - % 322 % -
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities................ 400 736 458 - 320
Professional Computer Technology Limited................ - . 15 - -T2
Silicon Professional Technology Ltd........cc.occoevvernence. 40,588 550 32,037 . 694
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation..... - - 156 - . 17,227
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited ‘ - 6,896 - 13,702
Powertech Technology, Incorporated ........................... -- 2,533 - 3,867
L0 11 (1] OO P PO - 4 - -
| - S 41220 $ 10,734 $ 32973 $___ 35,882

In 1996, we acquired a 14% interest in Silicon Technology Co., Ltd., or Silicon Technology, a privately held
Japanese company, for $939 thousand in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEC and Chairman of our Board of
Directors, is also a member of Silicon Technology's board of directors. We acquired the interest in Silicon
Technology in order to provide a presence for our products in Japan. We now have our own office in Japan, although
Silicon Technology continues to sell our products. At December 31, 2004, our investment, which is carried at cost,
represented 9% of the outstanding equity of Silicon Technology. Our sales to Silicon Technology were made at
prevailing market prices and the payment terms are consistent with the payment terms extended to our other
customers. We are not obligated to provide Silicon Technology with any additional financing.

In 2000, we acquired a 10% interest in Apacer Technology Inc, or Apacer, for $9.9 million in cash. Apacer, a
privately held Taiwanese company and a related entity of Acer, is a memory module manufacturer. Bing Yeh, our
President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member of Apacer's board of directors. In 2001,
we invested an additional $2.1 million in Apacer. In August 2002, we made an additional investment of $181
thousand. The investment was written down to $4.4 million during 2002, please refer to Note 13 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statéments. At December 31, 2004, our investment represented 10% of the outstanding -
equity of Apacer. Our sales to the related Acer entities were made at prevailing market prices and the payment terms
are. consistent with the payment terms extended to our other customers. Our purchases from Apacer are made
pursuant to purchase orders at prevailing market prices. We do not have a long-term contract with Apacer to supply
us with products. If Apacer:were to terminate its relationship with us, we believe that we would be able to procure
the necessary products from other productlon subcontractors. We are not obligated to provide Apacer with any
additional financing. ‘

. In 2000, we acquired a' 15% interest in Professional Computer Technology Limited, or PCT, a privately held
Taiwanese company, for $1.5 million in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of
Directors, is also a member of PCT's board of directors. PCT is one of our stocking representatives. In May 2002,
we made an additional investment of $179 thousand in PCT. During 2003, PCT completed an initial public offering
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and we sold a portion of our holdings. Under Taiwan security regulations, a certain
number of shares must be held in a central custody and are restricted from sale for a period of time. The shares
available for sale within one year are carried at the quoted market price and included in long-term available-for-sale
investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2004. Shares required to be held in custody for greater than a
one year period are carried at cost and included in equity investments. In February 2004, we purchased $1.7 million
. of PCT’s European convertible bonds. As of December 31, 2004, the value of the stock and convertible bond
investment recorded as long-term available-for-sale is valued at $6.4 million and the restricted portion of the
investment carried at cost is recorded at $675 thousand. At December 31, 2004 our investment represented 13% of
the outstanding equity and 13% of the European convertible bonds of PCT.

PCT and it subsidiary, Silicon Professional Alliance Corporation, or SPAC, earn commissions for point-of-sales
transactions to its customers. Commissions to PCT and SPAC are paid at the same rate as all of our other stocking
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representatives in Asia. In 2002, 2003 and 2004 we paid sales commissions of $2.5 million, $1.2 million and $579
thousand, respectively, to PCT and SPAC. Shipments, by us or our logistics center, to PCT and SPAC for reshipment
accounted for 10.3%, 27.3% and 31.3% of our product shipments in 2002, 2003 and 2004. In addition, PCT and
SPAC solicited sales, for which they earned a.commission, for 19.5%, 12.0% and 3.3% of our shipments to end users
in 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In 2001, PCT established a separate company and wholly-owned subsidiary, Silicon Professional Technology, Ltd.,
or SPT, to provide planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic functions for us in Taiwan.
SPT now services substantially all of our end customers based in Taiwan, China and other Southeast Asia countries.
Products shipped to SPT are accounted for as our inventory held at our logistics center, and revenue is recognized
when the products have been delivered and are considered as a sale to our end customers by SPT. We pay SPT a fee
based on a percentage of revenue for each product sold through SPT to our end customers. The fee paid to SPT
covers the cost of warehousing and insuring inventory and accounts receivable, personnel costs required to maintain
logistics and information technology functions and the costs to perform billing and collection of accounts receivable.
SPT receives extended payment terms and is obligated to pay us whether or not they have collected the accounts
receivable. .

We do not have any long-term contracts with SPT, PCT or SPAC, and SPT, PCT or SPAC may cease providing
services to us at any time. If SPT, PCT or SPAC were to terminate their relationship with us we would experience a
delay in reestablishing warehousing, logistics and distribution functions which would harm our business. We are not
obligated to provide SPT, PCT or SPAC with any additional financing.

In 2000, we acquired a 1% interest in King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited, or KYE, a publicly held Taiwanese
company, which is a production subcontractor, for $4.6 million in cash. A member of our management team holds a
supervisor position at KYE. The role and responsibilities of a supervisor are defined and governed by Corporate Law
in Taiwan. The investment was made in KYE in order to strengthen the relationship between us and KYE. During
2001, KYE completed an initial public offering on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the investment has
been included in long-term available-for-sale investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004.
The investment was written down to $1.3 million during 2001 and is valued at $2.3 million as of December 31, 2004
based on the quoted market price. At December 31, 2004, our investment represented 0.5% of the outstanding equity
of KYE. Our purchases from KYE are made pursuant to purchase orders at prevailing market prices. We do not
have a long-term contract with KYE to supply us with services. If KYE were to terminate its relationship with us, we
believe that we would be able to procure the necessary services from other production subcontractors. We are not
obligated to provide KYE with any additional financing.

In 2000, we acquired a 3% interest in Powertech Technology, Incorporated, or PTI, a privately held Taiwanese
company, which is a production subcontractor, for $2.5 million in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman
of the Board of Directors, is also a member of PTI's board of directors. The investment was made in PTI in order to
strengthen the relationship between us and PTI. During 2003, PTI completed an initial public offering on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange and we sold a portion of our holdings. Under Taiwan security regulations, a certain number of
shares must be held in a central custody and are restricted from sale for a period of time. The shares available for sale
within one year are carried at the quoted market price and included in long-term available-for-sale investments in the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004. Shares required to be held in custody for greater than a one year
period are carried at cost and included in equity investments. In August 2004, we invested $723 thousand cash in PTI
shares available for sale. As of December 31, 2004, the value of the investment recorded as long-term available-for-
sale is valued at $14.1 million and the restricted portion of the investment carried at cost is recorded at $767
thousand. At December 31, 2004, our investment represented 2% of the outstanding equity of PTI. Our purchases
from PTI are made pursuant to purchase orders at prevailing market prices. We do not have a long-term contract with
PTT to supply us with services. If PTI were to terminate its relationship with us, we believe that we would be able to
procure the necessary services from other production subcontractors. We are not obligated to provide PTI with any
additional financing.

In 2001, we acquired a 9% interest in Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, or GSMC, a privately held
Cayman Islands company for $50.0 million in cash. In March 2004, we invested an additional $33.2 million in
GSMC. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member of GSMC's board
of directors. In addition, a member of our management team holds one supervisor position at GSMC. The role and
responsibilities of a supervisor are defined and governed by Corporate Law in the Cayman Islands. This investment
is carried at cost. GSMC has a wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation, or Grace, which is a wafer foundry company with operations in China. Grace began to manufacture our

23




products since late 2003. We do nothave a long-term contract with Grace to supply us with products. At December
31,2004, our mvestment represented 10% of the outstanding'equity of GSMC

In 2002, we acqulred a 6% mterest in Insyde Software Corporation, or Insyde a privately held Taiwanese company,
for $964 thousand in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member
of Insyde's board of directors. Duﬁng 2003, Insyde completed an initial public offering on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Under Taiwan security regulations, a certain number of shares must be held in a central custody and are
restricted from sale for a period-of time. The shares available for sale within one year are carried at the quoted market
price ‘and included in long-term:available-for-sale investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and
2004. Shares required to be held in custody for.greater than a one year period are carried at cost and included in
equity investments. . In January 2004, we invested an additional $133 thousand cash in Insyde’s convertible bonds.
The stock investment:was written' down $509 thousand during 2004, refer to Note 13 of these Notes to the
Consolidated Financial:Statements:.:At December 31, 2004, our investment represented 6% of the outstandlng equity
and 6% of the convertlble bonds of Insyde R .

In June 2004, we acqulred a 9% mterest in Advanced Ch1p Engmeermg Technology, or ACET, a privately held
Taiwanese company for $4.0 million cash. ACET, a related entlty of KYE, is a production subcontractor. Chen Tsai,
* our Senior Vice President of Worldwide Backend Operations, is also a member of ACET's board of directors. At
December.31, 2004 our mvestment Wthh is carrled at cost, represented 9% of the outstanding equity of ACET.

In November 2004 we acqulred a 30% interest in Nanotech Corporation, or Nanotech, a privately held Cayman
Island company, for $3.8 million cash. Nanotech, a development stage company, has a wholly owned subsidiary
which is in the process of establishing foundry operations in China. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of
our.Board of Directors, is also a member of Nanotech’s board of directors. -Tsuyoshi Taira, a member of our Board
of Directors, also invested in this round of financing. We areriot obligated to provide Nanotech with any additional
financing. At December 31, 2004 our mvestment Whlch is accounted for under the equlty method, represented 30%
of the outstandmg equity of Nanotech.: .

o
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Our critical accounting estimates are as follows:

Revenue recognition;
Allowance for sales returns;
Allowance for doubtful accounts;
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory and lower of cost or market;
Warranty accrual;
Litigation costs;
Valuation of equity investments;
~ Provision for adverse purchase commitments; and
~Accounting for income taxes.

Revenue recognition. Sales to direct customers and foreigh stocking representatives are recognized net of an
allowance for estimated returns. When product is shipped to direct customers or stocking representatives, or by our
distributors or SPT to end users, prior to recognizing revenue, we also require that evidence of the arrangement exists,
the price is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured. Our shipping terms are generally freight on
board, or FOB, shipping point and payment terms typically range from 30 to 75 days. Sales to distributors are made
primarily under arrangements allowing price protection and the right of stock rotation on merchandise unsold.
Because of the uncertainty associated with pricing concessions and future returns, we defer recognition of such
revenues, related costs of revenues and related gross profit until the merchandise is sold by the distributor. Products
shipped to SPT are accounted for as our inventory held at our logistics center, and revenue is recognized when the
products have been delivered and are considered as a sale to our end customers by SPT.

Most of our technology licenses provide for the payment of up-front license fees and continuing royalties based on
product sales. For license and other arrangements for technology that we are continuing to enhance and refine, and
under which we are obligated to provide unspecified enhancements, revenue is recognized over the lesser of the
estimated period that we have historically enhanced and developed refinements to the technology, approximately two
to three years (the upgrade period), or the remaining portion of the upgrade period from the date of delivery, provided
all specified technology and documentation has been delivered, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the
fee is reasonably assured. From time to time, we reexamine the estimated upgrade period relating to licensed
technology to determine if a change in the estimated upgrade period is needed. Revenue from license or other
technology arrangements where we are not continuing to enhance and refine technology or are not obligated to
provide unspecified enhancements is recognized upon delivery, if the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of
the fee is reasonably assured.

Royalties received under these arrangements during the upgrade period are recognized as revenue based on the ratio

of the elapsed portion of the upgrade period to the estimated upgrade period. The remaining portions of the royalties
are recognized ratably over the remaining portion of the upgrade period. Royalties received after the upgrade period
has elapsed are recognized when reported to us.

If we make different judgments or utilize different estimates in relation to the estimated period of technology
enhancement and development the amount and timing of our license and royalty revenues could be materially
different.

Allowance for sales returns. We maintain allowances for sales returns for estimated product returns by our customers.
We estimate our allowance for sales returns based on our historical return experience, current economic trends,
changes in customer demand, known returns we have not received and other assumptions. The allowance for sales
returns was $1.8 million, $1.3 million and $2.0 million as of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. If we
make different judgments or utilize different estimates, the amount and timing of our revenue could be materially
different.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. We maintain allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from the inability
of our customers to make required payments. We evaluate our allowance for doubtful accounts based on the aging of
our accounts receivable, the financial condition of our customers and their payment history, our historical write-off
experience and other assumptions. If we were to make different judgments of the financial condition of our
customers or the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
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make payments, additional allowances may be required. The allowance for doubtful accounts was $4.4 m1lhon $l 1
million and $1.2 nnlhon as of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory and lower of cost or market. Our inventories are stated at the lower of
cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or market value. We typically plan our production and inventory levels
based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which are highly unpredictable and can fluctuate substantially. The
value of our inventory is dependent on our estimate of future average selling prices, and, if our projected average
selling prices are over estimated, we may be required to adjust our inventory valué to reflect the lower of cost or
market. Our inventories include high téchnology parts and components that are specialized in nature or subject to
rapid technological obsolescence. We maintain allowance for inventory for potentially excess and obsolete
inventories and those inventories carried at costs that are higher than their market values. We review on-hand
inventory including inventory held at the logistic center for potential excess, obsolete and lower of cost or market
exposure and adjust the level of inventory reserve accordingly. Some of our customers have requested that we ship
them product that has a finished goods date of manufacture that is less than' one year old. In the event that this
becomes a common requirement, it may be necessary for us to provide for an additional allowance for our on hand
finished goods inventory with a date of manufacture of greater than one year old, which could result in additional
inventory write-downs. Our allowance for excess and. obsolete inventories includes an allowance for our on hand
finished goods mventory with a date of manufacture of greater than two years old and for certain products with a date
of manufacture of greater than one year old. For the obsolete inventory analysis, we review inventory items in detail
and consider date code, customer base requirements, known product defects, planned or recent product revisions, end
of life plans and diminished market demand. If we determine that market conditions are less favorable than those
currently projected by management such as an unanticipated declin€ in average selling prices or demand not meeting
our expectations, add1t1onal mventory write-downs may be required. The allowance for excess and obsolete
inventories and lower of cost or market was $27.4 million, $11.2 million and $32.2 million as of December 31, 2002,

2003 and 2004, respectively. }

Warranty accrual. Our products are generally subJect to warranty and we provide for the estimated future costs of
repair, replacement or customer accommodation upon shlpment of the product in the accompanying statements of
operations. Our warranty accrual is estimated based on historical claims compared to historical revenues and
assumes that we have to replace products subject to a claim. For new products, we use our historical percentage for
the appropnate class of product. ‘Should actual product failure rates differ from our estimates, revisions to the
‘estimated warranty liability would be requ1red The recorded value of our warranty accrual was $492 thousand, $187
thousand and $3.8 mllhon as of December 31, 2002 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Litigation costs. From time to tlme we are also involved in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business. We have incurred certain costs associated with defending these matters. There can be no assurance the
Atmel complaint, shareholder class action complamts shareholder derivative complaints or other third party
assertions will be resolved without costly lmgatlon in a manner that is not adverse to our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows or without requiring royalty payments in the future which may adversely impact gross
margins. As of December 31, 2004, no estimate can be made of the possible loss or possible range of loss associated
with the resolution of these contingencies. If additional information becomes available such that we estimate that
there is a possible loss or possible range of loss associated with these contingencies, then we would record the
minimum estimated liability, which could materially impact our results of operations and financial position.

Valuation of equity investments. We hold minority interests in companies having operations in the semiconductor
industry. We record an investment impairment charge when we believe an investment has experienced a decline in
value that is other than temporary. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of
underlying investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments, thereby
possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future. The recorded value of our equity investments was $62.3
million, $70.1 million and $121.7 million as of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Provision for adverse purchase commttments We maintain a prov1s1on for adverse purchase commitments for in
process orders at our vendors when there is a lower of cost or market valuation against our on hand inventory. Once
production has begun against our purchase orders, we are committed to purchasing the inventory or, if we cancel the
order, we are liable for all costs incurred up to the time of cancellation. If we have written down our on-hand
mventory of the ordered product for lower of cost or -market valuations, we must consider the impact to in process
inventory at our vendor. We evaluate our in process orders to determine the impact of canceling the order and the
impact of purchasing the inventory at a cost higher than the estimated current market value. If we determine that
market conditions become less favorable than those currently projected by management, such as an unanticipated
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decline in average selling prices or demand not meeting our expectations, additional inventory write-downs may be
required when the inventory is purchased into inventory. The recorded provision for adverse purchase commitments
was $1.3 million, $538 thousand and $8.3 million as of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Accounting for income taxes. During the third quarter of 2003 we recorded a charge to establish a full valuation
allowance against our deferred tax assets offset by a reduction in income tax payable as a result of a reassessment of
expected liabilities for 2003 and certain exposures. Accordingly, for 2003 we recorded an income tax expense of
$26.4 million. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we maintained a full valuation allowance on our net deferred tax
assets. The valuation allowance was determined in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, or SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires an assessment of
both positive and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets are
recoverable; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. Cumulative losses incurred in the
U.S. in recent years represented sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 and accordingly, a full valuation
allowance was recorded against U.S. deferred tax assets. We intend to maintain a full valuation allowance on the U.S.
deferred tax assets until sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of the valuation allowance. During
2004, wesmaintained a full valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets. At December 31, 2003 and 2004 the
valuation allowance against our deferred tax asset was $41.1 million and $27.2 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating activities. Our operating activities used cash of $14.0 million in 2004 and $7.6 million in 2003. For 2004,
our primary use of cash was for inventory purchases. Cash used in operating activities included an increase in
inventory of $133.6 million to support increased sales activities and forecast customer demands, a $7.1 million
increase in trade receivables from unrelated parties due to increased revenues and increases in other assets and
deferred revenues of $4.3 million. Cash generated from operating activities included a net income of $23.9 million, a
decrease in trade receivables from related parties of $8.1million due mainly to decreased payment terms with our
logistic center, SPT, an increase in related and unrelated trade accounts payable of $37.8 million due to increased
purchases of products and business activities, and an increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities of $7.5
million. Non-cash adjustments related to a provision for excess and obsolete inventories, write down of inventory to
market and adverse purchase commitments of $35.9 million, depreciation and amortization expense of $7.4 million,
in-process research and development of $5.9 million, a provision for sales returns and doubtful accounts of $2.2
million and a $1.5 million operating lease impairment charge. For 2003, our primary source of operating cash flow
was the timing of inventory purchases and payments to our vendors and service providers, offset by the payment of
$37.8 million to Atmel. Cash generated from operating activities included decreases in inventories of $29.5 million
due to increased sales, which reduced the amount of inventory held, and other current and non-current assets of $18.3
million, increases in trade accounts payable from related and unrelated parties of $12.4 million due to increased
strategic purchasing of certain products, increases in deferred revenue of $1.0 million and non-cash related
adjustments of $37.9 million. Non-cash adjustments related to $7.7 million of depreciation and amortization, $6.7
million of inventory valuation adjustments, $22.3 million decrease in net deferred tax assets and $1.3 million of tax
benefit from employee stock plans, offset by a $228 thousand charge to expense for provision for doubtful accounts.
Working capital uses of cash included a net loss of $65.2 million, increases in trade accounts receivable from related
and non-related parties of $19.9 million due to increased revenue at the end of 2003 compared to 2002 and increased
activity through our logistic center which has extended payment terms and decreases in accrued expenses and other
liabilities of $6.5 million.

Investing activities. Our investing activities used cash of $26.0 million during 2004 primarily due to investments in
equity securities of GSMC, ACET, Nanotech, PCT, PTI and Insyde of $33.2 million, $4.0 million, $3.8 million, $1.7
million, $723 thousand and $133 thousand, respectively, and the acquisitions of Emosyn and G-Plus which used cash
of $16.0 million and $4.6 million, respectively. Investing activities also used cash for purchases of available for sale
investments and restricted cash of $47.6 million and purchases of property and equipment of $8.0 million. Sales and
maturities of available for sale investments provided cash from investing activities of $91.9 million. Our investing
activities provided cash of $10.2 million during 2003, primarily due to a total of $12.0 million cash from the excess
sales and maturities of available-for-sale investments and restricted cash over the purchases of such investments,
offset by $1.8 million invested in capital expenditures.

Financing activities. Our financing activities used cash of $8.9 million in 2004 and provided cash of $4.3 million in
2003. During 2004, the repurchase of our common stock used cash of $14.9 million and the issuance of shares of
common stock issued under our employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of employee stock options provided
cash of $5.5 million. Repayment of loans used cash of $393 thousand and minority interest capital contributions
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provided cash of $820 thousand. ' During 2003, the cash provided was primarily from $4.5 million of commion stock
issued under our employee stock purchase plan'and the exercise of employee stock options, offset by $250 thousand in
loan repayments

Principal sources of liquidity at December 31, 2004 consisted of $104.0 mllllon of cash, cash equ1valents -and short-
term and long-term ava1lab1e for-sale mvestments
Purchase Commitments. As of December 31, 2004 we had outstanding purchase commitments with our foundry
vendors of $100.7 million for dellvery in 2005 We have recorded a l1ab111ty of $8 3 million for adverse purchase
commitments. N B

Lease Commztments “We have long term, non-cancelable building lease comm1tments In 2001 and the second
quarter of 2004, we recorded.charges to other operating expense of $756 thousand and $1.5 million, respectively,
relating to operating leases for.two unoccupied buildings. ‘These charges represent the estimated difference between
the total discounted future sublease income and our discounted lease commitments relating to these buildings.
Payments made on the lease have reduced the recorded combined l1ab111ty to $270 thousand and $976 thousand at
December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. r T

Future payments due under building lease, purchase commitments and other contractual obligations as of December
31, 2004 (in thousands):

Less than C More than

‘ R Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Notes payable.........lvvin. $ .. T4 % 705 $ 39 $ - $ -
Operating leases........;....cveeene. s 116,602 4,182 5,797 : 5,727 » 896 .
Purchase commitments.......... v 100,694 . 100,694 - - - Ce
Other long-term hablhty ........ : 480 . R © 480 - -
Total..cererrrrat e $_ 118520 $ 105,581 - $ 6316 § 5727 % 896

!

Operating Capital Requirements; We believe that our cash balances, together with funds we expect to generate from
operations, will be sufficient to meet our projected working capital and other cash requirements through at least the
next twelve months. ‘However, there can be ho assurance that future events will not require us to seek additional -
borrowings or capital and, if so required, that such borrowing or capital will be available on acceptable terms.
Factors that:could affect our short-term and long-term cash used or generated from operat10ns and as a result, our
need to seek additional borrowings or cap1tal include: - - - o

.the average sellmg pnces of our products,

customer demand for our products; ‘ S
the need to secure future wafer production capacrty from our suppliers;
the timing of s1gn1ﬁcant orders and of license and royalty revenue

merger, acqulsmon or Jomt venture pI‘OJeCtS
unanticipated research and development expenses assomated wrth new product mtroductrons and
the outcome of ongoing lltrgatron '

Please also see "Business Risks - . Our operatmg results ﬂuctuate s1gmﬁcantly, and an unant1c1pated decline in
revenues may drsappomt securlt1es analysts or investors and result i in a decline in our stock price."

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2004, the Fmanc1al Accountlng Standards Board, or FASB issued EITF Issue No. 03-01, or EITF 03-1,
“Thé Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its App11cat1on to Certain Investments” which provided
new guidance for assessing impairment losses on investments. Additionally, EITF 03-1 includes new disclosure
requirements for investments that are deemed to be temporarily impaired. In September 2004, the FASB delayed the
accounting provisions of EITF 03-1; however the disclosure requirements remain effective for annual periods ending
after June 15, 2004. We will evaluate the 1mpact of EITF 03-1 once final guidance is issued.

}
'
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In October 2004, the FASB approved EITF Issue 04-10 "Determining Whether to Aggregate Operating Segments
That Do Not Meet the Quantitative Thresholds” which addresses an issue in the application of paragraph 19 of SFAS
No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and related information. In November 2004, the FASB
delayed until further notice the effective date of this issue. We are currently assessing the impact of the disclosure
requirements of EITF Issue 04-10 on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.”
The amendments made by SFAS No.151 are intended to improve financial reporting by clarifying that abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as
current-period charges and by requiring the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities. The guidance is effective for inventory costs incurred beginning after
June 15,2005, We are currently reviewing the impact of SFAS No. 151 on the carrying amounts of our inventory.
We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 151 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R (revised 2004), “Share Based Payment.” SFAS 123R is a revision
of FASB 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in
which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for good or services or incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or
services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments. SFAS 123R focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS
123R requires an entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award over the period during which an employee is required to
provide service for the award. The grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments must be
estimated using option-pricing models adjusted for the unique characteristics of those instruments unless observable
market prices for the same or similar instruments are available. In addition, SFAS 123R requires a public entity
measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments based on its current
fair value and that the fair value of that award will be remeasured subsequently at each reporting date through the
settlement date. The effective date of SFAS 123R for SST is for the first interim or annual period after June 135,
2005. Although we have not yet determined whether the adoption of SFAS 123R will result in amounts that are
similar to the current pro forma disclosures under SFAS123, we are evaluating the requirements under SFAS 123R
and expect the adoption to have a significant adverse impact on our consolidated operating expenses.
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Business Risks :
RlSkS Related to Our Busmess o

Our operatmg results ﬂuctuate materlally, and an unanticipated decline in revenues may disappoint securmes
analysts or mvestors and result ina dechne in our stock price.

SEREU ’ i P

Although we were proﬁtable for the ﬁrst three quarters of': 2004 we. incurred net losses for 2002 and 2003 and the

. fourth quarter of 2004. Our operatmg results have fluctuated significantly and our past financial performance should
not be used to predict future. operating results. Our recent quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated, and
may,continue to fluctuate, due to the following factors, all of whrch are difficult to forecast and many of which are
out of our control:

" -e' the availability, timely delivery and cost of wafets of other manufacturing and assembly services from our

suppliers; ; ;
.competmve pncmg pressures and related changes in selhng prices;
fluctuations in manufactunng yields and significant yield losses; .
new product announcements and mtroductrons of competmg products by us or our competrtors
product o obsolescence O i
lower of cost or market obsolescence or other mventory adjustments
changes in demand for or in the mix of, our products;
the gainor 1688 of srgmﬁcant customers;
" market acceptancc of products utilizing our SuperFlash® technology;

changes in the channels through which our products are dlsmbuted and the timeliness of recelpt of
dlsmbutor rcsale mformat1on,

exchange rate ﬂuctuatlons

e. & o6 o o & @& o o

general economic; political and env1ronmental-related conditions, such as natural d1sasters
increases in allowance for doubtful accounts; ' ’

valuation allowances on deferred tax assets based on changes in estimated future taxable income;
difficulties in forecasting, planning and management of inventory levels;

unanticipated research and development expenses associated with new product introductions; and
the timing of significant orders and of license and royalty revenue.

As recent experience confirms, a downturn in the market for products such as personal computers and cellular
telephones that incorporate our products can also harm our operating results.

Our operating expenses are relatively fixed, and we order materials in advance of anticipated customer
demand. Therefore, we have limited ability to reduce expenses quickly in response to any revenue shortfalls.

Our operating expenses are relatively fixed, and we therefore have limited ability to reduce expenses quickly in
response to any revenue shortfalls. Consequently, our operating results will be harmed if our revenues do not meet
our projections. We may experience revenue shortfalls for the following reasons:

e sudden drops in consumer demand which may cause customers to cancel backlog, push out shipment
schedules, or reduce new orders, possibly due to a slowing economy or inventory corrections among our
customers;

e significant declines in selling prices that occur because of competitive prtce pressure during an over-supply
market environment;

¢ sudden shortages of raw materials for fabrication, test or assembly capacity constraints that lead our
suppliers to allocate available supplies or capacity to other customers which, in turn, harm our ability to
meet our sales obligations; and

¢ the reduction, rescheduling or cancellation of customer orders.

In addition, political or economic events beyond our control can suddenly result in- increased operating costs. For
example, the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001 have resulted in a substantial increase to our business insurance
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costs. In addition, under a current proposed. standard, we would be required to record compensation expense on stock
option grants and on shares purchased under our employee stock purchase program, which would substantially increase
our operating costs and impact our earnings (loss) per share.

We incurred significant inventory valuation and adverse purchase commitment adjustments in 2002, 2003 and
2004 and we may incur additional significant inventory valuation adjustments in the future.

We typically plan our production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which are
highly unpredictable and can fluctuate materially. The value of our inventory is dependent on our estimate of future
average selling prices, and, if our projected average selling prices are over estimated, we may be required to adjust
our inventory value to reflect the lower of cost or market. . As of December 31, 2004, we had $156.6 million of
inventory on hand, an increase of $110.5 million, or 240%, from December 31, 2003. Total valuation adjustments to
inventory and adverse purchase commitments were $10.4 million in 2002, $6.7 million in 2003 and $35.9 million in
2004. Due to the large number of units in our inventory, even a small change in average selling prices could result in
a significant adjustment and could harm our financial results. Some of our customers have requested that we ship
them product that has a finished goods date of manufacture that is less than one year old. As of December 31, 2004,
our allowance for excess and obsolete inventories includes an allowance for our on hand finished goods inventory
with a date of manufacture of greater than two years old and for certain products with a date of manufacture of
greater than one year old. In the event that this becomes a common requirement, it may be necessary for us to
provide for an additional allowance for our on hand finished goods inventory with a date of manufacture of greater
than one year old, which could result in a significant adjustment and could harm our financial results.

Cancellations or rescheduhng of backlog may result in lower future revenue and harm our business.

Due to possible customer changes in delivery schedules and cancellatlons of orders, our backlog at any partlcular date
is not necessarily indicative of actual sales for any succeeding period. A reduction of backlog during any particular
period, or the failure of our backlog to result in future revenue, could harm our business in the future. We
experienced a sharp downturn in several of our markets late in the fourth quarter of 2000 through 2002, as our
customers reacted to weakening demand for their products. We began to experience a slow recovery during 2002
through the first half of 2003. During the second half of 2003-and the first half of 2004, demand for our products
increased sharply and we had improvements in the average selling prices of our products. However, during the
second half of 2004, we experienced a demand slow-down for our products. Our business could be harmed by
industry-wide fluctuations in the future.

Our business may suffer due to risks associated with international sales and operanons

During 2002, 2003 and 2004, our export product and licensing revenues accounted for 92. 0%, 92.9% and 92 7% of
our net revenues, respectively. Our international business activities are subject to a number of risks, each of which
could impose unexpected costs on us that would harm our operating results. These risks include:

difficulties in complying with regulatory requirements and standards;
tariffs and other trade barriers;

costs and risks of localizing products for foreign countries;

reliance on third parties to distribute our products;

extended accounts receivable payment cycles;

potentially adverse tax consequences;

limits on repatriation of earnings; and ) .
&  burdens of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws

In addition, we have made equity investments in companies with operations in China, Japan and Taiwan. The value of
our investments is subject to the economic and political conditions particular to their industry, their countries and to
foreign exchange rates and to the global economy. If we determine that a change in the recorded value of an investment
is other than temporary, we will adjust the value of the investment. Such an expense could have a negative impact on
our operating results.

We derived 88.5%, 90.0% and 86.0% of our net product revenues from Asia during 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively. Additionally, substantially all of our wafer suppliers and packaging and testing subcontractors are
located in Asia. Any kind of economic, political or environmental instability in this region of the world can have a
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_'severe negative impact on our operating results due to the large concentration of our production and sales activities in

;this region. For example, during 1997 and 1998, several Asian countries where we do business, such as Japan,
Taiwan and Korea, experienced severe currency fluctuation and economic deflation, which negatively impacted our
revenues and also negatively impacted our ability to collect payments from customers. During this period, the lack of
capital in the financial sectors of these countries made-it difficult for our customers to open letters of crédit or other
financial instruments that are guaranteed by foreign banks. Finally, the economic situation during this period
exacerbated a decline in selling pnces for our products as our competitors reduced product prices to generate needed
cash. - :

’

1t should alse be noted that we are greatly impacted by the political, economic and military conditions in Taiwan. .
Taiwan and China are continuously engaged in political disputes and both countries have continued to conduct
military exercises in or near the other's territorial waters and airspace. Such disputes may continue and even escalate,
resulting in an economic embargo, a disruption in shipping or even military hostilities. Any of these events could
delay production or shipment of our products. Any kind of activity of this nature or even rumors of such activity
could harm our operations, revenues, operatmg results, and stock price.

Tervrorlst attacks and threats, and govemment responses thereto; could harm our business.

_Terrorist attacks in the United States or abroad against American interests or citizens, U.S. retaliation for these
attacks, threats of. addmonal terrorist activity and the war in Irag have caused our customer base to become more
cautious. Any escalatlon in these events or similar future events may disrupt our operations or those of our
customers, distributors and supphers affect the availability of materials needed to manufacture our products, or affect
the means to transport those materials to manufacturing facilities and finished products to customers. In addition,
these events have had and may continue to have an adverse impact on the U S. and world economy in general and
consumer spendmg in pamcular Wthh ¢ould harm our busmess : .

' We do not typically enter mto long-term contracts w1th our customers, and the loss of a ma]or customer could
harm our business. o . «

We do not typically enter into, 1ohg-term contracts with our customers. In addition, we cannot be certain as to future
order levels from-our customers. In the past, when we have entered into a long-term contract, the contract has
generally been termmable at the convemence of the customer.

- 'We depend on stocking re‘presentatives and distributors to generate a majority of our revenues.

We rely on stocking representatives and distributors to establish and maintain customer relationships and to sell our
products. These stocking representatives and distributors could discontinue their relationship with us or discontinue
selling our products.at any time. The majority of our stocking representatives are located in Asia. The loss of our
relationship with any stockmg representatlve or distributor could harm our operating results by impairing our ability
to sell our products to our end customers.

We depend on SPT, our logistics center, to support many of our customers in Asia.

Since March 2001, we have been increasing our out-sourcing activities with our customer service logistics to support
our customers. Currently SPT supports our customers in Taiwan, China and other Southeast Asia countries. SPT
provides planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic functions for us in these regions. SPT
is a wholly owned subsidiary of one of our stocking representatives in Taiwan, PCT. During 2002, 2003 and 2004,
SPT serviced end customer shipments accounted for 57.4%, 64.2% and 52.9% of our net product revenues

. recognized, respectively. As of December 31, 2002, 2003, and 2004, SPT accounted for 68.5%, 73.4% and 55.1%,
respectively, of our net accounts receivable. For further description of our relationships with PCT and -SPT, please
refer to."Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analy51s of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operatron Related
Party Transactlons "

We do not have any long-term contracts with SPT, PCT or SPAC, and SPT, PCT or SPAC may cease provrdmg
services to us at any time. If SPT, PCT or SPAC were to terminate their relationship with us we would experience a
delay in reestablishing warehousing, logistics and distribution functions, which could impair our ability to collect
accounts receivable from SPT.and may harm our business.




We depend on a limited number of foreign foundries to manufacture our products, and these foundries may
not be able to satisfy our manufacturing requirements, which could cause our revenues to decline.

We outsource substantially all of our manufacturing and testing activities. We currently buy all of our wafers and
sorted die from a limited number of suppliers. Substantially all of our products are manufactured by six foundries,
TSMC in Taiwan, Sanyo, Seiko-Epson and Yasu in Japan, Grace in China, and Samsung in Korea. In March 2001,
we invested $50.0 million in GSMC, a Cayman Islands company, for a wafer foundry project located in Shanghai,
China. In March 2004, we invested an additional $33.2 million in GSMC. Grace, a wholly owned subsidiary of
GSMC, began manufacturing some of our products early in the fourth quarter of 2003. We anticipate that these
foundries, together with Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronic Company Limited, or HHNEC, and Vanguard in
Taiwan will manufacture substantially all of our products in 2005. If these suppliers fail to satisfy our requirements
on a timely basis at competitive prices we could suffer manufacturing delays, a possible loss of revenues or higher
than anticipated costs of revenues, any of which could harm our operating results.

Our revenues may be impacted by our ability to-obtain adequate wafer supplies from our foundries. The foundries
with which we currently have arrangements, together with any additional foundry at which capacity might be
obtained, may not be willing or able to satisfy all of our manufacturing requirements on a timely basis at favorable
prices. In addition, we have encountered delays in qualifying new products and in ramping-up new product
production and we could experience these delays in the future. We are also subject to the risks of service disruptions,
raw material shortages and price increases by our foundries. Such disruptions, shortages and price increases could
harm our operating results. ‘

Manufacturing capacity has in the past been difficult to secure and if capacity constraints arise in the future
our revenues may decline.

In order to grow, we need to increase our present manufacturing capacity. We currently believe that the existing
capacity plus additional future capacity from Grace, HHNEC and Vanguard available to us will be sufficient through
2005. However, events that we have not foreseen could arise which would limit our capacity. Similar to our $83.2
million investment in GSMC, we may determine that it is necessary to invest substantial capital in order to secure
appropriate production capacity commitments. If we cannot secure additional manufacturing capacity on acceptable
terms, our ability to grow will be impaired and our operating results will be harmed.

Our cost of revenues may increase if we are required to purchase manufacturing capacity in the future.

To obtain additional manufacturing capacity, we may be required to make deposits, equipment purchases, loans, joint
ventures, equity investments or technology licenses in or with wafer fabrication companies. These transactions could
involve a commitment of substantial amounts of our capital and technology licenses in return for production capacity.
We may be required to seek additional debt or equity financing if we need substantial capital in order to secure this
capacity and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain such financing.

If our foundries fail to achieve acceptable wafer manufacturing yields, we will experience higher costs of
revenues and reduced product availability.

The fabrication of our products requires wafers to be produced in a highly controlled and ultra-clean environment.
Semiconductor companies that supply our wafers have, from time to time, experienced problems achieving
acceptable wafer manufacturing yields. Semiconductor manufacturing yields are a function of both our design
technology and the foundry's manufacturing process technology. Low yields may result from marginal design or
manufacturing process drift. Yield problems may not be identified until the wafers are well into the production
process, which often makes them difficult, time consuming and costly to correct. Furthermore, we rely on
independent foundries for our wafers which increases the effort and time required to identify, communicate and
resolve manufacturing yield problems. If our foundries fail to achieve acceptable manufacturing yields, we will
experience higher costs of revenues and reduced product availability, which could harm our operating results.

If our foundries discontinue the manufacturing processes needed to meet our demands, or fail to upgrade the
technologies needed to manufacture our products, we may face production delays and lower revenues.

Our wafer and product requirements typically represent a small portion of the total production of the foundries that
manufacture our products. As a result, we are subject to the risk that a foundry will cease production on an older or
lower-volume manufacturing process that it uses to produce our parts. Additionally, we cannot be certain our
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foundries will continue to devote resources to advance the process technologies on which the manufacturing of our
products is based. Elther one of these events could increase our costs and harm our ability to deliver our products on
trme ’ o

Our dependence on thlrd-party subcontractors to assemble and test our products subjects us to a number of
rlsks, 1nclud1ng an madequate supply of products and higher costs of materials.

We depend on mdependent subcontractors to assemble and test our products. Our reliance on these subcontractors
mvolves the followmg significant risks: .

| reduced control over delivery schedules and quahty,
. the potent1a1 lack of adequate capacity during periods of strong demand;

difficulties selécting and integrating new subcontractors;

limited warranties on products supphed to us;

potential increases in prices due to capacity shortages and other factors; and
potentlal misappropriation of our intellectual property.

These risks may lead to increased costs, delayed product dellvery or loss of compeutlve advantage wh1ch would
harm our proﬁtabrhty and customer relationships. t

Because our flash memeory pro'ducts typically have lengthy sales cycles, we may experience substantial delays
between incurring expenses related to research and development and the generation of revenues.

Due to the flash meﬁlory product cycle we usually require more than nine months to realize volume shipments after
we first contact a customer. We first work with customers to achieve a design win, which may take three months or

longer. Our customers then complete the. design, testing and evaluation process and begin to ramp up production, a
period which typically lasts an add1t1ona1 six months or longer. As a result, a significant period of time may elapse

between our research and development efforts and our realization of revenue, if any, from volume purchasing of our
products by our customers.

We face intense competntlon from compames with s1gmﬁcantly greater financial, technical andl marketing
resources that could harm sales of our products.

.greater financial, technical, marketmg, distribution, and other resources than we do. Many of our competitors have
their own facilities for the product1on of semiconductor memory components and have recently added significant
capac1ty for such production. Our low density memory products, sales of which presently account for substantially
all of our revenues, compete agamst products offered by Spansion (AMD/Fujitsu), Atmel, Intel, Macronix,
STMicroelectronics, PMC and Winbond. Our medium-density memory products compete with products offered by
Spansion, Intel, ST Microelectronics, M1tsub1sh1 Samsung, Sharp Electronics and Toshiba. If we are successful in
developing our high-density products, these products will compete principally with products offered by Spansion
(AMD/Fujitsu), Atmel, Fujitsu, Hitachi, Intel, Mitsubishi, Samsung, SanDisk, Sharp Electronics, STMicroelectronics
and Toshiba, as well as any new entrants to the market.

In add1t1on we may in the future expenence d1rect competition from our foundry partners. We have licensed to our
foundry partners the right to fabricate products based on our technology and circuit design, and to sell such products
worldwide, subject to our receipt of royalty. payments.

Competition may also come from alternatwe technologles such as ferroelectnc random access memory devices, or
FRAM, or other developmg technologies.

Our markets are subject to rapld technologlcal change ‘and, therefore, our success depends on our ability to
develop and intreduce new products.

The markets for our products are characterized by:

e rapidly changing technologies;
e evolving and competing industry standards;
e changing customer needs; .
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e frequent new product introductions and enhancements;
® increased integration with other functions; and
® rapid product obsolescence.

To develop new products for our target markets, we must develop, gain access to and use leading technologies in a
cost-effective and timely manner and continue to expand our technical and design expertise. In addition, we must
have our products designed into our customers' future products and maintain close working relationships with key
customers in order to develop new products that meet their changing needs.

In addition, products for communications applications are based on continually evolving industry standards. Our
ability to compete will depend on our ability to identify and ensure compliance with these industry standards. Asa
result, we could be required to invest significant time and effort and incur significant expense to redesign our
products and ensure compliance with relevant standards. We believe that products for these applications will
_encounter intense competition and be highly price sensitive. While we are currently developing and introducing new
products for these applications, we cannot assure you that these products will reach the market on time, will
satisfactorily address customer needs, will be sold in high volume, or will be sold at profitable margins.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify new product opportunities successfully, develop and bring to
market new products, achieve design wins or respond effectively to new technological changes or product
announcements by our competitors. In addition, we may not be successful in developing or using new technologies
or in developing new products or product enhancements that achieve market acceptance. Our pursuit of necessary
technological advances may require substantial time and expense. Failure in any of these areas could harm our
operating results.

Our future success depends in part on the continued service of our key design engineering, sales, marketing
and executive personnel and our ability to identify, recruit and retain additional personnel.

We are highly dependent on Bing Yeh, our President and Chief Executive Officer, as well as the other principal -
members of our management team and engineering staff. There is intense competition for qualified personnel in the
semiconductor industry, in particular the highly skilled design, applications and test engineers involved in the
development of flash memory technology. Competition is especially intense in Silicon Valley, where our corporate
headquarters is located. We may not be able to continue to attract and retain engineers or other qualified personnel
necessary for the development of our business or to replace engineers or other qualified personnel who may leave our
employ in the future. Our anticipated growth is expected to place increased demands on our resources and will likely
require the addition of new management and engineering personnel and the development of additional expertise by
existing management personnel. The failure to recruit and retain key design engineers or other technical and
management personnel could harm our business.

Our ability to compete successfully depends, in part, on our ability to protect our intellectual property rights.

We rely on a combination of patent, trade secrets, copyrights, mask work rights, nondisclosure agreements and other
contractual provisions and technical measures to protect our intellectual property rights. Policing unauthorized use of
our products, however, is difficult, especially in foreign countries. Litigation may continue to be necessary in the
future to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to determine the validity and scope of
the proprietary rights of others, or to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity. Litigation could result in
substantial costs and diversion of resources and could harm our business, operating results and financial condition
regardless of the outcome of the litigation. We own 114 patents in the United States relating to our products and
processes, with expiration dates ranging from 2010 to 2023, and have filed for several more. In addition, we hold
several patents in Europe and Canada, and have filed several foreign patent applications in Europe, Japan, Korea,
Taiwan and Canada. We cannot assure you that any pending patent application will be granted. Our operating results
could be harmed by the failure to protect our intellectual property.

If we become engaged in securities class action suits and derivative suits, we may become subject to -
consuming and costly litigation and divert management resources and could impact our stock price.

Securities class action law suits are often brought against companies, particularly technology companies, following

periods of volatility in the market price of their securities. Irrespective of the validity or the successful assertion of
such claims, we could incur significant costs and management resources in defending against such claims.
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In January and February 2005, multiple putative shareholder class action complaints were filed against us and certain’
directors and officers in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, following our
announcement of anticipated financial results for the fourth quarter 6f 2004. The complaints seek unspec1ﬁed
damages on alleged violations of federal securities laws during the period from March 22, 2004 to December 20,
2004. Consolidation and the apporntment of a lead plaintiff are currently pending in these purported class actions.

In January and February 2005, followmg the filing of the putative class action lawsuits, multiple shareholder .
derivative complaints were filed in California Superior Court for the County of Santa Clara, purportedly on behalf of
SST against certain directors and officers. The factual allegations of these complaints are substantially identical to
those contained in the putative shareholder class actions filed in federal court. The derivative complaints assert
claims for, among other things, breach of fiduciary duty and violations of the California Corporations Code.

Public announcements ma'y‘hurt' our stock price. During the course of lawsuits there may be public announcemehts of
the results of hearings, motions, and other interim proceedings or developments in the litigation. If securities analysts
or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could harm the market price of our stock.

Our litigation may be expensive may be protracted and confidential information may be compr()mised We have
incurred certain costs associated with defending these matters, and at any time, additional claims may be filed against
us, which could increase the risk, expense and duration of the litigation. Further, because of the amount of discovery
required in connection with this type of litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential information could be
compromlsed by disclosure. For more information with respect to our litigation, please also see "Part I, Item 3- Legal
Proceedings." e ‘ .

If we are accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of other parties we may become subject to time-
consuming and. costly lmgatlon If we lose, we could suffer a significant impact on our business and be forced
to pay damages.

Third parties may assert that our products infringe their proprietary rights, or may assert claims for indemnification
resulting from infringement claims against us. Any such claims may cause.us to delay or cancel shipment of our
products or pay damages that could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
irrespective of the validity or the successful assertion of such claims, we could incur significant costs in defendmg
against such claims.

In the past we were sued both by Atmel Corporation and Intel Corporation regarding patent infringement issues and
sued Winbond Electromcs Corporation regarding our contractual relationship with them. Significant management
time and financial resources have been devoted to defendmg these lawsuits. We settled with Intel in May 1999, with
Winbond in October 2000, and the Atmel litigation is ongomg

In addition to the Atmel Intel and meond actions, we receive from time to time, letters or communications from
other companies stating that such companies have patent rights that involve our products. Since the design of all of
our products is based on SuperFlash technology, any legal finding that the use of our SuperFlash technology infringes
the patent of another company would have a significantly negative effect on our entire product line and operating
results. Furthermore, if such a finding were made, there can be no assurance that we could license the other -
company's technology on comrnercrally reasonable terms or that we could successfully operate without such
technology. Moreover if we are found to infringe, we could be required to pay damages to the owner of the
protected technology and could be prohibited from making, using, selling, or importing into the United States any.
products that infringe the protected technology. In addition, the management attention consumed by and legal cost
associated with any litigation could harm our operating results. -

Public announcements may hurt our stock price. During the course of lawsuits there may be public announcements of
the results of hearmgs motions, and other interim proceedings or developments in the litigation. If securmes ‘analysts
or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could harm the market price of our stock.

Our litigation may be expensxve may be protracted and conf idential information may be compromised. On April 8,
2002, a jury found that we w1llfully infringed Atmel's '811 and '829 patents, and awarded Atmel $20.0 million in
actual damages. On May 7, 2002, the court entered judgment in the total amount of $36.5 million, which includes the
original $20.0 million. The '811 and '829 patents expired in February 2002. Therefore, we are not precluded from
selling any of our products. On December 12, 2003, we paid Atmel $37.8 million to satisfy the judgement plus
statutory interest accrued during the appeal. The ‘903 patent case still remains open. The court found that we
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infringed the ‘903 patent but the jury was unable to unanimously decide whether the ‘903 is valid and a mistrial was
declared. A settlement conference scheduled for April 14, 2004 was rescheduled for September 7, 2004, No
conclusion was reached during the settlement conference on September 7, 2004. A new trial date on the invalidity of
the ‘903 patent has been scheduled for June 27, 2005. If we are not successful in reaching a settlement, litigation
may continue to consume substantial amounts of our financial and managerial resources. We have incurred certain
costs associated with defending this matter, and at any time Atmel may file additional claims against us, which could
increase the risk, expense and duration of the litigation. Further, because of the substantial amount of discovery
required in connection with this type of litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential information could be
compromised by disclosure. For more information with respect to our litigation, please also see "Part I, Item 3- Legal
Proceedings."

If an earthquake or other natural disaster strikes our manufacturing facility or those of our suppliers, we

would be unable to manufacture our products for a substantial amount of time and we would experience lost
revenues.

Our corporate headquarters are located in California near major earthquake faults. In addition, some of our suppliers
are located near fault lines. In the event of a major earthquake or other natural disaster near our headquarters, our
operations could be harmed. Similarly, a major earthquake or other natural disaster such as typhoon near one or more
of our major suppliers, like the earthquakes in September 1999 and March 2002 or the typhoon in September 2001
that occurred in Taiwan, could potentially disrupt the operations of those suppliers, which could then limit the supply
of our products and harm our business.

A virus or viral outbreak in Asia could harm our business. -

We derive substantially all of our revenues from Asia and our logistics center is located in Tajwan. A virus or viral
outbreak in Asia, such as the recent SARS outbreak in early 2003, could harm the operations of our suppliers,
distributors, logistics center and those of our end customer, which could harm our business.

Prolonged electrical power outages, energy shortages, or increased costs of energy could harm our business.

Our design and process research and development facilities and our corporate offices are located in California,.which
is susceptible to power outages and shortages as well as increased energy costs. To limit this exposure, all corporate
computer systems at our main California facilities are on battery back-up. In addition, all of our engineering and
back-up servers and selected corporate servers are on generator back-up. While the majority of our production
facilities are not located in California, more extensive power shortages in the state could delay our design and process
research and development as well as increase our operating costs.

Our growth has in the past placed a significant strain on our management systems and resources and if we fail
to manage our growth, our ability to market or sell our products or develop new products may be harmed.

Our business has in the past experienced rapid growth which strained our internal systems and future growth will
require us to continuously develop sophisticated information management systems in order to manage our business
effectively. We recently implemented a supply-chain management system and a vendor electronic data interface
system. There is no guarantee that these measures, in themselves, will be adequate to address any growth, or that we
will be able to foresee in a timely manner other infrastructure needs before they arise. Our success depends on the
ability of our executive officers to effectively manage our growth. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively,
our results of operations will be harmed. If we fail to successfully implement new management information systems,
our business may suffer severe inefficiencies that may harm the results of our operations. '

Future changes in financial accounting standards or practices or existing taxation rules or practices may cause
adverse unexpected revenue fluctuations and affect our reported results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practices or a change in existing taxation rules or practices can have a significant
effect on our reported results and may even affect reporting of transactions completed before the change is effective.
New accounting pronouncements and taxation rules and varying interpretations of accounting pronouncements and
taxation practice have occurred and may occur in the future. Changes to existing rules or the questioning of current
practices may adversely affect our reported financial results or the way we conduct our business.

For example, changes requiring that we record compensation expense in the statement of operations for stock options
using the fair value method or any changes in existing taxation rules related to stock options could have a significant
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negative effect on our reported results. The FASB has issued changes to generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States that, when implemented the.third quarter of 2005, will require us to record charges to earnings for
‘the stock options we grant

Evolvmg regulatxon of corporate governance and pubhc disclosure may result in addltlonal expenses and
continuing uncertainty

Changing laws, regulatio'ns and standard relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and Nasdaq National Market rules are creating uncertainty for
public companies. We continually evaluate and monitor developments with respect to new and proposed rules and
cannot predict or estimate the amount of the additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs. These new or
changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack.of
specificity, and as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by
regulatory and governing bodies.  This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and
higher costsnecessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate. governance and public disclosure. As a result, we have invested resources to
comply with evolving laws, regulations:and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to
compliance activities. If our efforts.to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the
activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to practice, regulatory authorities
may initiate legal proceedings against us and we may be harmed.

We, and our independent registered public accounting firm, have determined that we have a material *
weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting. As a result, current and potential stockholders
could lose conﬁdence in our ﬁnanclal reportmg, which would harm our busmess and the trading price of our
stock. / ‘

Under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we are required to evaluate and determine the effectiveness of
our internal controls:over financial reporting. We have dedicated a significant amount of time and resources to ensure
compliance with this legislation for the year ended December 31, 2004 and will continue to do so for future fiscal
périods. We may encounter problems or delays in completing the review and evaluation, the implementation of
improvements and the receipt of 4 positive attestation, or any attestation at all, by our independent auditors.
Additionally, management’s assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting may 1dent1fy deficiencies -
that need to be addressed in our internal controls over financial reporting or other matters that may raise concerns for
investors.

As of December 31, 2004, we did not maintain effective control over accounting for and review of the valuation of
inventory, the income tax provision and related balance sheet accounts and licensing revenue because the company"
lacked a sufficient complement of personnel with a level of accounting expertise that is commensurate with our
financial reporting requirements Specifically, we lacked sufficient controls over the write down of inventory to its.
lower of cost or market, accounting for complex licensing contracts with multiple elements, and processes and
procedures related to the determination and review of the quarterly and annual tax provisions in accordance with .
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. This control deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment
to the 2004 consolidated financial statements related to the write-down of inventory to the lower of cost or market.
Addmonally, this deﬁmency could result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial |
‘statements that would not be prevented or detected Accordlngly, management has determined that this control
deficiency constitutés a material weakness. Because of this material weakness, our management concluded that, as
of December 31, 2004, we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting based on those criteria.
As a result, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has issued an adverse opinion with respect to our internal controls over
financial reporting and their report is included in this Form 10-K.

Should we, or our independent registered public accounting firm, determine in future fiscal periods that we have
addmonal material weaknesses in our internal controls over financial reporting, the reliability of our financial reports
may be impacted, and our results of operatlons or financial condition may be harmed and the price of our common
stock ‘may decline. ' :

Acquisitions could resuit in operating difficulties, dilution and other harmful consequences.
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In September 2004 we acquired majority ownership in Emosyn and in November 2004 we acquired substantially all
of the assets of G-Plus. We expect to continue to evaluate and consider a wide array of potential strategic
transactions, including business combinations, acquisitions and dispositions of businesses, technologies, services,
products and other assets, including interests in our existing subsidiaries and joint ventures. At any given time we
may be engaged in discussions or negotiations with respect to one or more of such transactions. Any of such
transactions could be material to our financial condition and results of operations. There is no assurance that any such
discussions or negotiations will result in the consummation of any transaction. The process of integrating any

acquired business may create unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures and is itself risky. The areas where
we may face difficulties include:

o diversion of management time, as well as a shift of focus from operating the businesses to issues of
integration and future products; '

o declining employee morale and retention issues resulting from changes in compensation, reporting
relationships, future prospects, or the direction of the business;

o the need to integrate each company’s accounting, management information, human resource and other

administrative systems to permit effective management, and the lack of control if such integration is delayed
or not implemented,

¢ the need to implement controls, procedures and policies appropriate for a public company at companies that
prior to acquisition had lacked such controls, procedures and policies; and in some cases, the need to
transition operations onto our platforms.

International acquisitions involve additional risks, including those related to integration of operations across different
cultures and languages, currency risks, and the particular economic, political, and regulatory risks associated with
specific countries. Moreover, we may not realize the anticipated benefits of any or all of our acquisitions. As a result
of future acquisitions or mergers, we might need to issue additional equity securities, spend our cash, or incur debt,

contingent liabilities, or amortization expenses related to intangible assets, any of which could reduce our profitability
and harm our business.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Our success is dependent on the growth and strength of the flash memory market.

Substantially all of our products, as well as all new products currently under design, are stand-alone flash memory
devices or devices embedded with flash memory. A memory technology other than SuperFlash may be adopted as an
industry standard. Our competitors are generally in a better financial and marketing position than we are from which
to influence industry acceptance of a particular memory technology. In particular, a primary source of competition
may come from alternative technologies such as FRAM devices if such technology is commercialized for higher
density applications. To the extent our competitors are able to promote a technology other than SuperFlash as an
industry standard, our business will be seriously harmed.

The selling prices for our products are extremely volatile and have historically declined during periods of over
capacity or industry downturns.

The semiconductor industry has historically been cyclical, characterized by periodic changes in business conditions
caused by product supply and demand imbalance. When the industry experiences downturns, they often occur in
connection with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles and declines in general economic conditions. These
downturns are characterized by weak product demand, excessive inventory and accelerated declines of average
selling prices. In some cases, downturns, such as the one we experienced from late 2000 through 2002, have lasted
for more than a year. Our business could be further harmed by industry-wide prolonged downturns in the future. The
flash memory products portion of the semiconductor industry, from which we derive substantially all of our revenues,
suffered from excess capacity in 2001, 2002, 2003 and in late 2004, which resulted in greater than normal declines in
our markets, which unfavorably impacted our revenues, gross margins and profitability. While these conditions
began to improve during the third quarter of 2003, deteriorating market conditions at the end of 2000 through the first
part 2003 and again in the fourth quarter of 2004 have resulted in the decline of our selling prices and harmed our
operating results.
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There is seasonality in cur, busmess and if we fall to continue to introduce new products this seasonahty may
become more pron@unced ‘ . D

Sales of our ;products in the consumer electromcs apphcatlons market are subJect to seasonahty As aresult, sales of
these products are impacted by seasonal purchasing patterns with higher sales generally occurring in the second half
.of each year. In the past we have been able to mitigate such seasonality with the introduction of new products
throughout the year, If we fail to continue to introduce new products, our business may suffer and the seasonality of
a portion of our sales may become more pronounced. :

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to risks associated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations due to our international manufacturing and
sales activities. These exposures may change over time as business practices evolve and could negatively impact our
operating results and financial condition. Currently, we do not hedge these foreign exchange rate exposures. All of
our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. An increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies
could make our products more expensive and therefore reduce the demand for our products. Such a decline in the
demand could reduce revenues and/or result in operating losses. In addition, a downturn in the economies of China,

- Japan or Taiwan could impair the value of our equity investments in companies with operations in these countries. If
we consider the value of these companies to be impaired, we will write off, or expense, some or all of our
investments. In 2001, we wrote down our investment in KYE by $3.3 million to $1.3 million due to an other than
temporary decline in its market value; As of December 31, 2004, the recorded value of our KYE investment was
$2.3 million based on the quoted market price. In the third quarter of 2002, we wrote down, our investment in
Apacer, a privately held memory module manufacturer located in Taiwan, by $7.8 million due to an other than
temporary decline in its value. As of December 31, 2004, the recorded value of our Apacer investment was $4.4
million. During 2004, we wrote down our investment in Insyde by $509 thousand because Insyde’s stock price had
declined below the acquisition cost for more than six months. The impairment was considered to be “other-than-
temporary” in nature. . In addition, we have equity investments in companies with operations-in China, Japan, Taiwan
and United States with recorded values at December 31 2004 of $86.9 million, $0.9 million, $16.6 million and $0.6
million, respectxvely

At any time, fluctuations in interest rates could affect interest earnings on our cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments, or the fair value of our investment portfolio. A 10% move in interest rates as of December 31, 2004
would have an immaterial effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Currently, we do not
hedge these interest rate exposures. As of December 31, 2004, the carrying value of our available-for-sale -
investments approximated fair value. The table below presents the carrying value and related weighted average
interest rates for our unrestricted and restncted cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments as of

‘December 31, 2004 (1n thousands)

Carrying Interest

[T .o S ‘ Value Rate

Short-term available-for-sale iVestmEnts - fXed [ALE....o....ovvrrroererososee 3 68,628 22%
Cash and cash equivalents -.variable FALE. ot ettt is st esrseosssnssteresesnsntorens, 35,365 0.4%
S B ‘ o o ‘ $ 103,993 1.6%
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The consolidated financial statements are included in a separate section of this Annual Report.
Supplementary Data: Selected Consolidated Quarterly Data

The following table presents our unaudited consolidated statements of operations data for each of the eight quarters in
the period ended December 31, 2004. In our opinion, this information has been presented on the same basis as the
audited consolidated financial statements included in a separate section of this report, and all necessary adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts below to present fairly the
unaudited quarterly results when read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes. The operating results for any quarter should not be relied upon as necessarily indicative of results for any
future period. We expect our quarterly operating results to fluctuate in future periods due to a variety of reasons,
including those discussed in "Business Risks."

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 ‘ 2004 2004 2004

(in thousands, except per share data)
Net revenues:

Product TevVenues.........cocoevviueiiieiene e e erne s $ 91,370 % 115,571 $ 101,260 $ 96,530
LiICENSE TEVEIUES. .. vvvievivei e oo ceeiree e creeecen s, 13,063 . . 12,958 10,912 7,534
Total net revenues.............. . 8 104,433 § 128,529 ¢ 112,172 § 104,064
GroSs PrOfit..ccooieiiec et $ 38,151 % 48,767 §$ 39,584 § 603
Income (loss) from operations........coccevveevrnrecnnannns, $ 15,421 % 23,396 § 14,752 § (27,330)
Net income (1085).......cocvovrierieeiiiiiieeesrreisieeraears $ 14,233 § 22,099 § 14,522 % (26,925)
Net income (loss) per share-basic......c..cvcverrreniernrnnnns 3 0.15 § 023 § 015 § (0.28)
Net income (loss) per share-diluted...........ccocoveiiinene $ 0.14 8 022 § 015 8 {0.28)
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2003 2003 2003 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net revenues:

Product revenues......... ettt 3 53,921 §$ 54,860 §$ 65,397 § 82,351
License TeVenUES........cocvvevrierieeiireec e cineeecsreireees e, 7,788 9,320 8,538 12,866
Total Net TEVENUES.......evcviierieecrei i ce e, $ 61,709 § 64,180 $ 73,935 % 95,217
Gross Profit.....cocceeriiiiiciinccree e 3 9,208 $ 16,247 3 18,341 % 32,470
Income (loss) from operations e $ (11,083) $ (3,739) $ (37,390) § 10,815
Net i1COME (I0SS)....ecrveerorrrreerrermeereeeeoresseesreneeseeseenes $  (10,665) $ (4,589) $ (59,018) $ 9,105
Net income (loss) per share-basic.......ccccorveevanencne. 3 0.11) 8§ (0.05) § (0.62) $ 0.10
Net income (loss) per share-diluted........cccocoveerrennnnn. $ 0.11) § {0.05) $ 0.62) $ 0.09

We recorded settlement fees of $36.5 million and interest of $1.3 million related to the Atmel lawsuit in the third and
fourth quarter of 2003, respectively. In the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a full valuation of our deferred tax
assets and associated adjustments 1o income tax payable, resulting in a tax expense of $22.9 million.

We recorded an operating lease impairment of $1.5 million relating to an operating lease for an abandoned building
in the second quarter of 2004. We expensed the in-process research and development resulting from the acquisitions
of Emosyn and G-Plus in the amount of $1.7 million and $4.2 million in the third and fourth quarters of 2004,
respectively. We recorded a provision of adverse purchase commitments of $2.6 million and $5.4 million in the third
and fourth quarter, respectively. In the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded an $18.3 million valuation adjustment
against inventory for potentially excess and obsolete inventories and those inventories carried at costs that are higher
than their market values.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures \

Disclosure Controis and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our reports filed or submitted pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”),
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures also are designed to ensure that such information
is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. A control system, no matter how
well designed and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives
will be met.

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) as of December 31, 2004. Based upon the evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer concluded that due to the material weakness described below, our disclosure controls and procedures were not
effective at the reasonable assurance level as of December 31, 2004.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during our fourth quarter that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report in Intemal‘Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for estabhshmg and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Gur
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting prmmples Our'internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (if) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements. '

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

‘Our management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of Decethber 31,
2004. In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting, our management used the criteria
described in “Internal Control-Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

A material weakness is a control deficiency ‘or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelibood that a material misstatemeént of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.
As of December 31, 2004, we did not maintain effective control over accounting for and review of the valuation of
inventory, the income tax provision and related balance sheet accounts and licensing revenue because we lacked a
sufficient complement of personnel with a level of accounting expertise that is commensurate with our financial -
reporting requirements. Specifically, we lacked sufficient controls over the write down of inventory to its lower of
cost or market, accounting for complex licensing contracts with multiple elements, and processes and procedures
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related to the determination and review of the quarterly and annual tax provisions in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. This control deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the
2004 consolidated financial statements related to the write-down of inventory to the lower of cost or market.
Additionally, this deficiency could result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control
deficiency constitutes a material weakness. Because of this material weakness, we have concluded that the Company
did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Management has excluded Emosyn LLC (“Emosyn”), and SST Communications Corporation (“SCC”), from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because these companies were
acquired by us in purchase business combinations during 2004. Emosyn and SCC are consolidated subsidiaries
whose combined total assets and revenues represent 6.4% and 6.4%, respectively, of the related consolidated
financial statement amount as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Management’s assessment of the éffectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Remediation of Material Weakness

In response to the material weakness described above, we have recently hired new senior accounting personnel and is
in the process of hiring additional accounting and finance staff. In addition, we intend to enhance its training
programs for accounting and finance personnel.

Item 9B. Other Information

On December 21, 2004, were notified by the Enforcement Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission that it
is conducting an informal inquiry regarding trading of shares of our common stock prior to our December 20, 2004
announcement of updated guidance for our financial results for the fourth quarter of 2004. The inquiry involves
trading in shares of our common stock by an executive officer, a director of SST and three employees. We are
cooperating with the Enforcement Office.
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| T T PART III

I
uF

Item 10 Dlrectors and Executwe Ofﬁcers of the Reglstrant

The mfonnatlon required by thxs 1tem w111 be contamed in our deﬁmtlve Proxy Statement with respect to our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the captions "Election of Directors," "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management - Compliance with the Reporting Requirement of Section 16(a)," “Audit Committee,”
“Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee,” and “Code of Conduct,” and are incorporated by reference into
this réport. The mformatlon relatmg to our executlve ofﬁcers is contained in Part I, Item 1 of this report. -

)

Item 11. Executlve Compensatlon Do

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the caption "Compensatlon Compensatlon of Officers," and is incorporated by
reference into this repoxt Lo e '

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters

_The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management"
. and "Compensation - Equity Compensation Plan Information," and are incorporated by reference into this report.

Item 13. Certain Relaﬂonshlps and Related Transactions

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement w1th respect to our Annual
Meéeting of Shareholders under the caption"Certain Transactions," and is incorporated by reference into this report.
Please also see "Management's D1scuss1on and Ana1y51s of Financial Condition and Results of Operatlons Related
Party. Transactions.” . - ! ok

Item 14. Pnncnpal Accountant Fees andASérvices

The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders under the caption “Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm” and is incorporated by reference into this report.




PARTIV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) (1) Consolidated Financial Statements. The index to the consolidated financial statements is found on page 49 of
this Report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule. Financial statement schedule Number II is included.

(3) Exhibits. See Exhibit Index in part (b), below.

(b) Index to Exhibits.

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

3.1(1) Bylaws of Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., as amended.

322 Restated Articles of Incorporation of SST, dated November 3, 1995.

33(3) Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Articles of Incorporation of SST, dated June 30, 2000.
34 4 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 to 3.4.

4.2 (5) Specimen Stock Certificate of SST.

4.3 (6) Rights Agreement between SST and American Stock Transfer and Trust Co., dated May 4, 1999.

4.4(7) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement between SST and American Stock Transfer and Trust Co.,

" dated October 28, 2000.
10.1 (8) Equity Incentive Plan and related agreements.
10.2 (9) Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

103(10) 1995 Non-Employee Director's Stock Option Plan.

10.4 (11) Profit Sharing Plan.

10.5(12) Lease Agreement between SST and Sonora Court Properties, dated May 4, 1993, as amended.
10.6 (13) Lease Agreement between SST and Coast Properties, dated May 4, 1995, as amended.

10.8 (14) Lease amendment, dated March 4, 1998, between SST and Sonora Court Properties.

10.9(15) Lease Amendment, dated March 4, 1998, between SST and Coast Properties.

10.11 (16) Second Amendment to Lease, dated September 13, 1999, between SST and Coast Properties.

10.12(17)  Lease Agreement between SST and Bhupinder S. Lehga and Rupinder K. Lehga, dated November
15, 1999.

10.13(18) Lease Agreement between SST and The Irvine Company, dated November 22, 1999.
10.14(19) Sunnyvale Industrials Net Lease Agreement, dated June 26, 2000.
21.1 Subsidiaries of SST.

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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24.1
311
31.2

- 32.1

322

Power of Attorney is contained on the signature page.
Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification required by Rule 13a-4(a).

Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section
1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. 1350).*

Certification of Vice President Finance & Administration, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary,
as required by Rule 13a- 14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States
Code (18 U.S.C. 1350).*

* The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 accompany the Annual Report on Form 10-K, are not
deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any
filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general incorporation
language contained in such filing.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed August
5, 2004 and mcorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, File No. 33-97802, filed on
October 5, 1995, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 3.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed on
August 7, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 99.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 1999, and incorporated by
reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to our Registrétion Statement on Form S-1, as amended, File No. 33-97802, filed on
November 3, 1995, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 99.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 1999, and incorporated by
reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 3.6 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, as amended,
filed on March 30, 2001, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as.amended as Exhibit 99.1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 333-98135, filed on
August 15, 2002, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as‘amended as Exhibit 99.2 to our Registraﬁon Statement on Form S-8, File No. 33-33130, filed on
March 23, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as amended as Exhibit 99.2 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No. 33-98135, filed on
August 15, 2002, and mcorporated by reference herem

Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, File No. 33-97802, filed on
October 5, 1995, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 10.6 fo our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, File No. 33-97802, filed on
October 5, 1995, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended, File No. 33-97802, filed on
October 5, 1995, and incorporated by reference herein.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Filed as Exhibit 10.17 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, filed on
August 14, 1998, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, filed on
August 14, 1998, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 10.23 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, as
amended, filed on February 24, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein,

Filed as Exhibit 10.24 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, as
amended, filed on February 24, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein,

Filed as Exhibit 10.25 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, as
amended, filed on February 24, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as Exhibit 10.28 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000, filed on
August 7, 2000, and incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secuntles Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Sunnyvale
County of Santa Clara, State of California, on the 31st day of March, 2005.

: SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: _/s/ BING YEH

Bing Yeh

President and Chief Executlve Officer
.. (Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Bing Yeh and Jack K. Lai, and each or any one of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with
full power of substitution and re-substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to
sign any and all amendments to this report, and to file the same, with al exhibits thereto, and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to
be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitutes or
substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Signature Title Date

/s/ BINGYEH . President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 31, 2005

Bing Yeh : (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ JACK K. LAI ‘ . Vice President Finance & Administration, Chief =~ March 31, 2005

Jack K. Lai ‘ Financial Officer and Secretary (Principal

‘ Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ YAW WEN HU Director March 31, 2005

Yaw Wen Hu

[s/ TSUYOSHI TAIRA ' ~ Director March 31, 2005
. Tsuyoshi Taira =~

/s/ RONALD CHWANG o Director March 31, 2005

Ronald Chwang o ‘

/s/ YASUSHI CHIKAGAMI Director March 31, 2005

Yasushi Ch1kagam1




SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Item

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule I1

Page
50
52
53
54
55

56
82

49




Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of )
Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.. ; -7+ "0 .+ o

We have completed an integrated audit of Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.’s 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and
2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting .
Oversight Board (United States). Our opmlons based on our audlts are presented below

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15 (a) (1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15 (a)
(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates - made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because the Company did not maintain effective
control over accounting for and review of the valuation of inventory, the income tax provision and related balance
sheet accounts and licensing revenue because the company lacked a sufficient complement of personnel
commensurate with the Company’s financial reporting requirements, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
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could have a material effect on the financial statements. . |,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or

detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management's

assessment. As of December 31, 2004, the Company did not maintain effective controls over accounting for and
review of the valuation of inventory, the income tax provision and related balance sheet accounts and licensing
revenue because the company lacked a sufficient complement of personnel with a level of accounting expertise that is
commensurate with the Company’s financial reporting requirements. Specifically, the Company lacked sufficient
controls over the write down of inventory to its lower of cost or market, accounting for complex licensing contracts
with multiple elements, and processes and procedures related to the determination and review of the quarterly and
annual tax provisions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. This control
deficiency resulted in an audit adjustment to the 2004 consolidated financial statements related to the write-down of
inventory to the lower of cost or market. Additionally, this deficiency could result in a material misstatement to the
annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly,
management has determined that this condition constitutes a material weakness. This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2004 consolidated
financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements. ’

As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting , management has excluded
Emosyn LLC (“Emosyn”) and SST Communications Corporation (“SCC”) from its assessment of internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 because these companies were acquired by the Company in
purchase business combinations during 2004. We have also excluded Emosyn and SCC from our audit of internal
control over financial reporting. Emosyn and SCC are consolidated subsidiaries whose combined total assets and
revenues represent 6.4% and 6.4%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amount as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2004,

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, because
of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria,
Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California

March 31, 2005
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SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
) (in thousands)

December 31,

2003 2004
ASSETS . ’
Current assets: . : ey
Cash and cash eqUIVAIEDLS........c..lvorecelcvrscnorcresnnen e $ 84,250 § 35,365 :
Short-term available:for-sale iVeStMENtS.............'ccccrrorcrnn . 100,944 68,628 g
" Trade accounts receivable-urirelated parties, net of aliowance o ‘
for doubtful accounts of $1,118 as of December 31, 2003 and
-$1,189 as of Decémber 31,2004..... s ' 14,110 25,206
. Trade accounts recelvable related parties... v 41,220 32,973
INVentories, Het. ../ oueneire oo eeeererennn | ! ..... e rerenens S 46,120 156,618
Other current assets e 13,232 16,049
* Total current assets 299,876 © 334,839
Property and equ.lpment net ' ; ‘ ‘ 11,325 " 16,620
Equity investment, GSMC ‘ ‘ 50,000 83,150
Equity investments; other a 8,077 15,413
Long-term available- for-sale mvestments ‘ 24,969 | 23,094
GOOGWILL.........cccccrecccrcrrenen O - 15,600
Intangible assets, net............cco.oen.e.. et seeereie e SRR ‘ -- 19,767

Other assets................ 2,114 3,848
, $ - 396,361 § 502,331

. Total assets....

r

Current liabilities:

Notes payable, current portion.......ccovuevsusieernnnivn, ST 5. © 393 8 - 705
, Trade accounts payable-unrelated parties: T 36,773 53,273
Trade accounts payable-related parties.........cccoonmeninncninniinnninn. 10,734 . 35,882
Accrued expenses and other liabilities.........c..ccoiiiniinn 11,911 30,593
L S 3,630 2,388
Total current liabilities.. : . 63,441 122,841
Other liabilities........... eeeeeeerean, e bl » ! 1,423 © 1,307
MInOTIty INterest............ivevreeerrrrreenss SRS e . © 2,199
Total liabilities.. ‘ S 64,864 126347
Commitments (Note 4) and Contingencies (Note 5).
SHAREHO LDERS' BQ UITY
Preferred Stock, no par value ‘
Authorized: 7,000 shares \
Series A Junior Parthlpatmg Preferred Stock, no par value
Designated: 450 shares
Issued and outstanding: none............... et e -- -
Common stock, no par value:
" Authorized: 250,000 shares
Issued and outstanding: 95,328 shares in 2003
and 97,358 shares in 2004............ceovevverveermrerinrereseeeessesssesaees s 345,384 358,578
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME......cccovecrnivirecvrcrorieieernrans 9,178 16,542
Retained earnings (acgumulated deficit) (23,065) 864
Total shareholders' eqUity......c.ceceevvivuerimierenininniirnreneaseneere s 331,497 375,984
Total liabilities and shareholders' EQUILY ..ot $ 396,361 3 502,331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004

Net revenues:

Product revenues - unrelated parties.... $ 100,620 § 86,549 § 180,234

Product revenues - related parties..........c.oeveviiviiiiiiiiinincceee e 143,401 169,980 224,497
License revenues - unrelated parties......................... v 30,637 38,512 44,311
License revenues - related parties..........ccoooveriinniiiiiniiiniicesic e -- -- 156
T OtAl DBt FEVEIIUES. .. oereeeeesriecreeeessteeeneaenmnecasoresesonteesessatesrnaesssnsensessnnnes 274,658 295,041 449,198

Cost of revenues:
Cost of revenues - unrelated parties........oocveniiiiinincn 85,707 73,398 135,331
Cost of revenues - related Parties.......oooeeeriiinini st 120,539 145,377 186,762
Total COSt OF TEVEIUES. ......cciierieererirrcereninniecciierrarresreeecesbesssteresesssrenees 206,246 218,775 322,093
GROSS PIOfI.r.vveisriireeieiiec ettt b et bbbt e et 68,412 76,266 127,105

Operating expenses:

Research and development 47,069 43,144 46,904
Sales and marketing.........coooeeueeens 25,498 22,272 28,295
General and administrative 17,097 14,398 18,292
Other (Note 5 and Note 12)......coiiviiiniiniiiiiie e - 37,849 7,375
Total Operating eXPEmSes.......oovuerivumrirmiieiicnriisieecer e 89,664 117,663 100,866
Income (108S) frOM OPETALIONS....ccevrrivierieiinriiret i er e reesae s erane e (21,252) (41,397) 26,239
Interest and Other INCOME. ........covveeriviriei ittt e eaeeeerbeaaaae s 3,225 2,996 2,295
Interest and other expense (242) (350) (281)
Impairment of equity INVESIMENES....ccoiiiiiiiiiiirci s (7,757) -- (509)
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit from)
income taxes and MINOTItY INEETESt..........ovmrsreiriiiiiice s (26,026) (38,751) 27,744
Provision for (benefit from) iNCOME TAXES.....vcvriviveeririnii e (10,931) 26,416 3,906
MINOTILY INEETESt....oivirieiiiiiiciiic e et sa et - -- (91)

Net income (loss) $_ (15095) $  (65,167) $ 23,929

Net income (loss) per share - basiC.........occcevviieiiiinrinnns e $§ _ (0.16) % (0.69) $ 0.25
Shares used in per share calculation - basiC...........ooveveiiniirniciinse e, $ 92,667 §$ 94,723 3 95,756
Net income (loss) per share - diluted........coooovininiiinii $§  (0.16) $ (0.69) § 0.24
Shares used in per share calculation ~ diluted..................ocoooniviinniins $ 92,667 $ 94,723 § 99,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

Lo ' :  ‘Retained Accumulated

o ' Farnlngs - Other-

Common Stock (Accumulated Comprehensive

Shares  Amount ~  Deficit) Income Total

‘Balances, Decemaber 31, 2001............. 91,585 § 333989 § 57,197 8§ 225§ 391,411

Issuance of shares of :

common stock undep’ o Bt

employee stock

purchase and

option plans........ccccccinnennd e « 1,710 4,076 - ) e - 4,076
Tax benefit from exercise' . . ) . . e S .

Of $tock OPLIONS. vvvvveriivrersls 1,533 7 -- - 1,533
Net loss \ ‘ - - (15,09%) e
Unrealizedlosson .~ . . . .. : '

available for sale '

securities, net of taX........ooeeeenne -- -- - (74)
Comprehensive 10ss......0. 0l L= -- L - - (15,169)

Balances, December 31, 2002.........,.., 193,295 339,598 - 42,102 - 1581 381,851

Issuance of shares of ‘ v . . A : .

common stock under

employee stock '

purchase and . .

OPLion Plans............c.oreerereeceenne 2,033 4,535 - 4,535
Tax benefit from exercise” - ‘ ' '

of stock options............ ebreeee e - 1,251 - : -- 1,251
Net loss..... ‘ - - (65,167) < - :
Unrealized gam on e :

available for sale . ale ‘

SECUTTHIES. . veee v evreeieeeverisieeese s - - - o 9,027 .
Comprehensive loss - -- -- -- (56,140)

Balances, December 31, 2003............. 95,328 345,384 (23,065) 9,178 . . 331,497
Repurchase of shares of © ™" ™' S ' . ‘
common stock.......ccocoenins preeeiees (2,574) (14,853) . (14,853)
Issuance of shares of ) b ' o ‘ o C T
common stock for
acquisition of G-Plus, Inc............. 3,030 22,074 - - . 22,074
Issuance 'of shares of Lo : . .
common stock under
employée’vstock. .
purchasc and
option plans.....
Tax benefit from. gxergx,se R
of stock options
Net incomie :
Unrealized gain on
available for sale
SECUTities........oviveunns e - - y -- ) 7,337
Cumulative transldtion adjustment., = - ¢ " o - 27
Comprehensive income.................. -- -- - -- 31,293
Balances, December 31, 2004............. 97,358 § 358,578 §$ 864 3 16,542 $ 375,984

s sses - - 5,545

o 48 I , 4.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
Cash flows from operating activities: .
Net inCOmME (10SS)...ccvereeieerreeiriiinirerieereer et reeenes $ (15,095 $ (65,167) $ 23,929
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash :
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amOrtiZation..........ccecvereievrvenivenrmescneeseecnssnnennsnnes 9,847 7,696 7,445
Purchased in-process research and development............c..coee.., ereeees -- - 5,896
Operating lease iMpPaiMMent..........cccvrviis i -- -- 1,479
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable... 3,046 228 825
Provision fOr sales TELUITIS ....oeiviriveiiiiirinree e ecieeecree e ree et nen s eennne 2,842 316 1,347
Provision for excess and obsolete inventories, write down
of inventory to market and adverse purchase commitments........... 10,441 6,670 35,883
Deferred iNCOME LaXES.....cvc.covmreiiriirieniieereee e seeeiessresiee e e eans s 7,036 22,318 --
(Gain) loss on disposition of equipment.........c.cooveecverrenccreincririnnnne, (92) 114 (33)
Gain on sale of equity IDVESTMENLS....cceereiincnieiiiiiir e - (649) --
Loss in equity INEETESt.......covviiiiiiiieieiiirer et -- -- 93
Impairment of equity iDVESIMENTS....c..ocvvrierieirene e enees 7,757 -- 509
Tax benefit from employee stock plans.......c..civeeieemvcnniiennene 1,533 1,251 428
MIDOLitY IMEEIES...ccoiiiiiiie i s -- -- on
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: '
Trade accounts receivable from unrelated parties............. eerveerraans 3,263 (3,931) 7,113)
Trade accounts receivable from related parties.............ccceovveenine (4,452) (15,972) 8,080
TNVENEOTIES. c.eev eeivierieesieree et e iesieetes e e seesn e aesbeeenoec et s sananneans 16,024 29,507 (133,622)
Other current and NONCUITENT ASSELS......ovvveevveerreeiiienreereierernnaens (21,269) 18,318 (3,045)
Trade accounts payable to unrelated parties.........cccccooeevvvnenicnn. 4,310 8,365 12,422
Trade accounts payable to related parties..........cccccovvviiiiniinniiens (564) 4,045 25,354
Accrued expenses and other liabilities......... . 1,588 (6,535) 7,464
Deferred revenue.......oooeeviivvveeioiieeciee el e (2,849) 980 (1,242)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..........ccceenucne. 23,366 7,554 (13,992)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash........c.cc.c..ee - -- (18,443)
Acquisition of property and equipment... (4,315) (1,806) (8,042)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 118 -- 33
Purchases of available-for-sale investments and
restricted cash.....coiviviiiiiiiic e e (81,262) (72,659) (47,590)
Sales and maturities of available-for-sale investments... 28,626 84,645 91,869
Investment in equity SECUTItIES...........ccvererreeccenerrinnnes (1,660) - (43,839)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (58,493) 10,180 (26,012)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of notes payable...........ccccoevmmiciiiiincenii (316) (250) (393)
Issuance of shares of common StOCK..........coovveeviniienriveven e, 4,076 4,535 5,545
Repurchase of common StOCK.........cccvviereiiiiiiiniiin i -- -- (14,853)
Minority interest: capital contrinution.........c.ocovevieiniinn i, -- -- 820
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...........ceevmeens 3,760 4,285 (8,881)
Net. increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.........ccccovvrvievenncne. (31,367) 22,019 (48,885)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...........ccooveiiiniiincin 93,598 62,231 84,250
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year........c.ooovcuvninvrnnniiinenns $ 62,231 § 84,250 § 35,365
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash received for interest.... 3,449 § 2,813 8§ 2,146
Cash paid for interest........o..oovveviverrnecnnrenninens 221 § 127 % 82
Net cash paid for (received from) income taxes.........ococeoevvevceriinecercnenn. 3 (3,189) § (8,224) $ 2,798
Commeon stock issued in connection with acquisitions............cccceverens ooe $ - 3 - 3 22,074

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we issued approximately 3.0 million shares of common stock in connection

with the acquisition of G-Plus. No shares of common stock were issued in connection with the acquisition of Emosyn.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

55




SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Opérntlons and Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies:

Nature of 0peratmns

Silicon Storage Technology, Inc ("SST" or "us" or "we") supplies flash memory semiconductor devices for digital
consumer, networking, wireless communications and Internet computing markets. Flash memory is nonvolatile
memory that does not lose-data when the power source is removed and is capable of electronically erasing selected
blocks of data. We license our SuperFlash technology to other companies for non-competing applications. Qur
products are used in personal computers, personal computer peripheral devices, consumer electronics and:
communications devices. Cur products are sold to manufacturers located primarily in Asia.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of the Financial Statements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risks, Uncertainties and Concentrations:

Our sales are concentrated in the nonvolatile memory class of the semiconductor memory industry, which is highly
competitive and rapidly changing. Significant technological changes in the industry, changes in customer
requirements, changes in product costs and selling prices, or the emergence of competitor products with new
capabilities or technolog1es could affect our operating results adversely. We currently buy all wafers and die, an
integral component of our products, from outside suppliers and we are dependent on third party subcontractors to
assemble and test our products. Failure by these suppliers to satisfy our requirements on a timely basis at competitive
prices could cause us to suffer manufacturing delays, a possible loss of revenues, or higher than ant1c1pated costs of
revenues, any of which could severely adversely affect operatmg results.

We have been increasing our out-sourcmg activities for our end customer service logistics to support our customers.
Currently Silicon Professional Technology Ltd., or SPT, supports our customers in Taiwan, China and other
Southeast Asia countries. SPT prov1des planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic
functions for us in these regions. SPT is a wholly-owned subsidiary of one of our stocking representatives in Taiwan,
Professional Computer Technology Limited, or PCT. Products shipped to SPT are accounted for as our inventory
held at our logistics center, and revenue is recognized when the products have been delivered and are considered as a
sale to our end customers by SPT. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, SPT serviced end
customer sales accounting for 57.4%, 64.2% and 52.9%, respectively, of our net product revenues recognized.
Further description of our relat1onsh1ps with PCT and SPT are in Note 16 of these Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

We ship products to, and have accounts receivable from, original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, original design
manufacturers, or ODMs, contract electronic manufacturers, or CEMs, stocking representatives, distributors, and our
logistics center. Our stocking representatives, distributors and logistics center reship our products to our end
customers, including OEMs, ODMs, CEMs and end users. Shipments, by us or our logistics center, to our top three
stocking representatives for reshipment accounted for 16.9%, 29.9% and 34.0% of our product shipments in 2002,
2003 and 2004, respectively. In-addition, the same three stocking representatives solicited sales, for which they
received a commission, for 41.3%;, 32.8% and 25:1% of our shipments to end users in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively. Our stocking representatives and distributors could discontinue their relationship with us or discontinue
selling our products at any time. The loss of our relationship with any of our stocking representatives or distributors
could harm our operating results by impairing our ability to sell our products to our end customers. ‘Our logistics
center, SPT, may cease providing services to us at any time. If SPT were to terminate their relationship with us we
would experience a delay in reestablishing warehousing, logistics and distribution functions, which could impair our
ability to collect accounts receivable from SPT and may harm our business.

We derived 88. 3%, 90.0% and 86.0% of our net product revenues from Asia during 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively. '
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In addition, substantially all of our wafer suppliers and packaging and testing subcontractors are located in Asia. Any
kind of economic, political or environmental instability in this region of the world can have a severe negative impact
on our operating results due to the large concentration of our production and sales activities in this region.

Our revenues may be impacted by our ability to obtain adequate wafer supplies from our foundries. The foundries
with which we currently have arrangements, together with any additional foundry at which capacity might be
obtained, may not be willing or able to satisfy all of our manufacturing requirements on a timety basis at favorable
prices. In addition, we have encountered delays in qualifying new products and in ramping-up new product
production and we could experience these delays in the future. We are also subject to the risks of service disruptions,
raw material shortages and price increases by our foundries. Such disruptions, shortages and price increases could
harm our operating results.

We depend on independent subcontractors to assemble and test our products. Our reliance on these subcontractors
involves the following significant risks: :

reduced control over delivery schedules and quality;

the potential lack of adequate capacity during periods of strong demand;

difficulties selecting and integrating new subcontractots;

limited warranties on products supplied to usi v

potential increases in prices due to capacity shortages and other factors; and

potential misappropriation of our intellectual property.

These risks may lead to increased costs, deléyed product delivery or loss of competitive advantage, which would
harm our profitability and customer relationships.

It should be noted that we may be greatly impacted by the political, economic and military conditions in Taiwan.
Taiwan and China are continuously engaged in political disputes and both countries continue to conduct military
exercises in or near the other's territorial waters and airspace. Such disputes may continue and even escalate,
resulting in an economic embargo, a disruption in shipping or even military hostilities. This could severely harm our
business by interrupting or delaying production or shipment of our product. Any kind of activity of this nature or
even rumors of such activity could severely and negatively impact our operations, revenues, operating results, and
stock price.

Our corporate headquarters are located in California near major earthquake faults. In addition, some of our suppliers
are located near fault lines. In the event of a major earthquake or other natural disaster near our headquarters, our
operations-could be harmed. Similarly, a major earthquake or other natural disaster, such as a typhoon, near one or
more of our major suppliers, like the earthquakes in September 1999 and March 2002 or the typhoon in September
2001 that occurred in Taiwan, could potentially disrupt the operations of those suppliers, which could then limit the
supply of our products and harm our business. ' '

Basis of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SST and our wholly-owned and majority-owned
subsidiaries after elimination of inter-company balances and transactions. The functional currency of SST and all its
subsidiaries, except SST China, is the United States dollar. The functional currency of SST China is the Chinese
Yuan. '

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Monetary accounts maintained in currencies other than the United States dollar are re-measured using the foreign
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Operational accounts and non-monetary balance sheet accounts are measured
and recorded at the rate in effect at the date of the transactions. The effects of foreign currency re-measurement are

reported in current operations. The effect of foreign currency re-measurement was not significant in fiscal years
2002, 2003 or 2004.

Financial Instruments:

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original or remaining maturities of three months or less as of the
dates of purchase. Highly liquid investments included in cash equivalents are classified as available-for-sale and are
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carried at cost, which approximates fair value. ‘Cash equivalents present insignificant risk of changes in value

because of interest rate changes. We maintain substantially all of our cash balances with three major financial and/or

brokerage institutions domiciled in the United Statés and we have not experienced any material losses relating to

these mvestment 1nstruments

Short and long term mvestrnents, whrch are compnsed of federal state and munrcrpal government obhgatrons

. foreign and public corporate debt securities and listed equity securities, are classified as available-for-sale and carried
at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the unrealized gains or losses, net of tax, reported in Shareholders'

.Equity as Other Comprehensive Income. The cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and -
accretion of discounts to maturity, both of which are included in interest income. Realized gains and losses are
recorded on the specific identification method. Realrzed gains in 2003 were $649 thousand. Realized gains and

losses were not matenal in 2002 and 2004

!
'

The carrymg amounts reported for cash and cash equlvalents accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses are considered to approximate fair values based upon the short maturities of those financial instruments.
The fair value of avarlable-for- ale mvestments isin Note 2 of these Notes to the'Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial instruments that potentrally subJect us to concentratwns of credit risks comprise, principally, cash, cash
equivalents, investments and trade accounts receivable. We invest our.excess cash in accordance with our investment
policy, which has been approved by our Board of Directors and reviewed periodically. We perform credit
evaluations of new customers and require those without pos1t1ve established histories to pay in advance, upon
delivery or through letters of credit. Otherwise, we do not require collateral of our customers, and maintain
allowances for potentral credit losses. As of December 31,2003 and 2004, SPT represented 73 4% and 55.1% of our
net accounts recervable respectrvely

We have acqurred interests in Japanese and Taiwanese companies and a Cayman Islands company operatmg in
China. See Note 16 of these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Some of these companies are privately
held and it was'not practrcable to "estimate the fair value of the investments in the issued and untraded common stock.
Investments in privately held companies are included in "Equity investments" in the balance sheet and are carried at
cost. When a decline in value is other than temporary the cost basis of the securities are reduced to their estimated
fair value. Some. of the Taiwanese companies are public companies and their stock is traded on the Taiwan Stock
'Exchange. Three of these conipanies completed initial public offerings in Taiwan during 2003. Under Taiwan

- security regulations, a certain number of shares must be held in central custody subsequent to an initial public
offering. and are restricted from sale for a period of time. .Shares required to be held in custody for greater than a one
year penod are camed§ at cost and recorded as. equrty mvestments The unrestricted shares and the shares available
for sale within one year from the balance sheet date are carried at quoted market price and included in long-term
available for sale mvestments w1th unreahzed gains and losses reported as a separate component of shareholders'
equity. If a loss is other than ternporary, it is reported as an "Impalrment of equity investments." See Note 13 of -
these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Cash dividends and other distributions of earnings from the
investees, if any, are included in other income when declared.

Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based onan assessment of the collectibility of customer accounts We review
the allowance by consrdenng factors such as hlstorlcal expenence credit qualrty, age of the accounts recervable
balances, and current economic conditions that may affect a customer's ability to pay.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or market value. We typically plan
our product1on and mventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which are highly unpredictable
and can ﬂuctuate substantrally The value of our inventory is dependent on our estimate of. future average. selling
prices, and, if our pro_lected average selllng prrces are not realized, we may be requrred to adjust our inventory value
to reflect the lower of cost or market. Due to the large number of units in our inventory, even a small change in
average selling prices could result in a significant adjustment and have a significant impact on our financial position
and results of operations. Qur inventories include high technology parts and components that are specialized in

" nature or subject to rapid technological obsolescence. Some of our customers have requested that we ship them
product that has a finished goods date of manufacture that is less than one year old. In the event that this becomes a
common requrrement it may’ betnecessary for.us to provrde for an additional allowance for our on hand finished
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goods inventory with a date of manufacture of greater than one year old, which could result in a significant
adjustment and could harm our financial results. We review on-hand inventory including inventory held at the logistic
center for potential excess, obsolete and lower of cost or market exposure and adjust the level of inventory reserve
accordingly. Our allowance for excess and obsolete inventories includes an allowance for our on hand finished goods
inventory with a date of manufacture of greater than two years old and for certain products with a date of
manufacture of greater than one year old. For the obsolete inventory analysis, we review inventory items in detail
and consider date code, customer base requirements, known product defects, planned or recent product revisions, end
of life plans and diminished market demand. . While we have programs to minimize the required inventories on hand
and we consider technological obsolescence when estimating allowances for potentially excess and obsolete
inventories and those required to reduce recorded amounts to market values, it is reasonably possible that such
estimates could change in the near term. Such changes in estimates could have a significant impact on our financial
position and results of operations.

Inventory valuation adjustments to cost of sales and adverse purchase commitments amounted to $10.4 million in
2002, $6.7 million in 2003 and $35.9 million in 2004. In 2002, 2003 and 2004, $5.9 million, $3.3 million and $29.2
million, respectively, of the adjustment related to lower of cost or market with the balance due to excess or obsolete
inventory.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight line method over estimated useful lives
of three to seven years, except for building for which the useful life is forty years. See Note 3 of these Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

Goodwill and intangibles were acquired in acquisitions in 2004. ‘Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", or SFAS 142, requires goodwill to be tested for impairment on an
annual basis and between annual tests in certain circumstances, and written down when impaired. No impairment of
goodwill has been identified since the date of acquisition. Furthermore, SFAS 142 requires purchased intangible
assets other than goodwill to be amortized over their useful lives unless these lives are determined to be indefinite.
Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of one to five years. No impairment of intangibles has been
identified since the date of acquisition.

Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets include property and-equipment, equity investments and intangible assets. Whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, we estimate
the future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest charges, expected to result from the use of those assets and
their eventual disposition. If the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of those
assets, we recognize an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets.

Revenue Recognition:

Sales to direct customers and foréign stocking representatives are recognized net of an allowance for estimated
returns. When product is shipped to direct customers or stocking representatives, or by our distributors or SPT to end
users, prior to recognizing revenue, we require that evidence of the arrangement exists, the price is fixed or
determinable and collection is reasonably assured. Sales to distributors are made primarily under arrangements
allowing price protection and the right of stock rotation on unsold merchandise. Because of the uncertainty
associated with pricing concessions and future returns, we defer recognition of such revenues, related costs of
revenues and related gross profit until the merchandise is sold by the distributor. Products shipped to SPT are
accounted for as our inventory held at our logistics center and revenue is recognized when the products have been
delivered and are considered as a sale to our end customers by SPT. -

For license and other arrangements for technology that we are continuing to enhance and refine and under which we
are obligated to provide.unspecified enhancements, revenue is recognized over the lesser of the estimated penod that
we have historically enhanced and developed refinements to the technology, approximately two to three years (the
upgrade period), or the remaining portion of the upgrade period from the date of delivery, provided all spec1ﬁed
technology and documentation has been delivered, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the fee is

59




reasonably assured. From time to time, we re-examine'the estimated upgrade period relating to licensed technology
.to determine if a change in the estimated upgrade period is needed.” Revenue from license or other technology =~
arrangements where we ‘are not continuing to enhance and refine technology or are not obligated to provide s -
.unspecified enhancements is recognlzed upon dehvery, 1f the fee 18 ﬁxed or determmable and collection of the fee is
'reasonably assured ‘ ' :

Royaltles recerved under these arrangements durmg the upgrade penod are recognized as revenue based on the ratio
of the elapsed portion of the upgrade period'to the.estimated upgrade period. The remaining portions of the royalties
are recognized ratably over the remaining portion of the upgrade period. Royalties received after the upgrade period
has elapsed are recogmzed when reported to us, which generally coincides with the recerpt of payment.:

Research and Development

Research and development expenses are charged to operatlons as incurred.

i

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax

bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to
affect taxable income. Vialuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the -
amounts expected to be realized. -; . : G : ’

Cdmputaﬁoﬁ of Net Income (Loss) Per Share:

We have computed and presented net income (loss) per share under two methods, basic and diluted. Basic net income
(loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the period. ‘Diluted net income (loss) per share is:computed adjusting the net income (loss) by the
potential minority interests and dividing by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
and potential common shares. The calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share excludes potential common stock
if the effect is ant1d11ut1ve Potentlal ‘common stock shares consist of common stock options, computed using the -
treasury stock method based on-the average stock price for the perlod
Stock-based Compensatwn Sy
We have employee stock benefit plans, which are described more fully in Note 9, “Stock-based Compensation.” We
account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method. No compensation cost has been recognized
for the stock option plans or the employee stock purchase plan. Had compensation cost for these plans been
determined based on'the fair value at the, grant date of the awards, our net income (loss) and net income (loss) per
share for 2002, 2003 and 2004 would have been. as follows (m thousands, except per share amounts):.

_,‘;: '~ Year endéd December 31,
R T 2002 2003 2004
" Net income (loss) as reported....l.....‘..L...‘.."..L.'.:.....Q ............. 'S " (15,095) $ (65,167) $ 23,929
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method
for all awards, net of related:ta-xeﬁ'ects L e rreeans o (12,112) _(7,601) (9,036) -
-~ Pro forma net mcorne (loss) ............ $ 0 (720 S - - (72.768) § ""14,893
Basic i mcome (loss) pershare ....................... eerers Verererrenens : R . o
As reported:.i. il i it $0 00 (016) § 0 (0.69) $ 0.25
Pro forma...... T u-,:v(029) $ - (07 S 0.16
Diluted net income (loss) per share e . g
"As reported:i.. o i i, e TSR $ - (O 16) . (069 $ 0.24
Pro forma....ceriiencrnnnnns s ‘.i .................... end $0 (0298 - (@78 0 015

The weighted average fa1r value of options granted under the Equity- Incentrve Plan and the Directors’ Plan during
2002, 2003 and 2004 was $4:01, $6.45 and $8.15, respectlvely, per share The Welghted average farr values-of the
Emosyn Intematronal L1rruted optlon grants was $0 48 for 2004 R

7

The Werghted average valuatlon of rrght grants -under the’ Purchase Pian durrng 2002 2003 and 2004 was $3.81, $1.82
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and $6.54, respectively, per share.

Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Comprehensive income (loss) includes
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investments, net of tax, and cumulative translation adjustments.

Other comprehensive income (loss) is presented in the Statement of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
(Loss).

Reclassifications:

Certain amounts in fiscal 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on our previously reported net losses. Specifically,
we reclassified certain auction rate securities from cash equivalents to short-term investments where interest rates
reset in less than 90 days but have a maturity date longer than 90 days. This resulted in a reclassification from cash
and cash equivalents to short-term investments of $40.4 million at December 31, 2003. Further, the reclassifications
had the effect of increasing net cash used in investing activities by $41.5 million the year ended December 31, 2002
and increasing net cash provided by investing activities by $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In March 2004, the FASB issued EITF Issue No. 03-01, or EITF 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments” which provided new guidance for assessing impairment
losses on investments. Additionally, EITF 03-1 includes new disclosure requirements for investments that are deemed
to be temporarily impaired. In September 2004, the FASB delayed the accounting provisions of EITF 03-1; however
the disclosure requirements remain effective for annual periods ending after June 15, 2004. We will evaluate the
impact of EITF 03-1 once final guidance is issued.

In October 2004, the FASB approved EITF Issue 04-10 "Determining Whether to Aggregate Operating Segments
That Do Not Meet the Quantitative Thresholds" which addresses an issue in the application of paragraph 19 of SFAS
No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and related information. In November 2004, the FASB
delayed unt11 further notice the effective date of this issue. We are currently assessing the 1mpact of the disclosure
requirements of EITF Issue 04-10 on our consoclidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB, issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.”
The amendments made by SFAS No.151 are intended to improve financial reporting by clarifying that abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as
current-period charges and by requiring the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the

normal capacity of the production facilities. The guidance is effective for inventory costs incurred beginning after
June 15, 2005. We are currently reviewing the impact of SFAS No. 151 on the carrying amounts of our inventory.
We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 151 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R (revised 2004), “Share Based Payment.” SFAS 123R is a revision
of FASB 123 and supersedes APB No. 25. SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in
which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for good or services or incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or
services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments. SFAS 123R focuses primarily on
accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS
123R requires an entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award over the period during which an employee is required to
provide service for the award. The grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments must be
estimated using option-pricing models adjusted for the unique characteristics of those instruments unless observable
market prices for the same or similar instruments are available. In addition, SFAS 123R requires a public entity
measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments based on its current
fair value and that the fair value of that award will be remeasured subsequently at each reporting date through the
settlement date. The effective date of SFAS 123R for SST is for the first interim or annual period after June 15,
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2005. While we have not determined the impact of SFAS 123R on our financial statements at this time, we expect
that the adoption of this statement will have a significant adverse impact on our consolidated financial position and
results of operations. Although we have not yet determined whether the adoption of SFAS 123R will result in
amounts that are similar to the current pro forma disclosures under SFAS123, we are evaluating the requirements
under SFAS 123R and expect the adoption to have a significant adverse impact on our consolidated operating
expenses. .

N A

2. AvaﬂahieéfgriSale Investments B

" “The fair value of availableifor-sale,investrnents, including restricted available-for-sale investments, as of December
31, 2004 were as follows (in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

o Cost Gain Loss Value

Corporate. bonds and notes..'.“,,‘ $ 106 § - 3 - 8

Government bonds and notes. : ‘ 78,625 - (69)

Foreign listed equrty secuntles....;,.,....'. .......... et 6,509 16,977 . (393)

85240 § 16977 $ (462)
Less amounts classrﬁed as cash equrvalents ......... et erieeesseses eseeeeeseeseestseesesese e e )

Total short and long-term available-for-sale MVESHMENTS......% o.o.cocooececrcsreermmrrreeerseonseesssssssesssone e $

Total bonds, notes and-equity securities................

Contractual maturity dates for mvestments in bonds and notes:
Less than 1 year ...... erae R ae 2RSS 4RSS R R0 $

P

The unreahzed gam as of December 31, 2004 1s recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax of
Zero. T : oE

Market values were determined for each individual security in our investment portfolio. The declines in value of the
government bonds and notes primarily relate to changes in the interest rates and are considered temporary in nature.
With respect to our, fore1gn listed. «€quity securities, our policy is to review our equity holdings on a regular basis to
evaluate whether or not. such secuntles have experlenced an other than temporary decline in fair value. Qur policy
includes, but is- not hnuted to rev1ew1ng each company’s cash position, earnings and revenue outlook, stock price
performance over the past six months, liquidity, management and ownership. If we believe that an other-than-
temporary decline in value exists, it is our policy to write down these investments to the market value and record the
related write-down.in our consolidated statement.of operations. At December 31, 2004, the foreign listed equity
securities having a falr value of 1. 3 mrlhon have been in a continuous loss position for less than twelve months.

The fair value 'o_f aVarlab_!e—for-sa@e myestrnents as of December 31, 2003 were as follows (in thousands):

Yo s ey - " Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
: L S Cost Gain Loss
-Corporate bonds and OLES foovvia i oo eessenrses e siae s .8 184§ - 8 - 8
Govermnment bonds and notes.. 158,382 14 -
Forexgn hsted equrty secuntles 3,759 9,265 ~ (101)
Totalbonds notes and equxty secuntles ..... ........ .8 162,325 § 9279 $ (101)
Less amounts class1ﬁed as cash equlvalents ............................ et et e A AL b s bbbttt e

- Total short and long-termavailable-for-sale investments......... e e eaes 8

Contractual matunty dates for mvestments in bonds and notes A
I.ess than 1 year...{...,.; ..... - o S ‘ | . 3
Greater than 1 year s S : _

X , . ] ‘.
L ' S N Lot

The ‘unrealized garn as of December 31 2003 is recorded m accumulated other comprehensrve income, net of tax of
ZEero:. :

e
[

62




3. Balance Sheet Detail (in thousands):

Trade accounts receivable comprise:

Trade Accounts Receivable..........cooviirveveniecceeseren e,
Allowance for sales TeUMS ... e sensnen
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNTS.....covvvicrvicveeieerce e

Inventories, net, comprise:

RaW MAtETIAlS .....covvrieieiieiriectieiei sttt sesasssssnssessrsensecnesnne:
WOTK I PTOCES S .eeeirireisereiiie e ettt ssss s ssrsasnsons
Finished 200dS.....cccovernivenncmriririeessnreriennn '

Inventory held at logistic center

Other current assets comprise:

Refundable iNCOME taX. ..o e cvcsevesesas s nesares
Other current assets....

Property and Equipment comprise:

Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold IMPIrOVEIMENLS. ..o iicereirreeeirerc e sinnees

Less accurmulated depreciation

Construction in progress .................................

(1) Seven years or remaining lease term, whichever is less

December 31,
2003 2004
$ 57749 $ 61,377
{1,301) {2,009)
(L118) (1,189)
$ 55330 $ 58,179
December 31,
2003 2004
$ 20,735 § 86,355
11,265 4,151
9,579 60,520
4,541 5,592
3 46,120 § 156,618
December 31,
2003 2004
$ 5533 § 6,035
7,699 10,014
$ 13232 § 16,049
Estimated
December 31, Useful
2003 2004 Lives
$ - § 959
: - 1,532  Forty years
13,533 17,662  Fouryears
11,900 13,684  Three years
9,768 13,254  Three years
12 29  Five years
1,958 2,072  Seven years
7,255 8,695 (1)
44,426 57,887
33,392 41,461
11,034 16,426
291 194
$ 11325 § 16,620

Depreciation expense was $9.3 million, $7.7 million and $6.6 million for 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
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Accrued liabilities comprise:

December 31,
o » 2003 2004

Accrued compensation and related costs.... - $ 4911 § 6,829
Accrued adverse puchase commitment..... 537 8,330
Accrued COMMIS SI0M.......cuunrurrrsensivensisnsenens ' ' 1,333 2,198
Impairment lease liability.............. e e 4 215 » 976
Accrued yield COMMBtMENL..........0 0ol 201 1,167
Accrued income taxpayable. 659 2,038
Accrued Warranty.........cocececvueeeefevnecenenns 187 3,826
Other acCrued HADIHIES ....ovuiviveeverceeeenrisieeereins s eererssssacsesaersesens 3,368 5,229

o - $ 11911 $ 30,593

Our technology license agreements generally include an indemnification clause that indemnifies the licensee against
liability and damages (including legal defense costs) arising from any claims of patent, copyright, trademark or trade
secret infringement by our-proprietary technology. The terms of these guarantees approximate the terms of the
technology license agreeménts, which typically range from five to ten years. Our current license agreements expire
from 2005 through 2014. The maximum possible amount of future payments we could be required to make, if such
indemnifications were required on all of these agreements, is $39.7 million. We have not recorded any liabilities as of
December 31, 2004 related to these indemnities as no such claims have been made or asserted.

Accruéd warranty:

Year Ended December 31,

S o 2003 2004
Balance at beginning of year................. ertrere e aa et st easen $ 492 3% 187
Accruals for warranties issued during the period........ccococvreeverenne 485 4,834
Settlements MAde.......covecreerrireneninrnee e (790) (1,195
Balance at end of year............... SN $ 187 $_- 3,826

Our products are generally subject to warranty and we provide for the estimated future costs of repair, replacement or
customer accommodation upon shipment of the product in the accompanying statements of operations. Our warranty
accrual is based on specific known open warranty issues and an estimate of unknown claims. The unknown
estimated accrual is based on historical claims compared to historical revenues and assumes that we have to replace
products subject to a claim. For new products, we use our historical percentage for the appropriate class of product.
Warranty expense has increased from 2003 to 2004 due to rescreening work related to two specific customers and
higher shipment volume and return rates. '

4. Commitments:

We lease our corporate facilities under non-cancelable operating leases that expire in 2005 through 2012, The leases
require escalating monthly payments over their terms and, therefore, periodic rent expense is being recognized on a
straight-line basis. Under the terms of the leases, we are responsible for maintenance costs, including real property
taxes, utilities and other costs. Rent expense was $5.4 million, $5.5 million and $5.0 million in 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively. T

During 2001 and the second quarter of 2004, we recorded charges to other operating expense of $756 thousand and
$1.5 million, respectively, relating to operating leases for two unoccupied buildings. These charges represent the fair
value of the liability determined by reducing the remaining lease commitment by the estimated sublease income
relating to these two buildings., The estimated liability may be adjusted subsequently depending on the actual
sublease income we may receive. At December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, payments made have reduced the recorded
liability to $473 thousand, $270 thousand and $976 thousand, respectively.




Future minimum rental payments at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

$ 4,182
2,941

2,856

2,822

2,905

896
$$6()2'

5. Contingencies:

In January 1996, Atmel Corporation filed suit against SST alleging that we infringed six U.S. patents. We
successfully moved for summary judgment on two of the six asserted patents in September 1997. In January 2001,
Atmel withdrew its allegation that we infringed another patent. On May 7, 2002, a judgment was entered against the
us in the amount of $36.5 million based on a jury’s finding that we infringed two of the three remaining patents. We
appealed the judgment on July 16, 2002. On September 12, 2003 the Court of Appeals upheld the jury’s verdict. On
November 18, 2003 the Court of Appeals denied our request for a rehearing, and in December 2003 we paid Atmel
$37.8 million to satisfy the judgment plus statutory interest accrued during the appeals. The payment was recorded as
other operating expense in the year ending December 31, 2003. In addition, on June 28, 2004 we paid $247 thousand
of legal related expenses incurred by Atmel pursuant to the court order.

The third patent remaining in the case, the ‘903 patent, expired in September 2001. The trial court has held that, if it
is found to be valid, certain of our products infringed that patent. The trial to determine whether the ‘903 patent is
invalid began on July 29, 2002. On August 5, 2002 the jury announced that it was unable to reach a verdict on our
invalidity defense, and a mistrial was declared. Atmel requested a new trial, but the Court stayed the matter until
after our appeal of the earlier judgment is resolved. At Atmel’s request, the Court has directed the parties to conduct
a settlement conference before a Magistrate Judge. That settlement conference was scheduled for April 14, 2004 and
was subsequently rescheduled for September 7, 2004. No conclusion was reached during the settlement conference
on September 7, 2004. A new trial date on the invalidity of the ‘903 patent has been scheduled for June 27, 2005.
The impact related to the outcome of the remaining patent is undeterminable at this time.

In January and February 2005, multiple putative shareholder class action complaints were filed against the Company
and certain directors and officers, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, following
the Company’s announcement of anticipated financial results for the fourth quarter of 2004. The complaints are
captioned: Hunt v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00408 WHA (N.D. Cal.); Baker v. Silicon
Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00295 PJH (N.D. Cal.); Grobler v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.,
et al., Case No. C 05 00376 MHP (N.D. Cal.); Talmo v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 00390
MMC (N.D. Cal.); and DiCintio v. Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., et al., Case No. C 05 0708 MMC (N.D. Cal.).
The complaints seek unspecified damages on alleged violations of federal securities laws during the period from
March 22, 2004 to December 20, 2004. Consolidation and the appointment of lead plaintiff are currently pending in
these purported class actions. The Company intends to take all appropriate action in response to these lawsuits. The
impact related to the outcome of these matters is undeterminable at this time.

In January and February 2005, following the filing of the putative class actions, multiple sharecholder derivative
complaints were filed in California Superior Court for the County of Santa Clara, purportedly on behalf of the
Company against certain directors and officers. The factual allegations of these complaints are substantially identical
to those contained in the putative shareholder class actions filed in federal court. The derivative complaints assert
claims for, among other things, breach of fiduciary duty and violations of the California Corporations Code. These
derivative actions have been consolidated under the caption In Re Silicon Storage Technology, Inc. Derivative
Litigation, Lead Case No. 1:05CV034387 (Cal. Super. Ct., Santa Clara Co.). The Company intends to take all
appropriate action in response to these lawsuits. The impact related to the outcome of these matters is
undeterminable at this time.

From time to time, we are also involved in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. We have
accrued certain costs associated with defending these matters. There can be no assurance the remaining Atmel
complaint or other third party assertions will be resolved without costly litigation, in a manner that is not adverse to
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows or without requiring royalty payments in the future which
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may adversely impact gross margins. No estimate can be made of the possible loss or possible range of loss
associated with the resolution of these contingencies. As a result, no losses have been accrued in our financial
statements as of December 31, 2004.

6. Line of Credit

On July 16, 2004 we entered into a 2-year loan agreement with Cathay Bank, a U.S. bank, for a $3.0 million revolving
line of credit. The interest rate for the line of credit is 3.475% per annum. The line of credit is collateralized by a $3.0
million certificate of deposit which is included in non-current other assets. The certificate of deposit matures in July
2006 and carries an interest rate of 2.6% per annum. As of December 31, 2004, we had no borrowings under our line of
credit.

1. Acqulsmons

Emosyn LLC., On September lO 2004 we consummated the acqu1s1t1on of an 83.6% ownershrp of privately held
Emosyn LLC, or Emosyn, for an aggregate cash purchase price of approximately $16.0 million including costs related to
the acquisition. Emosyn is a semiconductor manufacturer specializing in the design and marketing of smart card ICs for
subscriber identification module, or SIM, card applications. We believe that the acquisition will help Emosyn leverage
our; foundry relationships and manufacturing operation infrastructure in order to meet the rising demand for Emosyn's
smart card products. The acquisition also provides us the opportunity to establish SuperFlash technology as the
technology-of-choice in the strategically important smart card products. The acquisition was accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting, and accordingly, the net assets and results of operations of the acquired business were
mcluded in the consohdated ﬁnancral statements from the date of acqu1s1t10n

In connection wrth the Emosyn acqu1s1t10n we issued the minority stockholder a put option. On the fourth
anniversary date of the closing of the acquisition or if there is an earlier material change in business, the minority.
stockholder shall have the right to require SST to purchase all of its interest at the then current fair market value of
the: mmonty interest’ farr market Value stock price.

The total purchase price was allocated to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and 11ab111t1es assumed as
follows (in thousands) S .

Fair value of tangible net assets acqu1red ........ $ 9,252
Existing technology.......ccuupivsiiivntvnninnenns eeetureeengeneneasensses erreersanneeens erereseeons SO 6,029
- In-process research and.development.........coviicieirinnrenn, . 1,988

TrAdE NAME....oii i i riae s enbssesssessassbassssenssssvasssssason . 1,093
Customer relationships..... 549
BACKIOG.....ooveeeesecirees i bivesenssessssesssssssssssssssssionsssnsssssnns e snssersee st asenes v 712
" Trade accounts payable accrued expenses and other hab1ht1es ..................... vt (3.621)
Total purchase pnce ............................ Larrteeetveetessersneseteeb e ket et ee bt en st et s et bR bt b beene $ 16,002

We valued the existing technology and in-process research and development, or IP R&D, utilizing a discounted cash
flow model which uses forecasts of future revenues and expenses related to the intangible asset. We utilized a discount
rate of 30% for existing technology, trade name and customer relationships, 50% for in-process research and
development, and 18% for backlog, respectively. The existing technology and trade name are amortized to cost of
‘revenues over their estimated lives of five years. The customer relationships and backlog are amortized to cost of
revenues over their estimated lives of one to three years. As of December 31, 2004 existing technology, trade name,
customer relatlonslnps and backlog are all mcluded in mtangrble assets

In-process research and development acqulred of $2 0 millionh was expensed and included in other operating expenses as
of the date of the acquisition. At the time of the Emosyn acquisition, we estimated that the acquired [P R&D was -
approximately 30% complete and would be completed over the next nine months at an estimated cost of approximately
$484 thousand.

G- Plus Inc. On November 5, 2004, we purchased substantially all the assets. of G-Plus Inc., or G-Plus, a pnvately held
company located in Santa Monica, California. ' The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, and accordingly, the et asséts and results of G-Plus’ operations have been included in the consolidated
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financial statements since that date. G-Plus is a semiconductor manufacturer specializing in the design and marketing of
radio frequency 1Cs and monolithic microwave ICs for a wide range of wireless and multimedia applications. The
acquisition provides us the opportunity to make SuperFlash the embedded memory of choice for wireless applications.
We also believe that the acquisition will help G-Plus leverage our foundry relationships and manufacturing operation
infrastructure in order to meet the rising demand for G-Plus wireless products.

The aggregate purchase price was $26.9 million, including $4.6 million of cash, common stock valued at $22.1 million
and costs related to the acquisition of $200 thousand. The fair value of the 3,030,082 shares of our common stock issued
to the former stockholders of G-Plus was determined based on the average closing price of the Company’s common
stock over a two-day trading period prior to the closing date. Below is a summary of the total preliminary purchase
price (in thousands): )

Common stock.....ovcverrirccnns e anesie s
Acquisition direct costs
Total purchase price

The total purchase price was allocated to the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows
(in thousands):

Fair value of tangible net assets aCqUITEd........covceirceiernrineiriseesesesesssss e sens s sesssesssnsens $ 5,983
EXIStING tECHNOL0ZY cvecviiiicirciice ettt b et e nes s 1,814
In-process research and develoPIMENLT.........oov e esesserenss 3,908
Customer relationships 355
BaCKIOZ. ..ot bR SRR 11
GOOAWILL . ...t taecse et e rsb s s e s st bt e s e e n st 15,600
Trade accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities........cocevnresecreen, et (803)
TOtal PUICRASE PIICE...vvuevrierieeereirecereveaeesersraiseseseensssisstsss e sessassnssas s s ssssassssssssasssnssssacssnssseessonsanes $ 26,868

We valued the existing technology and in-process research and development, or IP R&D, utilizing a discounted cash
flow model which uses forecasts of future revenues and expenses related to the intangible asset. We utilized a discount
rate of 28% for existing technology and customer relationships, 30-35% for in-process research and development
projects, and 26% for backlog, respectively. The existing technology is amortized to cost of revenues over its estimated
life of four years. The customer relationships and backlog are amortized to cost of revenues over their estimated lives of
one to three years. As of December 31, 2004, existing technology, customer relationships and backlog are all included
in intangible assets.

In-process research and development acquired of $3.9 million was expensed and included in other operating expenses
as of the date of the acquisition. At the time of the G-Plus acquisition, we estimated that the acquired IP R&D projects
were between 20% to 80% complete and would be completed over the next fourteen months at an estimated cost of
approximately $1.2 million.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of Emosyn and G-
Plus as if the acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of 2004 and 2003. The pro forma financial information does
not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would have occurred had the combined companies constituted a
single entity during such periods, and is not necessarily indicative of results which may be obtained in the future.
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December 31,

(Unaudited)
: 2003 2004
Revenue......o.oivivcernenns et Ee e e eeeerine e iressaraser s sensaernes $ 303,791 § 470,956
Net income (1088 )....overnenierennrisneesinnsernt et ese s ne $ (75,308) $ 18,550
Net income (loss) per share - basic............... SO . § (0.80) $ 0.19
$ 0.19

i

Net income (loss) per‘sh‘qré - diluted............. et e $ (0.80)

8. Goodwill and Ihtangibie Assets:

As discussed in note 7, our acquisitions of Emosyn and G-Plus included the acquisition of $10.6 million of finite- '
~ lived intangible assets. The acquisition of G-Plus also included the acquisition of $15.6 million of goodwill. The
goodwill is not being amortized, but is tested for impairment annually, as well as when an event or circumstance
occurs indicating a possible impairment in value.

As of December 31, 2004, our intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

, Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Existing technology.....c..coovennvceneennn. $ 7,843 §$ 437 § 7,406
Trade NAME....ccoccoevecrrrresseosiovrenrrerss | 1,093 67 1,026
Customer relationships........ocoocveceenn. 904 73 831
Backlog....cocovvernreereincenimnnineceseerensennens, ‘ 723 219 504
$ 10,563 $ 79 $ 9,767

All intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Existing
technologies have been assigned useful live of between four and five years (with a weighted average life of
approximately 4.8 years). Trade namegs, customer relationships and backlogs have been assigned useful lives of five
years, three years and one year, respectively. Amortization expense was $796 thousand and $496 thousand in 2004
and 2002, respectively. There was no amortization expense in 2003,

Estimated future intangible asset amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in thousands):

{ Amortization of

! . Intangible Assets
2005 $ 2,684
2006 L2179
S 2007 S 2105
C2008 1,809
2009 990

$ 9,767
9. Stock-based Cdmpens‘ation:‘
Employee Stock Purchase Plan:

Our 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or the Purchase Plan, as amended, has 6.0 million shares reserved for
issuance. The Purchase Plan provides for eligible employees to purchase shares of common stock at a price equal to
85% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of the option grant, or, if lower, 85% of the fair market
value of our common stock six months after the option grant, by withholding up to 10 percent of their annual base
earnings. At December 31, 2004, 1.9 million shares were available for purchase under the Purchase Plan. Shares
issued under the Purchase Plan in 2002, 2003 and 2004 were 517 thousand, 931 thousand and 507 thousand,
respectively.

Egquity Incentive Plan:

Our 1995 Equity Incentive Plan, or the Equity Incentive Plan, as amended, has 31.8 million shares of common stock
reserved for issuance upon the exercise of stock options to our employees, directors, consultants and affiliates.
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Under the Equity Incentive Plan, the Board of Directors has the authority to determine to whom options will be
granted, the number of shares under option, the option term and the exercise price. The options generally are
exercisable beginning one year from date of grant and generally thereafter over periods ranging from four to five
years from the date of grant. The term of any options issued may not exceed ten years from the date of grant.

Directors' Option Plan:

Our 1995 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan, or the Directors' Plan, as amended, provides for the automatic
initial grant of options to purchase 45 thousand shares of our common stock to our non-employee directors. The
Directors' Plan also provides for the grant of options to purchase up to an additional 18 thousand shares annually
thereafter. Options under the Directors' Plan become exercisable immediately upon date of grant, and the exercise
price of options granted must equal or exceed the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The
options expire ten years after the date of grant. As of December 31, 2004, we have reserved 950 thousand shares of
common stock for issuance upon the exercise of stock options under the Directors' Plan.

Activity under the Equity Incentive Plan and Directors' Plan are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Available Weighted

for - Options Outstanding Average

‘ Grant Shares Price Per Share Amount Price
Balances, December 31, 2001.......... 3,814 10,8387 § 005 -3 2944 § 77642 § 7.13
Granted.....ooovverecrererressnscennnneees (1,377) 1,377 365 - - 10.80 7,133 5.16
- (1,193) 0.05 - 8.63 (1,227) 1.03
417 417) 0.68 - 29.44 (4,038) 9.68

2,200 - - - — -
5,054 10,654 0.05 - 29.44 79,510 7.46
Granted.......cooevereeemriiennereerenneeennes (1,337) 1,337 2.30 - 13.57 11,460 8.57
EXEICISed. . ooverrrirerererirrenareneenenes - (1,102) 0.05 - 10.29 (2,305) 2.09
Terminated......ooverevrerneeseenrennneces 742 (742) 095 - 26.02 (9,595) 12.98
Authorized........ocovvvevrcveennan, 1,650 - - - - -
Balances, December 31,2003.......... 6,109 - 10,147 0.07 - 29.44 79,070 7.79
Granted....c.ocoeeecrineienniesenscenenns (2,395) 2,395 577 - 16.34 19,531 8.15
Exercised...ovmrereerrireerrveenrenns - (1,067) 0.07 - 11.81 (2,786) 261
Terminated.......ooovererereerecrercenns 444 (444 2.83 - 26.02 (4,998) 11.25
Balances, December 31, 2004.......... 4,158 11,031 $ 008 -8 2944 $_ 90,817 § 8.23

At December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, 6.6 million, 6.9 million and 6.9 million options were exercisable at a
weighted-average exercise price per share of $6.62, $7.96 and $8.59, respectively.

The options outstanding and currently exercisable by exercise price under the Equity Incentive Plan and the Directors'
Plan at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands, except per exercise price data):
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. Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

. Weighted- o

! B Awrage Weighted- Weighted-

‘ . .+ .7 .1 Remaining Awerage Awverage

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Prices QOutstanding Life Price Outstanding Price

$ . 008- 8 104 .0 1178 .. 3063 0.94 L175 § 0.94
$ 1.08- § 3,65, . 1,671 - . 565 % 2.69. 1,108 $ 226
§ 381- % 471 L1117 . 654 % 4.45 _ 905 $ 447
$ . 472- %, 648 . . 1299 851 § . 603 348 % 525
$ - 666~ 8 ¢ 8&l6: .. L1l 950 % - 147 9 8§ 7.92
5. 828- % 932 - 1,256 773 8 9.00 434 § - 8.63
$ 964- § 11.81 1,466, . 510 8% 10.76 1,260 § 10.77
$ 1185- $ 18.60 1,283 645 3§ 16.55 854 % 17.99
$ 1996~ -8~ 2835 - 636 545 % 24.08 636 § 24.08
$ 2944 - § 29.44 17 550 § 2044 17§ 2944
3 008- § 2944 11,031 643 § 823 6,886 $ 859

The fair value of each th’i'on grant for both of the SST stock option plans are estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes multiple options pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions by year:

- . Year ended December 31,
‘ Cd 2002 2003 2004
RiSK-free INLETESt TALE....vvvnrrevrsorrseiersrnserenisncsessssenssssssnenes L 2849% 243.1% 2.7-3.9%
Expected term of option . "6 years 5 years S years
Expected volatility...........coo.... I 99% 99% 94%
Expected dividend yield : = 0% 0% 0%

The fair value of each stock purchase right is estimated using the Black-Scholes model with the following weighted
average assumptions by year: - ‘

Year ended December 31,

: . . , 2002 2003 2004
Risk-free INtErest rate...oo.. o ituurummrereeereorenseemenenneeees R C2123%  1.0-14% 12-2.1%
Expected term of right........... e s 1/2 year 1/2 year 1/2 year
Expected volatiity:...........cccco.. et o 102% '86% 74%
Expected dividend yield.......................: evsesersssssessssssssissiee ’ 0% 0% 0%

Option grants and Purchase Plan righfs are priced at the date of grant. The risk-free interest rate rahge represents the
low and high end of the range used at different points during the year.

Stock Options in Emosyn International Limited:

In 2004, Emosyn International Limited, a majority-owned subsidiary of SST, adopted a stock option plan to grant
nonstatutory and incentive stock options to purchase common stock of Emosyn to employees, directors and
consultants. Emosyn stock options do not create a right to purchase the common stock of SST. As of December 31,
2004, 8.8 million shares of its common stock were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of stock options. Stock
options are granted at prices determined by the Board of Directors. Nonstatutory and incentive stock options may be
granted at prices not less than 85% of the fair market value and at not less than fair market value, respectively, at the
date of grant. Options generally become exercisable one year after the date of grant and vest over a maximum period
of five years following the date of grant. Emosyn has not granted stock options to non-employees.

The following table summarizes Emosyn International Limited’s option activities for 2004 (in thousands, except per
share data):

Weighted
Awailable Options Outstanding Awerage
‘ for Grant Shares Amount Price
Shares authorized..........ccovvvvevinveveninnnns 8,824
Options granted...........ccoeevvneeerneirineniens (5,289) 5289 $ 2,539 § 0.48

Balance at December 31, 2004.............. 3,535 5289 § 2,539 % 0.48




As of December 31, 2004, no options were vested. The weighted average remaining life of the options outstanding is
4.7 years. The fair value of each option grant for Emosyn’s stock option plan is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes multiple options pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for 2004: risk-
free interest rate of 3.3-3.9%, expected term of right of 5 years, expected volatility of (% and expected dividend yield
of 0%. Option grants are priced at the date of grant. The risk-free interest rate range represents the low and high end
of the range used at different points during the year.

10. Shareholders' Equity:
Authorized Capital Shares:

Our authorized capital shares consist of 250.0 million shares of common stock and 7.0 million shares of preferred
stock. Of the preferred stock, 450 thousand shares have been designated as series A junior participating preferred
stock. All of our capital shares have no par value.

Share Purchase Rights Plan:

We have a Share Purchase Rights Plan, adopted in May 1999 and subsequently amended, in which preferred stock
rights were distributed as a rights dividend at a rate of one right for each share of common stock held as of the close
of business on May 27, 1999. Preferred stock rights will also be issued with any new issuance of common shares.
Each right entitles the reg1stered holder under certain circumstances to purchase from us one three-hundredth (one-
third of one one-hundredth) of a share of series A junior panicipating preferred stock. Until the occurrence of certain
events the preferred stock rights will be transferable with and only with the Common Shares. The effect will be to
discourage acquisitions of more than 15 percent of our common stock without negotiations with our Board of
Directors. The rights expire May 3, 2009.

Stock Repurchase Program:

On July 28, 2004, our board of directors authorized the purchase of an aggregate of up to $15.0 million of our
common stock. The purchases were made in the open market at prevailing market prices, subject to compliance with
applicable provisions of the California Corporation Code and in accordance with applicable federal and state
securities laws and regulations. The stock purchase program ended on December 31, 2004. Approximately
2,574,000 shares were repurchased under this program during August and September 2004 for an aggregate purchase
price of $14.9 million. The purchase prices ranged from $5.48 to $6.12 per share.

11. Net Income (Loss) Per Share:

A reconciliation of the numerator and the denominator-of basic and diluted net loss per share are as follows (in
thousands except for per share data): -
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“

: Year ended December 31,
AR 2002 2003 2004

Nuinerator - Basic: aﬁd' diluted ‘
Net income (loss) ................. OO OO SOOI STOUUNOOROT SRR $ (15,095) $ (65,167) $ 23,929
- B . : .
Denormnator Bas1cn o ‘ . 4
Weighted average common stock outstandmg ............................ 92,667 94,723 95,756
Basic net income (I0s8) per share.......cccvveenerennncnneninerecnescnna: $ (0.16) $ (0.69) $ 0.25
Numerator - Diluted: , ‘ : ‘
"Net ICOME (J0SS).uur v sssiinsrersssssisissesssssessses s sssans $ (15,095) $ (65,167) $ 23,929
Denominator - Dﬂuted e : ' . .
Weighted average common stock outstandmg ....... ez . 92,667 94,723 95,756
Dilutive potential of common stock equivalents: '
OPHIONS .ccev vt emmcsesstneensisaes e - - 3,387
: oo 92,667 94,723 99,143
Diluted net income (10ss) per share.............. e sees e $ 0.16) $ 0.69) $ 024

Anti- dllutlve stock optlons to purchase approxunately 5,363, 000 shares of common stock with a weighted average
price of $13.03 were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share for 2004 because the exercise
price of the opt1ons exceeded the’ average fair market value of the stock for 2004. Stock options to purchase 10.7

Tnillion and 10.1 rmlhon shares of common stock with weighted average price of $7.46 and $7.79 were outstanding at

~ December 31, 2002 and 2003, respec‘uvely, but were not mcluded in the computation of diluted net loss per share

because we had a net loss i in 2002 and 2003.
12. Other Operating Expenses:

Other operating expenses comprised (m thousands):

RS T : Year ended December 31,
ERE b R - 2002 2003 2004
Operating lease impairment... ... S S - 3 - 8 1,479
In-process research and development..........i...............' s - - 5,896
Atmel Settlement................ SN rreeseeeteensen e - : 37,849 -
8 - 8 37849 § 7,375

Operating lease impairment. During the second quarter of 2004, we recorded a period charge to other operating
expense of $1.5 million relating to an operating lease for an abandoned building. This charge represents the
estimated difference between the total discounted future sublease income and our discounted lease commitments
relating to this building. At December 31,2002, 2003 and 2004, payments made have reduced the recorded liability

. to $473 thousand, $270 thousand and $976 thousand, respectively.

In-process research and development. In September 2004, we acquired a majority of the outstanding shares of
Emosyn LLC, or Emosyn, and in November 2004 we acquired substantially all of the assets of G-Plus, Inc, or G-
Plus. As discussed in note 7, a portion of the purchase price of each acquisition was allocated to in-process research
and development and immediately expensed. The amount of in-process research and development included in other
operating expenses from the Emosyn and G-Plus was $2.0 million and $3.9 million, respectively.

Atmel Settlement. In September 2003, the Federal Circuit Court issued a decision upholding the trial court verdict
that we infringed on the ‘811 and ‘829 patents in our lawsuit with Atmel. As a result of that decision, we accrued the
judgement of $36.5 ‘million. In October 2003, the court denied our petition to reconsider its decision. In December
2003, we recorded an additional $1.3 million in settlement fees related to the interest on the judgement from the time
the judgement was entered in May 2002 to the payment date of the judgement in December 2003. The total
judgement and interest of $37.8 million was paid to Atmel in December 2003.  °

13. Impairment of Equity Investments:

In 2000, we acquired a 10.0% interest m Apacer Technology, Inc., or Apacer, a privately held company located in
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Taiwan that designs, manufactures and markets memory modules, for $9.9 million in cash. Our investment in Apacer
was valued at cost. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member of
Apacer's Board of Directors. In 2001, we invested an additional $2.1 million in Apacer. In August 2002, we made an
additional investment of $181 thousand. At the end of the third quarter of 2002, we determined that a continued and
significant decline in Apacer's price per share was other than temporary, and accordingly, in the third quarter of 2002,
we recorded a period charge to other expense of $7.8 million to write down our investment in Apacer to $4.4 million
which was determined using the price per share paid for the additional investment in August 2002.

During 2003, Insyde, a company in which we have an investment, completed an initial public offering on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. Since the initial public offering there had been a significant decline in the market value of the
investment. During 2004, we recognized a $509 thousand loss from the impairment of our equity investment because
Insyde’s stock price had declined below the acquisition cost for more than six months. We could not conclude that
the value of our investment would be recovered in the foreseeable future. The impairment was, therefore, considered
to be "other-than-temporary" in nature, thus the investment value was permanently written down to reflect the fair
value.

14. Income Taxes:

The provision for income taxes reflected in the Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2003 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

. Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004
Current: A
Federal | o $ (3912) $ 2516 736
State.....oonn e eenenenns 1 ‘ 2 2
0] (<3124 OO RO P OORPROTON renrenes 16 1,580 3,168
' : (3,895) 4,098 3,906
(5,874) 16,818 -
(1,162) 5,500 -
(7,036) - 22318 -
'3 (10931) $ 26,416 3,906
Our effective tax rate (benefit)/provision differs from the statutory federal income tax rate as shown in the following
schedule: -
Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004
United States statutory Tate.....coecererrnicrcerenierens (35.0% (35.0)% 350%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4.5) - -
Foreign taxes, Net.......vcvvinrccnninninine et - 40 129
Research and development credit........ooevverrrrririnnns (5.9 (4.8) 4.0)
Tax exempt INLEIES . rvurrreeerrienirirersssereeees v rennennes 2.5 (2.0 2.6)
Capital loss carried forward and not
benefitted.........ocoveveirmenic s 10.4 - -
Change in estimated taX CONtINZENCY .ccvevvrrerrcerrermmnn. 4.3) - (1.5)
Change in valuation allowance.........c.oouvevienencnricnenn, . 106.1 (30.5)
Write offs - - 49
OLHET. ..o ssnss i es e ecssesesssssasenssacns 0.2) 0.1) 0.2
(42.0)% 68.2 % 14.0 %

As of December 31, 2003 and 2004 our deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted of (in thousands):
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o S o a o December 31,
R o 2003 2004

Allowance for excess and obsolete mventory . TN S 25520 8 237
Allowance for sales returns ; ' 457 7
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ respeseseeesnanes 419 48
(0731 SO SOOI i ————- 2,803 2,500
Capitalized research and'development.... eeereeveseone ' 2,052 1,591
Net operating 105§, CarTy-fOrwards........c.ccurerurmmmmnsensersiriresgoninssssnsseesee 10,516 o . 1,456
Depreciation.........cccoizoifoereivisenenensses v . 803 o - 1,902
Taxcredits................ [ rrenrereresiebeeerretererensseenren efeenihberenes PRI 21,512 - 20,213
et b, 3 41,114 § 27974
(41,114) (27,191
. - (783)
$ - 3 --

Our provision for taxes included'a charge recorded during the third quarter of 2003 to establish a full valuation
allowance against our deferred tax assets offset by a reduction in income tax payable as a result of a reassessment of
expected liabilities for 2003 and certain exposures. During the year of 2004, we maintained a full valuation
allowance oh’our net deferred tax assets The valiation allowance was determined in accordance with the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No. 109, or SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which
requires an.assessment of both positive and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not
that deferred tax assets are recoverable; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis.
Cumulative losses incurred i Jin the U.S. in recent years represented sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109
and accordingly, a full valuanon allowance was recorded against U.S. deferred tax assets. We intend to maintain a
full valuation allowance on the U.S. deferred tax assets until sufficient positive evidence exists to support reversal of
the valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2004, we had $4.2M of federal net operating loss carryforward and had no state net operating loss
carry forwards, At December31, 2004, we had available research and development credit carryforwards for federal
and state income tax purposes ofi$12.8 million and $7.1 million, respectively. The federal carryforwards expire
between 2009 and 2024. The state carryforwards has no expiration dates.

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries of approximately $6.4 million at December 31, 2004,
are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes have
been provided thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company
would be sub_]ect to both U.S.. income ‘taxes (subject to an ad]ustment for foreign tax credits) and withholding taxes
payable to various foreign countnes

" On October 22, 2004, the Pres1dent signed the Amencan Jobs Creat1on Act of 2004 or the Job Act Among other :
‘provisions, the Job Act includes a temporary incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated income earned
abroad. We currently do not intend to repatriate foreign earnings under the Job Act. It is not anticipated that the -
other provisions of the Job Act will have a material impact on our effectlve tax rate )

15. Segment Reporting:

Our operations involve the design, development manufacturing, marketing and technical support of our nonvolanle
memory products. We offerlow to medium density devices that target a broad range of existing and emerging
applications in the digital consumer, networking, wireless communications and Internet computing markets. Our
products are differentiated based upon attributes such as density, voltage, access speed, package and predicted °
endurance. 'We also license out technology for use in non-competing applications.

We manage our business in six reportable segments: the Standard Memory Product Group, or SMPG, the Application
Specific Product Group, or ASPG, the Special Product Group, or SPG, the Emosyn Products, or Emosyn, the SST
Communications Corporation Products, or SCC, and Technology Licensing. We do not allocate operating expenses,
interest and other income, interest expense, impairment of equity investments and provision for or benefit from
income taxes to any of these segments for internal reporting purposes, as we do not believe that allocating these
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expenses are material in evaluating a business unit's performance.

SMPG includes our three standard flash memory product families: the Multi-Purpose Flash, or MPF, family, the
Multi-Purpose Flash Plus, or MPF+, family and the Many-Time Programmable, or MTP, family. These families
allow us to produce products optimized for cost, functionality and quality to support a broad range of mainstream
applications that use nonvolatile memory products. - Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred certain MTP products
from SMPG to SPG. Effective July 1, 2003, we transferred the Small Sector Flash, or SSF, family from SMPG to
SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred the last MTP series of products from SMPG to SPG. Accordingly,
our segment revenues and gross profit information have been reclassified for presentation purposes as if the transfer
occurred as of January 1, 2002. o

ASPG includes Concurrent SuperFlash, Serial Flash, Firmware Hub, or FWH, and Low Pin Count, or LPC, flash
products. These products are designed to address specific applications such as cellular phones, hard disk drives and
PCs. ASPG also includes flash embedded controllers such the ATA flash disk controller to consumer, industrial and
mass data storage applications. Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred FlashFlex51 microcontroller products from
ASPG to SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenue and gross margin information have been reclassified for
presentation purposes as if the transfer occurred as of January 1, 2002.

SPG includes ComboMemory, ROM/RAM Combos, the Small Sector Flash, or SSF, family, certain Multi-Time
Programmable, or MTP, family, FlashFlex51 microcontrollers and other special flash products. These products are
used in applications requiring low power and a small form factor such as cellular phones, wireless modems, MP3
players, pagers and digital organizers. Effective January 1, 2003, we transferred certain MTP products from SMPG
to SPG and FlashFlex51 microcontroller products from ASPG to SPG. Effective July 1, 2003, we transferred the SSF
family from SMPG to SPG. Effective January 1, 2004, we transferred the last MTP series of products from SMPG to
SPG. Accordingly, our segment revenue and gross margin information have been reclassified for presentation
purposes as if the transfer occurred as of January 1, 2002.

Emosyn includes flash memory based microprocessor chips. The Theseus Platinum product family specifically
targets the smart card market through the sales of the TP-40, TP-62, TP-100 and TP-130 products. These products
are used primarily in cell phone applications, and include such benefits of use as lower power consumption, long term
data retention and high endurance of data access. We acquired a majority ownership of Emosyn on September 10,
2004. The segment data is reflected from this date through the end of the year.

SSC includes RF transmitter, receiver, synthesizer, power amplifier and switch products. These products provide
end-to-end RF solutions to enable wireless multimedia and broadband networking applications. We formed SST
Communications Corporation and acquired the operations of G-Plus, Inc. on November 5, 2004. The segment data is
reflected from this date through the end of the year. .

Technology licensing includes both up front license fees and royalties.
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The following table shows our product revenues and grass profit (loss) for each segment (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2004

b ‘o Gross
D o Revenues. Profit (Loss)
$ 269,376 $ 48,352
S 73,221 : 19,429
44,636 12,706
16,905 2363 -
_ 593 12)
Technology Licens}gg SR : 44,467 44.467
. e $ 449,198 $ 127,105
. 4 PRI UR P et B - .
R A R I Year Ended December 31,2003
RN LT e o Rewvenues Gross Profit
I ¢ T, e e $ 166,776 $" 21,428
" ASPG..e ' ‘ , . 60481 11,544
SPG...ooosrrsssessossbesmsenissesssos s s 29272 4782
Technology Licensing... ...t - 38,512 38512
‘ e e e $. . 295041 $ 76,266
: SICE - o :
SRR P Year Ended December 31,2002
RS E “ - Revenues - _Gross Profit
SMPG.....coiiieericricenieericr et erssesesaes $ 143,194 § 5,451
ASPG............... TR POO . . 67,791 24,534
B ST S 33,036 779
- Technology LicCensing........oooocorupecsvensssmmsinnes e o 30,637 30,637
T ‘ $__ 274658 $ 68,412
Our net revenues are all denominated in U.S. dollars and are summarized as follows (in thousands):
. T Year ¢nded December 31,
| E R . 2002 2003 T 2004
United States........... SOOIV 21871 § 19,600 $ 32,833
BUTOPE.cccorrevvorcrersenesesensessessessesssnn e e 10,599 9,957 28,863
JAPAN ..ttt 28,465 27,575 35,233
KOTE@....cvivirnrernreesiannnceressneesfrccuserassassesssrasssssssenssosssessens. 30,321 25214 36,715
Taiwan....c..ccovveeennnis O, ‘ 91,219 109,254 125,491
China (including Hong Kong)........ 70,609 76,107 148,100
Other Asian countries...........coocevevenenae JRT 21,574 27,334 41,963
R $ 274658 § 295041 §$ 449.198

Foreign revenue is based on the country to which the product is shipped by us or our logistics center.

76




The locations and net book value of long-lived assets follows:

December 31,
2003 2004
$ 10,052 § 13,443
855 1,035
299 898
119 1,244
$ 11325 § 16,620
16. Equity Investments and Related Party Reporting:
Equity investments comprise (in thousands):
December 31, 2004
Long-term Total
Equity Available for Sale Equity
Inves tments Inves tments Inves tment
Advanced Chip Engineering Technology ................... b 4012 $ - 3 4,012
Apacer Technology, INC .....occoveernernrenercnceceeicene, 4,357 - 4,357
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation ..... 83,150 - 83,150
Insyde Software Corporation (1).....ccccoorvvverrmvnerrrerrnnens 322 266 588
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited..................... - 2,318 2,318
Nanotech Corporation ........eecomeerrerernernrresssrnnnnns 3,767 - 3,767
Powertech Technology, Incorporated .........cccevcuneee. 767 14,076 14,843
Professional Computer Technology Limited (2).......... 675 6,434 7,109
Silicon Technology Co., Ltd ....ccovverieccinsnrcccnennnn, 939 - 939
OLHET ..ottt sos 574 -- 574
3 98,563 $ 23,094 § 121,657
December 31,2003
Long-term Total
Equity Available for Sale Equity
Inves tments Investments Inves tment
Apacer Technology, Inc ....c.ccoinnncnnenieenenenn, $ 4358 § - 3 4,358
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation .... 50,000 - 50,000
Insyde Software Corporation......ceeeeierecreireneronnenn: 466 397 863
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited.................... - 3,218 3,218
Powertech Technology, Incorporated .........cocoouveunece. 1,206 5,498 6,704
Professional Computer Technology Limited................ 7715 3,810 4,585
Silicon Technology Co., Ltd ..ccccooveviniciinnncriecnnennn, 939 - 939
OtRET. ..ottt et seseessis 333 -- 333
$ 58,077 $ 12923 § 71,000

(1) Includes $133 thousand in convertible bonds.
(2) Includes $1.3 million in convertible bonds.
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The following table is a summary of our related party revenues and purchases (in thousands):

)

Silicon Technology Co., Itd....
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities...............

Silicon Professional Techno

logy Ltd...oooverrerereinens

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation.....

King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited

Powertech Technology, Incorporated.........coocounee.

Silicon Technology Co., Ltd

Apacer Technology, Inc and related.entities...

Silicon Professional Techno

(74770 5 7 SO

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation.....
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited...........co.......
Powertech Technology, Incorporated........cocvvinienanne

Silicon Technology Co., Ltd
Acer and related entities (1).

Apacer Technology, Inc and related chtities‘.....‘.,..‘ ...... ‘

Professional Computer Technolo gy Liinhed ................

Silicon Professional Techrio

logy Ltd.coeveeereccesirirecens

King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited.........c....c...
Powertech Technology, Incorporated........coovcerecens,

(1) Excludes Apacer Technology, Inc. balances.

Year Ended
December 31,2004
Revenues Purchases
7,943 § - --
2,359 707
214,195 -
156 59,278
- 38,248
-- 14,718
224653 $ 112,951
Year Ended
December 31,2003
Rewenues Purchases
3615 § -
1,555 2,361
164,810 -
-- 12
-- 19,659
-- 9,280
169,980 $ 31,312
" Year Ended
December 31,2002
Rewenues Purchases
. 208 § -
_ 269 -
‘ 899 588
141 -
140,003 -
-- 18,163
-- 8,378
143401 $ 27,129
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The following table is a summary of our related party accounts receivable and accounts payable and accruals (m
thousands):

Decmber 31,2003 Decmber 31,2004

Accounts Accounts
Accounts Payable and Accounts Payable and
Receivable Accruals Receivable Accruals
Silicon Technology Co., Ltd................... T .8 2328 - $ - 322§ -
Apacer Technology, Inc and related entities............... : S 400 736 458 . 320
Professional Computer Technology Limited............... - 15 - 72
Silicon Professional Technology Lid..........o.cccurreer .. 40588 550 32,037 . 6%
Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation.... ' - - 156 17,227
King Yuan Electronics Company, Limited - 6,896 - 13,702
Powertech Technology, Incorporated............ ) - 2,533 - 3,867
Other..cicict e : L= 4 - -
: $ ~41220 3 10,734 S 32973 § 35882

In 1996, we acquired a 14% interest in Silicon Technology Co., Ltd., or Silicon Technology, a privately held
Japanese company, for $939 thousand in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEQ and Chairman of our Board of
Directors, is also a member of Silicon Technology's board of directors. We acquired the interest in Silicon
Technology in order to provide a presence for our products in Japan. We now have our own office in Japan, although
Silicon Technology continues to sell our products to smaller customers: At December 31, 2004 our investment,
which is carried at cost, represented 9% of the outstanding equity of Silicon Technology. Our sales to Silicon
Technology were made at prevailing market prices and the payment terms are consistent with the payment terms
extended to.our other customers. We are not obligated to provide Silicon Technology with any additional financing.

In 2000, we acquired a 10% interest in Apacer Technology, Inc, or Apacer, for $9.9 million in cash. Apacer,a
privately held Taiwanese company and a related entity of Acer, is a memory module manufacturer. Bing Yeh, our
President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member of Apacer's board of directors. In 2001,
we invested an additional $2.1 million in Apacer. In August 2002, we made an additional investment of $181
thousand. The investment was written down to $4.4 million during 2002, refer to Note 13 of these Notes to the -
Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2004 our investment represented 10% of the outstanding
equity of Apacer. :

In 2000, we acquired a 15% interest in Professional Computer Technology Limited, or PCT, a privately held
Taiwanese company, for $1.5 million in cash. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of
Directors, is also a member of PCT's board of directors. PCT is one of our stocking representatives. In May 2002,
we made an additional investment of $179 thousand in PCT. During 2003, PCT completed an initial public offering
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and we sold a portion of our holdings. Under Taiwan security regulations, a certain
number of shares must be held in a central custody and are restricted from sale for a period of time. The shares
available for sale within one year are carried at the quoted market price and included in long-term available-for-sale
investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004. Shares required to be held in custody for greater
than a one year period are carried at cost and included in equity investments. In February 2004, we invested an
additional $1.7 million cash in PCT’s European convertible bonds which are included in long-term available-for-sale
investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2004. At December 31,2004 our investment represented 13%
of the outstanding equity and 13% of the European convertible bonds of PCT.

PCT and its subsidiary, Silicon Professional Alliance Coxporatxon or SPAC, earn commissions for pomt-of—sales
transactions to its customers. Commissions to PCT and SPAC are paid at the same rate as all of our other stocking
representatives in Asia. In 2002, 2003 and 2004 we paid sales commissions of $2.5 million, $1.2 million and $579
thousand, respectively, to PCT and SPAC. . Shipments, by us or our logistics center, to PCT and SPAC for reshipment
accounted for 10.3%, 27.3% and 31.3% of our product shipments in 2002, 2003 and 2004. In addition, PCT and
SPAC solicited sales, for.which they earned a commission, for 19.5%, 12.0% and 3.3% of our shipruents to end-users
in 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively. ‘
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In 2001, PCT estabhshed a separate company and wholly-owned subsidiary, Silicon Professional Technology Ltd,, or
SPT, to providé planning, warehousing, delivery, billing, collection and other logistic functions for us in Taiwan.
SPT now services substantrally all of our end customers based in Taiwan, China and other Southeast Asia countries.
.Product shipped to SPT is accounted for as our inventory held at our logistics center, and revenue is recognized when
_the products have been delivered and are considered as a sale to our end customers by SPT. We pay SPT a fee based
on a,percentage of revenue for each product sold through SPT to our end customers. The fee paid to SPT covers the
cost of warehousing and insuring inventory and accounts receivable, personnel costs required to maintain logistics
and information technology functions and the costs to perform billing and collection of accounts receivable. SPT
receives extended payment terms and must pay us whether or not they have collected the accounts receivable.

In 2000, we acquired a 1% interest in King Yuan Electronics Company Limited, or KYE, a publicly held Taiwanese
company, which is a productlon subcontractor, for $4.6 million in ¢ash,” A'member of our managemént team holds a
supervisor position at KYE! ‘The role and responsibilities of a supervisor are defined and governed by Corporate Law
~ in Taiwan. The investment was made in KYE in order to strengthen the relationship between us and KYE. During
2001, KYE completed an mltlal public offering on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the investment has

" been included in long-term avarlable-for-sale investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004.

 From the date of the initial public offering to December 31, 2001, there had been a significant decline in the market
* . value of the investment. We concluded that the decline in value was “other-than-temporary" and a write down of $3.3
million was necessary in 2001. The investment was written down to $1.3 million based on the quoted market price as
of December 31, 2001. The investment is valued at $2.3 million as of December 31, 2004 based on the quoted
market price. At December 31, 2004, our 1nvestment represented O 5% of the outstanding equity of KYE

i gl ¥
In 2000, we acqurred a 3% interest in Powertech Technology, Inc., or PTI a privately held Taiwanese company,
which is a production subcontractor,.for $2.5 million in cash. Bmg Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of the
Board of Directors, is'also a member of PTT's board of directors. During 2003, PTI completed an initial public
offering on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and we sold a portion of our holdings. Under Taiwan security regulations, a
certain number of shares must be held.in a central custody and are restricted from sale for a period of time. The
shares available for sale:within one year are carried at the quoted market price and included in long-term available-
for-sale investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and 2004. Shares required to be held in custody
for greater than a one year period are carried at cost and included in equity investments. In August 2004, we invested
" an additional $723 thousand cash‘in PTI shares avarlable for sale. At December 31 2004, our investment represented
2% of the outstandmg equ1ty of PTI : c

In 2001 we acqurred a 9% mterest 1n Grace Semlconductor Manufactunng Corporation, or GSMC a privately held
Cayman Islands company for $50.0 million cash. -In March 2004, we invested an additional $33.2 million cash in
GSMC. Bing Yeh, our president, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member of GSMC’s board
of directors. In addition, a member of our management team holds one supervisor position at GSMC. The role and
responsibilities of a supervisor are defined and governed by Corporate Law in the Cayman Islands. This investment
is carried at cost. 'GSMC has a wholly. owned subsidiary; Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation, or Grace, which is a wafer foundry company with operatlons in China. At December 31, 2004, our
investment represented 10% of the outstandlng equlty ‘of GSMC , ‘

In 2002 we acqulred a 6% mterest in Insyde Software Corporatlon or Insyde a privately held Taiwanese company,
for $964 thousand in'cash.’ Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of our Board of Directors, is also a member
of Insyde's board of directors. During 2003, Insyde completed an initial public offering on the Taiwan Stock
“Exchange. Under Taiwan security regulations, certain numbers of shares must be held in a central custody and are
restricted from sale for a period of time. The shares available for sale within one year are carried at the quoted market
price and included in long-term available-for-sale investments in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 and
2004. Shares required to be held in cuStody for greater than a one year period are carried at cost and included in
equity investments. In January 2004, we invested an additional $133 thousand cash in Insyde’s convertible bonds.
The stock investment was written down $509 thousand during 2004, refer to Note 12 of these Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statemeits. ‘At December 31; 2004 our mvestment represented 6% of the ‘outstanding equity
and 6% of the convertlble bonds of Insyde

I

In June 2004, we acqulred a 9% mterest in Advanced Ch1p Engmeermg Technology, or ACET for $4.0 million cash.
ACET, a privately‘held Taiwaneése:coripany and a related entity of KYE, is a production subcontractor. Chen Tsai,
.our Senior Vice President 'of Worldwide Backend Operations, is also a member of ACET's board of directors. At
December 31, 2004 our investment, which is carried at cost, represented 9% of the outstanding equity of ACET.
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In November 2004, we acquired a 30% interest in Nanotech Corporation, or Nanotech, a privately held Cayman
Isiand company, for $3.8 million cash. Nanotech, a development stage company, has a wholly owned subsidiary
which is in the process of starting up foundry operations in China. Bing Yeh, our President, CEO and Chairman of
our Board of Directors, is also a member of Nanotech’s board of directors. Tsuyoshi Taira, a member of our Board
of Directors, also invested in this round of financing. The investment was part of a second round of financing. We
are not obligated to provide Nanotech with any additional financing. At December 31, 2004 our investment, which is
accounted for under the equity method, represented 30% of the outstanding equity of Nanotech.

17. Employee Benefit Plans:
Profit Sharing Plan:

We have a Profit Sharing Plan under which employees may collectively earn up to 10% of our operating profit,
provided that both net earnings before interest income (expense), net provision for (benefit from) income taxes and
operating profit are greater than 10% of sales. For purposes of the Profit Sharing Plan, "operating profit" is net
revenues less cost of revenues and less operating expenses. The sum paid to any particular employee as profit
sharing is a function of the employee's length of service, performance and salary. We plan to pay profit sharing sums,
when available, to employees twice a year. During 2004, profiting sharing expenses of $3.7 million were recorded.
No profit sharing was paid in relation to 2002 or 2003.

401(k) Plan:

We have adopted the SST 401(k) Tax Sheltered Savings Plan and Trust, or the 401(k) Plan, as amended, which is
intended to qualify under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. The 401(k) Plan covers essentially all
employees. Each eligible employee may elect to contribute to the 401(k) Plan, through payroll deductions, up to 15%
of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. At our discretion, we may make additional contributions on
behalf of employees. All employee contributions are 100% vested. During 2002, 2003 and 2004, we matched the
first $1,000 of each employees' contribution, for a total of $405 thousand, $384 thousand and $379 thousand,
respectively. ‘

18. Subsequent Events:
On February 7, 2004, we entered into a Memorandum of Understanding, or MoU, to acquire a company. There

would be significant penalties if either party were to terminate the MoU. The termination penalties range from $1
million and $2 million. ‘
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SCHEDULEN = =~ ~=% =t -

e SILICON STORAGE TECHNOLOGY, INC.. IR
Ll VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS R
e ' (1n thousands) o ' S

Balance at Chargedto  Write-off Balance at
Beginning Costs and  of Accounts End of
Description of Period Expenses /Other Period

Year ended December 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts

A

$ 2,814 $ 3,046 1,440. § 4,420

Allowance for sales ret‘urns ................... e $ 4,498 § 2842 3 5,553. % 1,787
Allowance for excess and obsolete mventones and adverse ) . . '
purchase COMMItMENES.....m.eoo.ireeoverssos e .- $ 47,747 $ 10441 $  29,466° 3 28,722
}Valuanon allowance on deferredta.x assets g $ - 3 - § - 3 L.
Year ended December 31, 3003 j‘" R :
Allowance for doubtful accounts........c.cccvviriveviriinncieniiaennen. $ 4,420
Allowance for sales TetUIDS. .....vvvviivvirieare e crreee s cree e e eraree e $ 1,787
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventories and adverse
PUrchase COMMUILIMENTS. ... covcveiireiriiniiierereseneer e beseesenaas $ 28,722
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assetS......coommmrrinitni’ $ -
. R TT  ( B “:
-Year. ended December 31,20047 paor EE . o
Allowance for doubtful accounts.....,: .......... e eecerens JETIOR e $00 1,118
Allowance for sales returns.............cc...... EE TP SRURREINY. e 80 1,301
Allowance for, excess and obsolete mvemones and adverse )
purchase COMIMIEMIENES. . evveeosoerrrerrserereees BT $ 11,754
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets.......ccoovvereeevnniciinn. $ 41,114
: L IR
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Bing Yeh: Chairman, Fresident and CEQ
Yaw Wen Hu: Executive Vice President and CO0
Derek Best: Sr VR Sales and Marketing
Michael Briner: Sr. VP Application Specific Product Group
Chen Tsai: Sr. VP Worldwide Backend Operations
Paul Lui: VP Special Product Group,
and President of SST China
Jack K. Lai: VP Finance & Administration,
CFO and Secretary

of}
Bing Yeh: Chairman, Fresident and CEQ
Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.
Yaw Wen Hu: Executive Vice President and CO0
Silicon Storage Technology, inc.
Tsuyoshi Taira: CEO, Tazan International, Inc.
Yasushi Chikagami: Chairman, Arise, Inc.
Ronald Chwang: Chairman and CEQ, 1D Ventures America
Terry M. Nickerson

(

IAnniuallieeting]
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at:
Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.
1020 Kifer Rd.
Sunnyvale, California 94086
Time: 3:00 p.m., June 2, 2005

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level
New York, NY 10038

PricewaterhpuseCoopers L.L.P.
Ten Almaden Bivd., Suite 1600
San Jose, CA 95113

Cooley Godward LLP
Five Pato Alto Square
3000 &t Camino Real

Palo Alto, CA 94308-2155

isting]
Silicon Storage Technology. Inc. common stock is traded on
the NASDAQ National Market under the symboi SSTI.

Shipping 1.5 million units a day and growing, we are a leading supplier of
flash memory and other products in the digital consumer, networking, wireless
communications and Internet computing applications.
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